URBAN ,

¢° &, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
é’ *-{: REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
'g > 12:00 P.M., September 30, 2025
% 5 GHURA'’s Main Office (via Zoom)
‘g& éo 1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana
03.,962.,.& AGENDA

. ROLL CALL

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
1stPrinting - Tuesday, September 23 2025
2nd Printing - Sunday, September 28, 2025

Illl. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - August 26, 2025
September 16, 2025

IV. NEW BUSINESS

LIHTC 2025 Qualified Allocation Plan ... s vesns s s s ssn e s

V. OLD BUSINESS
1. Intent of Award...

IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead Abatement for AMPs 1,2 and 4

2. Change Order #1 for Base Bid #3

GHURA-25-002; Renovation of MOD 9 for AMP1, 2 and 4

3. Resolution No. FY2025-033 ..

Resolution Commending Ms. Ana C Sahagon, lntervnewer Clerk
for her Dedication and Contributions to the Guam Housing and

Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA)

4. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025

Vi. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Project Updates

VIl. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS

1. Malcolm Stiles — ASAN PrOPerty .....cccceeceimireeieseceeriseese s cte s sessesseseeenas

PAGE (S)

1-43

44 - 46

47 - 48

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting: Tuesday, October 14, 2025

@ 12:00 p.m.

VIIl. ADJOURNMENT



KUMISION | SETBISION SIBIT
Bl Tower Suite 201, 710W. Marine Corps Drive, Hagltia, Guam 96710« Tek (671) 6471855  Fax: (671) 647-1867
IN-PERSON MEETING AT 9:00 A.M. ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2025.
Alive broadcast of this meeting i3 available to the public on the C5C website at csr.guam.gov or on GeyGuam ty,
The public can also access a live stream of this meeting via zoom by using the link of Meeting |0 and Passcode provided below

21214%pwni=
{Meeting ID: B99 78121214/ Passcode: 795374)
AGENDA

|. CALLTO ORDER. tlasz_E._Esg i
Il APPROVAL OF MINUTES: September 25, 2025. (GMHAJ; CSC Case No.: 25-RA07T.
1ll. NEW BUSINESS: IV, OLD BUSINESS: None
1) POST AUDITHEARING. V. GENERAL BUSINESS:
hlkmmﬂm:m.m#mmmmmﬂu ﬂﬁll!sand Laws affecting CSC:
Taxation (DRT): C5C Case No.: 25-PADS, 2} Administrative Counsel Litigation Update.
2) GRIEVANCE HEARING. {B}ndmlnlstmiua Matters:
i i ) Board Training; Civil Service Commission Board Members.
CSC Case No.: 25-GREQY. I. ADJOURNMENT.
3)MOTION HEARING.

For special accommodations, please contact Maria P. Masnayon, CSC ADA Coordinator at (671) 647-1872 / (671) 647-1855.
s/ Daniel D, Leon Guerrero, Executive Director
Paid by the Civil Service Commission

AVAILABLE JOBS FOR ELIGIBLE U.S. WORKERS

2 - CRANE OPERATOR $29.70 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent), 2 years of expenience as a aane operator in shipyard
environiment, and possessesa U S. recognized certifiation for Crane
Duties: Operates a variety of canes, induding portal, tower, mobile, mobile (auxiliary), overhead (cab), overhead (floor) to
lift and move strudural comy nenis,haawrg:jecls. machinery, and materials in the shipyard.
10 - ELECTRIC MOTOR REWINDER $23.53 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent) and 1 year of expenence as an electric motor rewinder in
shipyard environment
Duties: Involves rewinding various kinds of electro-methanical apparatus such as single and three phase motors, DC
electric motors, transformers, and coils for various types of machinery
2 - LEAD TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT PAINTER $24.81 PERHR.*
Min. Req: Highschool diploma [mzlbefme-ignequwalmt}arm yearof experience asa lead transportation equipment
inter or preservation f inshipyard envi
ties: Leads paint team in the following: Operate or tend painting machines to paint sudaces or fransportation
uipment sich as boats and marine
11 - MARINE MECHANIC $27.14 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent) and 2 years of experience as a marine mechanic in shipyard
environment
Duties: Disassembles machinery or equipment to remove parts and make repairs. Repairs or replace broken or
nnlfun(ﬁoninﬁrmm of machinery or equipment.
12 - PAINTE R $24.81 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High schoal diploma (may be foreign equivalent) and 1 year of experience as a painterblaster in a shipyard
emvironment
Duties: Operate or tend painting machines to paint surfaces of transportation equipment, such as boats and marine
vessels.

8 - PIPEFITTER $19.33 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent) and 2 years of experience as a pipefitter in a shipyard
environment.
Duties: Plan pi ﬁ!ﬂnlayom, installation, or repair, according to specifications.
Z-PI.ANNINFE ERK $24.10 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent) and 1 year of experience as a planning derk in shipyard
environment
Duties: Coordinate and expedite the flow of work and materials within or between departments of an establishment
according to production schedule.
4-Q CONTROL INSPECTOR $21.29 PERHR.*
hﬁn_ﬁeq:Highsdmldiﬁm:nmybefomimemi\raieml1yearniex}3erienceasaquali controli inshipyard
envionment, and 150 (Intemational Standards Organization) certified or ABSNDT (American Bureau Shipping
Non-Destructive Testing) certified.
Duties: Perform Quality Assurance/Quality Control NOT inspection, audits and surveillances to ensure the end product
conforms to customey requirements.
15 - SHIPWRIGHT CARPENTER $18.45 PERHR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent) and 1 year of experience as a shipwright carpenter in a
ﬁm'd&lewnmﬁmngm cradles for drydock ks.
ties: Building supporfi es for ing vessel
13- WELDEE;‘IFM " e d $20.71 PEEhHR.'
Min. Req: Hi diploma {may be foreign equivalent), 1 year of expenence as a welderffitter in shipyard
emrironmerl.gﬂdﬂuBS[Amerim &J"gu of ;f%;qng}celﬁf ied orits eyg:malem "
Duties: Weld components in flat, vertical, or and restricted positions. Recognize, set up, and opesate hand and
power tools common to the welding trade, such as shielded metal arcand gas metal arc welding equipment.

Verification of aualificati ired.

*Special Wage Rate: Work to be performed on DPRIunded pmﬂ'em and projects covered by Davis
Bacon, Service Contracts Act, ancﬁ:r Executive Order 14206 will be paid no éss than the indicated
wage rate but may be paid more where special rates apply and may require paid holidays and/or paid

sick leave.

Benefits: Round-trip airfare for off-island hire; Meals and lodging provided @ $80.00 per week; and
employee/employer-paid medical insurance provided.

Successful applicant must be able to obtain TWIC card and military base access. Employees are
required to take and pass a substance abuse test after hire.

The job offer meets all EEO requirements, and initiates a temparary placement. The recruitment
associated with this job offer is closely monitored by the Department of Labor. Qualified,

il illing U. s are highly encour. . Should you qualify for the
Job and are not hired, you may appeal with the Department of Labor who will independently
review matter.

Apply in person at the American Job Center
414W. Soledad Avenue, Suite 300 GCIC Building Hagatiia, Guam

Or apply online at www.hireguam.com; Enter Keyword: 2025-109

GUAM HOUSING CORPORATION

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Notice of Publication

P
Syo< T

Kotparasion Ginima' Gudhan

The Guam Housing Corporation Board of Directors will hold its Regular Meeting on Tuesday, September
30, 2025, at 12:3% p.m. in the GEDA Conference Room, 5th Floor, ITC Buildi n?l'his meeu!g isopento
the public via Zoom and can be viewed live on GHC's Faubooekdplgo see link below).

Guam Housing Corporation is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Time: September 30, 2025, 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby
Join Zoom Meeting

OMm.Us/| 87682 407 ?pwd =awR7 cjHaVwvQ0ahbvgtw5j
Meeting ID: 896 8211 1407 = Passcode: 556438
AGENDA
I Callto Order V. Legal Report for July 2025 & August
Il Roll Call 2025

Ill. Approval of Minutes: VI. Old Business
A.July 27,2025, Regular Board Meeting Vil. New Business
IV. President's Report for July 2025 & August VIll. Public Participation

2025 IX. Adjournment

Individuals with disabilities or requiring special accommodations are asked to contact Cassandra Santos at (671) 647-4143,
Guam Housing Corporation Government Funds pay for this Notice of Publication.

Stephen J. Guerrero

GUAM PAROLE BOARD  Ghaimen
Govemment of Guam Lina N.B. McDaniel
PO. Box 3236 Hagatna, Guam 96932 Member
Tel: 671-735-4132/33 June G. Borja
Fax: 671-734-4051 Member
Email: guamparoleboard@doc.guam.gov John Q. Lizama
Member

Guam Parole Board's reqular scheduled hearfni‘mﬂ be on fhurxd? September 25, 2025, 4.:00
p.m., at the Parole Services Division Office #203 Aspinall Avenue Hagatiia, Guam.

AGENDA |. Call to Order, Il. Roll Call, Ill. Old Business (Parole Desirability Cases for Jose Baza, Robert
James, KR Rousan, Sam Kosam, Austin Santos, Justin Cruz, John Boy Duenas). V. New Business
{Parole Desiraba'ﬁry Cases for Erik DeCastro, Bernard Muna, Peter Reyes, David Uncangco, David
Juanico, Kurt D, ), (Preliminary Revocation Timothy Sablan, Adrian Nego, (Farly discharge request
James Song)

Guam Pardon Review Board's reqular scheduled meeting will be on Thursday, September 25,
2025, 5:00 p.m., at the Parole Sen;e]gcas Division Office !2039 Aspinall Avenue Hag'!tﬁa, Guam.

AGENDA |. Call to Order, Il. Roll Call, Ill. Old Business (Pardon Reﬂuest Case for Richard Quinata,
Zarackai Patrick, Christoper Fejeran, Victor Bilon), IV. New Business (Pardon/Commutation Case None
scheduled at this time), V. Deliberation, VI. Adjourn

Meeting ID: 856 8877 1596 Passcode: 556746, To attend the hearing, we ask that you register via
guamparoleboard@doc.guam.gov. For individuals requiring special accommodations, please contact
the Parole Services Division at (671)735- 4132/33 for assistance.  This ad was paid for by the
Corrections Revolving Fund.

THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Board of Commissioners Meeting * Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 12:00 PM.
This meeting is open to the public via Zoom

Topic: GHURA BoC Meeting, Tue., Sept. 30, 2025 @12PM
Time: Sep 30, 2025 12:0 Guam, Port Moresbhy
Join Zoom Meeting https://usOéweb.zoom.us/j/858728837407p
Meeting ID: 858 7288 3740 = Passcode: 102770
Watch YouTube Live Stream https:/fiwww.youtube.com/channel/UCGgKWU0kOmTOFOLYn48ULag
AGENDA:
I.  ROLLCALL
.  BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
lll.  APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - August 26, 2025 and September 16, 2025
IV.  NEW BUSINESS
1. LIHTC 2025 Qualified Allocation Plan
V. OLD BUSINESS
1. Intentof Award: IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead Abatement for AMPs 1, 2 and 4
2. Change Order #1 for Base Bid #3: GHURA-25-002; Renovation of MOD 9
forAMP 1,2 and 4
3. Resolution No. FY2025-033; Resolution Commending Ms. Ana C. Sahagon,
Interviewer Clerk, for her Dedication and Contributions to the Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA)
4. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for Y2025
vi. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Project Updates
VIl.  GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. Malcolm Stiles - Asan Property
2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting - Tuesday, October 14, 2025 @ 12:00 p.m.
Vill.  ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations,
please contact Chief Planner - Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

]
i

vno

5202 '€Z YI9N3Ld3S AVOSINL » 1S0d ATIYA W



© hoice: | MublicNotie= 2oz % an.o-:'scce"f.rli-é-:'-‘r- X+

+ € 5 noticesquamownatice detail 7206

USDep, @ @ WAL (§ionilodr  Gombnseged. @ WRAEAL  Uesoot-OHL S Welende [ Admr d PC DAL @ Fubhe hobmsPorle. ) Memsege

Government of Guam

u;p— PUBLIC NOTICES Portal

First Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting - >Provious Page > Alfatices
09/30/2025 @ 12:00pm ChST

Quick Links:  View ALL Notices | Posted Today | Posted This Week | Posted This Manth | Mora Fiters

First Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting -
09/30/2025 @ 12:00pm ChST

ANNOUNCEMENT

& Posted on: (%/23/2025 1121 AM

= Posted by: Jufic Lujan

[ Department(s): GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY (GHURA)
E Division|sk

% Notice Topic(sk 50,
= Types of Notice: "HHOURCEMENT
# For Audienceis): FLUELI

 Share this notice

GHURA Board of Commissioners Meering will be held on Tuesday, September 3, 2025 at 12:00pm ChST, This
mesting is open to the public anr is avalable via Zoom as well as GHURA's YouTube Live Stream Channel.
Please dick on the ink below for more information.

Ianptwehrontfucer e [ os/GH1 R Y74 MGontermbark 00304 CHINIAZSHAAOCH MMt XA nan coment ol

R AN RO N CaMmende




nN
]
E
=
m
o
(7]

GUAM DAILY POST = SUNDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2025

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT JOB ANNOUNCEMENT

WELDER (FIVE (5) OPENINGS): High
School/GED  (may be  foreign
equivalent). 24 months of experience as
a welder, Responsible for various types
of weld preparation, welding and weld
finishing operations to manufacture
product and to drawings, specifications
or other forms of instruction, working at
customer's site or company site.
Exercises and uses safety ~habits,
equipment and materials.

Send resume to:

A - TECH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
Unit 202, 919 Pale San Vitores Road,
Tumon, GU 96913
Email Address: atechguam@gmail.com

CIVIL ENGINEER: Bachelor's degree in
Civil Engineering (may be ?oreign
equivalent). 60 months of experience asa
Civil Engineer. Analyze blueprints, survey
reports, maps, and other data related to
project design. Evaluate regulations, site
conditions, and other factors relevant to
construction projects. This role may also
involve overseeing project communications.

Send resume to:
ROCKY MOUNTAIN PRECAST, LLC.
Attn: Maricar Rabbetts
P.0. Box 11850 Yigo, GU 96929
Email Address: rmp@rmpguam.com OR

maricarr@rm m.com

OFFICE OF MICHAEL J GATEWOOD LLC
MICHAEL J. GATEWOOD
michazlfgatewnod|egal com
101E Chalan Santo Papa, Surte 102
Hagatiia, GU 96910
Tel Mo 671 488 6285

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

INTHE MATTER OF THE ESTATE
OF
MARIE REYES NELSON,

Deceased.
PROBATE CASE NO. PRO128-25
AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING

THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. YOU ARE NOT
REQUIRED TD APPEAR IN COURT UNLESS YOU DESIRE,

1. NOTICE IS HEREEY GIVEN that Crystal Rona
Nelson has filed a Petition for Probate of Will and
Letters Testamentary

2, A Hearing on the Petition is set for
Wednesday, October 8, 2025, at 11:10 am in
the Courtroom of the Honorable Elyze M.
Iriarte, Judge, Superior Court of Guam.

3. Toattend or to participate in the hearing, you
may appear in person at the Guam Judidal Center,
appear remotely at https./guamcourts-org.200m.us
and enter Meeting 1D: 864 4387 2213 and
Passcode: JEML or all into the courtroom at
671-300-6703 at the designated hearing time. For
onnedivity issues, you may contact Jannette
Samson at (671) 4750141 or emall
jsamson@guamcourts.gov,

DATED: 28 August 2025

JANICE M CAMACHO-PEREZ
Clerk of Court, Superior Court of Guam
{5/ Alice B. Mandozz
Courtroom/Chamber Clerk

OFFICE OF MICHAEL J GATEWOOD LLC
MICHAEL J. GATEWOOD
michaelligarewnodlegal tom
101E Chatan Santo Papa, Surte 102
Hagitia, GU 96910
Te! Mo, 677 468 4285
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
INTHE MA”EEPF THE ESTATE
SEGUNDO T. BARCENA and
JOVITA TANO BARCENA,
Deceased.
PROBATE CASE NO. PR0O210-23
NOTICE OF HEARING

THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. YOU ARE NOT
REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT UNLESS YOU DESIRE.

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Kevin Chieng
Barcena filed an Amended Petition for Letters
of Administration, reference to such Petition is
hereby made for further particulars.

2. A Hearing on the Petition i set for
Wednesday, October 8, 2025, at 9:00 am in
the Courtroom of the Honorable Dana A Gutiemez,
Judge, Superior Court of Guam.

3, To attend or participate in the hearing, you
may may apgear in person at the Courtroom of
Judge Dana A. Gutierrez, 120 W. O'Brien Drive,
Hagatfia, Guam or you may appear via Zoom by
logging onto hitps://guamcourts-org.zoom.us and
enter the Meeting 1D: 839 7874 0380 and
Passcode: 189701, For technical assistance,
please call (671) 475-3207 five (5) minutes priot
the designated hearing time.

DATED: September 5, 2025

JANICE M CAMACHO-PEREZ
Clerk of Court, Superior Court of Guam
[/ PAULINE | UNTALAN
Courtroom/Chamber Clerk

Time: Sep 30, 2025 12:0

AGENDA:
| ROLL CALL
IV.  NEW BUSINESS

V. OLD BUSINESS

forAMP 1,2and 4

Vl.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Project Updates

1. Malcolm Stiles - Asan Property

Vill.  ADJOURNMENT

Il.  BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
lil.  APPROVALOF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - August 26, 2025 and September 16, 2025

1. LIHTC 2025 Qualified Allocation Plan

VIl.  GENERALDISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS

Topic: GHURA BoC Meeting, Tue., Sept. 30, 2025 @12PM
M Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting hitps:/lusDéweb.zoom.us/j/858728837 407 pwd =L116KzYEABT 069CIWENgTGc2e FkkF 1
Meeting ID: 858 7288 3740 = Passcode: 102770
Watch YouTube Live Stream hitps://www.youtube,comichannel/VCGakWUQKOmTOFOLYn48ULag

1. Intent of Award: IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead Abatement for AMPs 1, 2and 4
2. Change Order #1 for Base Bid #3: GHURA-25-002; Renovation of MOD 9

3. Resolution No. FY2025-033; Resolution Commending Ms. Ana C. Sahagon,
Interviewer Clerk, for her Dedication and Contributions to the Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA)

4. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting - Tuesday, October 14, 2025 @ 12:00 p.m.

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghur.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations,
please contact Chief Planner - Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

We deliver every morning.

THE GUAM DAILY

SPOST -

Stay informed about your island and your
world. We deliver printed newspapers to your
home or business for less than the cover price. If
you prefer, get an electronic file sent straight to
your inbox each day, instead!

Choose a plan that is right for you:

PRINT Subscriptions for home or office delivery

6mos. $180.00 12mos. $300.00
E-EDITION Subscriptions delivery through email
6mos. $72.00 12mos. $120.00
ANNUAL BUNDLE - BEST VALUE!
PRINT + E-EDITION 12mos. $330.00

SENIORS AND STUDENTS DISCOUNT!
For home delivery of the printed newspaper:
Sign up today and receive 10 newspapers
each month free of charge!

(Approximately 33% off the cover price)
School or govt issued ID required

12mos. $244.00

Email customerservice@postguam.com
or call us at (671) 649-1924




Government of Guam

m&*‘ﬁ |PUBLIC NOTICES Portal

Second Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting - > Preousage >Nt
09/30/2025 @ 12:00pm ChST

| Quick Links: View ALL Notices | Posted Today | Posted This Week | Posted This Manth |More Fiters..

Second Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting -
09/3072025 @ 12:00pm ChST

ANNOUNCEMENT

& Posted on: D5/2672025 02:27 P

& Postedby: Ui Lujin

B Department(s): GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY (GHURA)

& Division(sk

% Notice Topicfs): FOART VEETING
= Types of Notice: AW OUNCERENT
 For Audiencelsk PLBLIC
 Share this nofice

GHURA Board of Comeissionars Meeting wil be held an Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 12:00pm CnST. This
meeting is open to the public and s availzble ia Zoom as well a5 GHURA's YouTube Live Siream Channel
Please click on the link below for more information.

Jepatwebrootiuserfiies/filesiGHURAS2T s 2056 ptemberk20004CHI0X25420B0CH 20Nt H20Annauncement pdf



& Ste, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
E" % REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
2 z 12:00 P.M., August 26 2025
= 517 GHURA'’s Main Office (via Zoom)
%0,,. i r”"& 1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana
AGENDA

I. CALL TO ORDER
Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:01 P.M., Tuesday,
July 8, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Chairman Rivera
indicated that 5 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a
quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled.

Viewed ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86478248299?pwd=VE3yEchJnMNBFOdFeFWg2U5hZwij0ij.1
virtually via

YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWUOkOmMTOFOLYn48ULag
BOC Dr. John Rivera, Chairman Virtual O In-Person ™M
Commissioners | Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman Virtual O In-Person M
Attendance Anisia Delia, Commissioner Virtual M In-Person [

Emilia Rice, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person ™

Victor Torres, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person ™

Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner Virtual O In-Person [

*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted via email and acknowledged by Chairman Rivera.
GHURA Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director ¥ Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator]  Carlo Ongklungel M
Management/ | Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director A Sonny Perez, AE Manager O Thalia Pablo O
Staff Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant M Frances Danieli, Controller ¥

Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager [J Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner O

Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager O Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator M

Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager (I Antonio Camacho, Procurement ¥

Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager 0  Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager I

Jolyn Terlaje O Nicole Alejandro M

Miguel Fernandez O Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff [J

Michael Ricuyal O Ervin Santiago O

Maria Cherry Canete O Patrick Luces M Andrew Manglona M

Legal Counsel

Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA M

Public

il. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
1stPrinting - Tuesday, August 19, 2025
2nd Printing - Sunday, August 24, 2025

ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025 Page 10f14



https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F86478248299%3Fpwd%3DVE3yEchJnMNBF0dFeFWg2U5hZwj0ij.1&sa=D&ust=1744612080000000&usg=AOvVaw1jbvHYhBhhMp72X-rDRiiW

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [512/25] Commissioner Torres moved
to approve the board meeting minutes of August 12, 2025, subject to corrections.
Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

IV. NEW BUSINESS:
AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
. Intent of Award-IFB | [513/25] Executive Director Napoli read | [514/25]

GHURA-25-10;
Renovations of nine
(9) Public Housing
Units at AMPs 1, 2,
and 4

the Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-25-10;
Renovations of nine (9) Public Housing
Units at AMPs 1, 2, and 4 on pages 1-6 in
the GHURA Board of Commissioners
(BoC) August 26, 2025 meeting packet,
which was also found on the GHURA

website, www.ghura.org.

Commissioner Torres
moved to approve the
Intent of Award-IFB
GHURA-25-10;
Renovations of nine
(9) Public Housing
Units at AMPs 1, 2, and
4 to OH Construction in
the amount of $383,
500.00 for bid items 1,
2, and 3. Project
timeline for Bid item
#1 is ninety
consecutive calendar
days at the cost of
$131,000. Timeline for
Bid item #2 is one
hundred twenty
consecutive calendar
days at the cost of
$154,000. Timeline for
Bid item #3 is ninety
consecutive calendar
days at the cost of $98,
500, with no option
periods and not to
exceed the amount of
$383,500.00. Vice
Chairman Sanchez
seconded the motion.
There were no

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 2 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

2. Intent of Award- IFB
GHURA-25-001-
CDBG-DR; Fleet
Vehicles

[515/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-25-001;
Fleet Vehicles on pages 7-9 in the GHURA
Board of Commissioners (BoC) August 26,
2025 meeting packet, which was also
found on the GHURA website,
www.ghura.org.

Chairman Rivera asked whether the bid
included a sports utility vehicle. Deputy
Director Esteves stated that none of the bids
submitted met the bid specifications. The bid
could not be awarded.

Mr. Antonio Camacho, Housing Procurement
Administrator, requested for a change on
page 7 and stated that it should read 120
Consecutive Calendar Days and not 160
Consecutive Calendar Days. Vice Chairman
Sanchez indicated that the dollar sign should
also be added to the Guam Auto Spot total of
$187,995.00 on page 7.

Vice Chairman Sanchez asked whether the
sports utility and passenger wagon
specifications were met or not. Deputy
Director Esteves indicated that the
passenger wagon specs were met.
Commissioner Torres asked why the
specifications were not met. Deputy Director
Esteves stated that it was the fuel economy
specs and added that GHURA would have to
conduct the market research again. Bidders
did not pose questions or objections when
the IFB was advertised, but the bids
submitted did not meet the bid criteria. He
added that GHURA would have to reevaluate
the bid criteria.

Commissioner Delia requested clarification
for the total cost for Triple ] for items #1.2

objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 3 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

and 1.3. Mr. Camacho indicated that the item
#1.3 cost is in total of the 5-year Power
Train and Vehicle Service Pan per vehicle. He
added that the total was how the bid was
submitted, and he should have broken it
down.

Director Napoli added that Mr. Camacho had
indicated to her that he had written the bid
results in the way that the bids were
submitted by the different companies, which
is why adjustments or breakdowns were not
made in the bid report.

Chairman Rivera stated that for the record,
that the total amount for Triple ] Enterprise
proposal to award is $58,333, the
breakdown of that would be for the
passenger wagon at $56,138 and the 5-Year
Power Train and Vehicle Service Plan for the
passenger wagon with option to purchase, is
$2,195. Which is then less than the
passenger wagon, plus the 5-Year Power
train that was submitted by Monster Auto
Corp.

Vice Chairman Sanchez asked whether the
board should refrain from making a motion
considering the numbers presented. Mr.
Eliseo Florig, Jr., GHURA’s Legal Counsel,
indicated that the price of the vehicle plus
the power train amount was explained in
minutes and covers the numbers. He
recommended that should the board motion
to approve the award, it should include who
the awardees are, the amount for each, and
that it is not to exceed one hundred twenty
consecutive calendar days.

[516/24] Vice
Chairman Sanchez
moved to approve the
Intent of Award- IFB
GHURA-25-001-CDBG-
DR; Fleet Vehicles. In
review of the bid
results, Cars Plus LLC
and Triple ]
Enterprises, Inc
provided the lowest
responsive and
responsible bid. The
committee members
determined to proceed
with the award of the
vehicles to Cars Plus
LLC in the total amount
of $53, 704.00 for Bid
Item Nos. 1.1 and 1.3
and Triple J.
Enterprises, Inc in the
total amount of
$58,333 for Bid Items
Nos 1.2 and 1.3. Both
not to exceed one
hundred twenty
consecutive days.
Commissioner Rice
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 4 of 14




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.

FY2025-027;
Resolution
Approving the
Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Fraud
Waste and Abuse
Policy

[517/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Resolution No. FY2025-027;
Resolution Approving the Guam
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Fraud Waste and
Abuse Policy on pages 10-21 in the
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC)
August 26, 2025 meeting packet, which
was also found on the GHURA website,
www.ghura.org.

Mr. Florig indicated that in the caption of
Resolution FY2025-027, it should read Fraud
(comma) Waste (comma) and Abuse.

Deputy Director Esteves stated the
following:

e Series of policies regarding fiscal and
financial controls as part of phase Il

e Action Plan is still under final review
by HUD

e First week of September the policies
will be submitted to HUD for review

e GHURA is requesting approval from
the board to provide flexibility for the
executive director to amend from the
base policies that the board approves.

e Page 3 of the policy indicates that
grantees must track all amendments.
Amended versions will be recorded
and reported to the board by the
executive director.

e Policy writing was a team effort

e Team is doing well and focused on
developing the policies for launch

Chairman Rivera asked whether people can
use the contact information provided in the
policy to report complaints. Deputy Director
Esteves confirmed this and added that the
information will also be published on the
website at www.guamcdbgdr.org

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 5 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/
http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

Commissioner Torres asked if a template
was used as reference to write the policies.
Deputy Director Esteves indicated that HUD
recommended that GHURA research what
other grantees had done in the past and
determine what CDBG-DR could put into
operation.

[518/25] Vice
Chairman Sanchez
moved to approve
Resolution No.
FY2025-027;
Resolution Approving
the Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Fraud
(comma) Waste
(comma) and Abuse
Policy subject to the
grammatical
corrections.
Commissioner Torres
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 6 of 14




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No
FY2025-028;
Resolution
Approving the
Guam Community
Development Block
Grant- Disaster
Recovery Website
Policy

[519/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Resolution No FY2025-028;
Resolution Approving the Guam
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Website Policy on
pages 22-30 in the GHURA Board of
Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 2025
meeting packet, which was also found on
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org.

Chairman Rivera asked whether the issue of
cyber security is included in the website
policy. Deputy Director Esteves indicated
that nothing was required in terms of cyber
security. He added that the website will not
have portal access. A separate software will
be maintained on the server for any
sensitive information. He indicated that the
website is hosted and believed that the
servers are protected.

Deputy Director Esteves stated that the
resolution still had formatting editing that
needed to be done. Chairman Rivera agreed
and indicated that the integrity of the
content is present in the document, but the
structure

[520/25]
Commissioner Torres
moved to approve
Resolution No FY2025-
028; Resolution
Approving the Guam
Community
Development Block
Grant- Disaster
Recovery Website
Policy. Vice Chairman
Sanchez seconded the
motion. There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 7 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-029;
Resolution
Approving the
Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery
Duplication of
Benefits Policy

[521/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Resolution No. FY2025-029;
Resolution Approving the Guam
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Duplication of Benefits
Policy on pages 31-43 in the GHURA
Board of Commissioners (BoC) August 26,
2025 meeting packet, which was also
found on the GHURA website,
www.ghura.org.

Chairman Rivera asked if there had been
issues with the duplication of benefits in the
past. Deputy Director Esteves indicated that
GHURA has not. However, this policy is a
requirement especially when it comes to
disaster recovery. The various benefits may
be in the areas of SBA loans, various
insurances, or FEMA. The program will have
a worksheet to assist in determining or
calculating and it is important that it is
monitored.

[522/25]
Commissioner Rice
moved to approve
Resolution No.
FY2025-029;
Resolution Approving
the Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Duplication
of Benefits Policy.
Commissioner Torres
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 8 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-030;
Resolution
approving the Guam
Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Policy
Ensuring Timely
Expenditure

[523/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Resolution No. FY2025-030;
Resolution approving the Guam
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Policy Ensuring Timely
Expenditures on pages 44-51 in the
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC)
August 26, 2025 meeting packet, which
was also found on the GHURA website,
www.ghura.org.

Deputy Director Esteves stated the
following:

e Section 6-Board passed CDBG-DR
Procurement policies, allowing this
particular grant the ability to adopt
the federal procurement standards.
This was one way to ensure
compliance.

e Reprogramming of funds-
transparent with awardees and
subrecipients. HUD to monitor
progress.

e (Goal is timely expenditure of funds

[524/25]
Commissioner Torres
moved to approve
FY2025-030;
Resolution approving
the Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Policy
Ensuring Timely
Expenditure.
Commissioner Rice
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 9 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-031;
Resolution
approving the Guam
Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Program
Income

[525/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Resolution No. FY2025-031;
Resolution approving the Guam
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Program Income on
pages 52-60 in the GHURA Board of
Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 2025
meeting packet, which was also found on
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org.

Deputy Director Fernandez stated the
following:

e General rule is if a loan program is
given out for construction, the
proceeds from the loan or interest
earned is considered program
income.

e Itis subject to the same rules as the
regular funds

e This ensures that the requirement is
to spend program income before
drawing down additional funds.

e Exceptions is a revolving loan
program

[526/25]
Commissioner Rice
moved to approve
Resolution No.
FY2025-031;
Resolution approving
the Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Program
Income. Commissioner
Delia seconded the
motion. There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 10 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-032;
Resolution
approving the Guam
Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Conflict of
Interest Policy

[527/25] Executive Director Napoli read
the Resolution No. FY2025-032;
Resolution approving the Guam
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Conflict of Interest
Policy on pages 61-70 in the GHURA
Board of Commissioners (BoC) August 26,
2025 meeting packet, which was also
found on the GHURA website,
www.ghura.org.

Deputy Director Esteves stated the
following:

e Potentially high risk

e Policy will not be approved by HUD if
specific things were not included in
the policy

e Covered Individual- any person who
is an employee, agent, consultant,
contractor, officer, or an appointed or
elected official of the government of
Guam, or a subrecipient who:

o (a) exercises, has exercised, is
reasonably expected to
exercise any function or
responsibility with respect to
assisted activities.

o (b)isin a position to
participate in the decision-
making process

o (c)isin aposition to gain
insider information with
regard to such activities.

o Immediate family- whether by
blood, marriage, or adoption;
Spouse, Common-law, Parent,
Parent in-law, child, step-child,
siblings, sibling in-law, step
sibling, grandparent,
grandchild of a covered
individual

e (Covered individuals also include:
Governor, Lt. Governor, delegates of

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 11 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

the House of Representatives,
Attorney General, Members of the
Legislature, Board of Commissioners,
Executive Director, Deputy Director,
all program staff, agents and
consultants working on CDBG-DR and
its subrecipients

e HUD will grant the exception
provided the conflict is disclosed and
required documents are submitted.

e (General prohibition is that GHURA
does not have the authority to waive
a conflict.

e Exception criteria- whether the
exception will result in a substantial
cost savings or provide critical
expertise that is not otherwise
available

¢ Identify a conflict early on to avoid a
perceived conflict which may prevent
the exception.

e Publications and notices will be
distributed to inform people that they
are covered individuals and what the
process is for them or their family
members.

Chairman Rivera stated that if individuals
are unsure about whether or not they are a
covered individual, it is best that they reach
out to GHURA for more information. He
added that GHURA is a steward of the
process and does not have the authority to
grant waivers or exception. GHURA and HUD
work hand in hand in this process, but HUD
has the ultimate say in what is approved and
what is not.

[528/25] Vice
Chairman Sanchez
moved to approve
Resolution No.
FY2025-032;
Resolution approving
the Guam Community
Development Block
Grant-Disaster
Recovery Conflict of
Interest Policy.
Commissioner Rice
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 12 of 14




VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

AGENDA ITAM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

1. Project Updates

[529/25] Executive Director Napoli stated
the following:

FY2024 Audit has been completed.
Ernst and Young to present to the
board is scheduled for a future
meeting

Copies of the Audit report have been
requested for board review

Labor Day Picnic invitation to the
board

Project updates scheduled for next
board meeting

No action taken

VIl. GENERAL D

ISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS/ADJOURNMENT:

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

1. HR Item

2. Deputy Director
Announcements

[530/25] Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR
Administrator stated the following:

83% completed

5 of the 6 commissioners

Anticipates reporting the results at the
next board meeting

HUD technical training for CDBG-DR
staff completed

CDBG-DR Satellite office just about
complete

80% CDBG-DR staff fulfilled

No action taken

No action taken

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 13 of 14




AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
. Next proposed [531/25] Chairman.Rivera requested that [532/25]
scheduled Board | the board mark their calendars. T .
Meeting; Commissioner Rice
Tuesdays, moved to adjourn.
September 16, Commissioner Torres
2025 seconded the motion.
Meeting was
adjourned at 1:33PM
SEAL

Elizabeth F. Napoli

Board Secretary/Executive Director

Date

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025

Page 14 of 14




BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

%

% REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
> 12:00 P.M., September 16, 2025

05' GHURA'’s Main Office (via Zoom)

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana

AGENDA

I. CALL TO ORDER
Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:09 P.M., Tuesday,
September 16, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Acting
Chairman Sanchez indicated that 4 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present,
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled.

Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager ¥

Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager M

Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager M
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager M
Jolyn Terlaje O

Miguel Fernandez O

Michael Ricuyal O

Maria Cherry Canete [

Viewed ZOOM: https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/86902034484? pwd=yQ9S3VK5Sj0zUI4tWkIhjXDL91qOuo.1
virtually via
YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWUOkOmTOFOLYn48ULag
BOC Dr. John Rivera, Chairman Virtual ™ In-Person O
Commissioners | Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman Virtual O In-Person ™M
Attendance Anisia Delia, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person [
Emilia Rice, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person ™
Victor Torres, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person O
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner Virtual O In-Person ™
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted via email and acknowledged by Acting Chairman
Sanchez.
GHURA Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director M Julie Lujan, MIS Administratord  Carlo Ongklungel M
Management/ | Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director | Sonny Perez, AE Manager O Tyler Mortera O
Staff Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant M Frances Danieli, Controller ¥ Thalia Pablo M

Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner M

Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator M

Antonio Camacho, Procurement [

Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager M

Nicole Alejandro M

Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff 0 Kathleen Taitingfong
Ervin Santiago O

Patrick Luces M Andrew Manglona O

Legal Counsel

Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA M

Public

Mr. Uriah Aguon, PDN/ Mr. Malcom Stiles/ Mr. Rozalito Pagnal and Ernst & Young Staff

Il. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
1stPrinting - Tuesday, September 9, 2025
2nd Printing - Sunday, September 14, 2025

ACKNOWLEDGED BY ACTING CHAIRMAN SANCHEZ

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025 Page 1of 14




APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [532/25] Executive Director Napoli
indicated that due to time constraints she requested to have the approval of the
previous board meeting minutes of August 26, 2025 at the next scheduled board

meeting. Acting Chairman Sanchez acknowledged and approved the request.

IV. NEW BUSINESS:
AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
FY2024 Audit [533/25] Executive Director Napoli
Report requested to have the Correspondence
and Reports item proceed before the
scheduled new business agenda items.
Acting Chairman Sanchez approved the
request.
Mr. Rozalito Pagnal, Erst & Young partner,
stated the following:
e Presented the results of GHURA'’s
September 30, 2024, single audit
issued on August 15, 2025.
e I[ssued reports on GHURA’s FY2024:
o Financial Statements-
Unmodified or Clean
Opinion
o internal control over financial
reporting- No finding
o compliance for each major
program:

» CDBG- Qualified or
modified opinion; not
clean. Reporting
related. Reconciling.
Housing Voucher
Cluster- Qualified or
modified opinion; not
clean. Reporting
related. Reconciling.
Supportive Housing for
the Elderly-
Unmodified or clean
opinion
Section 108 Loan
Guarantees-

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025 Page 2 of 14




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

Unmodified or clean
opinion
o Report on internal control
over Compliance and Report
on Schedule of Expenditures
for Federal Awards required
by the Uniform Guidance
e Management Letter Comments are
matters that are not a material
weakness or a significant deficiency
communicated in writing for
improvement.
e There was an improvement from
2023-2024
e Monitoring of Capital Assets
Subledger comment was a
recommendation that the supporting
documents and the books reconcile.

Deputy Director Esteves indicated that
anything acquired by the agency that could
be an asset is reported.

Mrs. Frances Danieli, GHURA Controller,
indicated that the process is a report by AE
is compared to the general ledger. She added
that she had depreciated an asset that was
not completed. She stated that the process
will now include a system that will record
the fixed and depreciating assets to
determine whether it is a construction in
progress.

Mr. Pagnal extended his appreciation to the
Fiscal team. He indicated that he and his
team intend to work closely with GHURA to
have the reports completed in a timely
manner. He added that the only reason for a
delay on the financial statement is the
release of the Pension and OPEB numbers as
they are contingent with audits done outside
of GHURA financials. However, the goal is to
have the report completed as close as
possible to the time that their numbers are
released.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 3 of 14




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Intent of Award-IFB
GHURA-25-12; Lead
Abatement for
AMPs 1, 2, and 4

. Change Order #1 for
Base Bid #3;
GHURA-25-002;
Renovation of MOD
9 for AMP 1, 2, and
4

[533/25] Executive Director Napoli
requested to have item #1, the Intent of
Award-IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead
Abatement for Public Housing Units at
AMPs 1, 2, and 4 and item #2, Change
Order #1 for Base Bid #3; GHURA-25-002;
Renovation of MOD 9 for AMP 1, 2, and 4
in the GHURA Board of Commissioners
(BoC) September 16, 2025 meeting
packet, tabled for the next scheduled
meeting as the items were not ready for
the board’s review and approval. This
item is also found on the GHURA website,

www.ghura.org.

[534/25] Acting
Chairman Sanchez
approved the request
to table item #1 and
item#2, the Intent of
Award-IFB GHURA-25-
12; Lead Abatement
for Public Housing
Units at AMPs 1, 2, and
4 and Change Order #1
for Base Bid #3;
GHURA-25-002;
Renovation of MOD 9
for AMP 1, 2, and 4.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 4 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-024 (A-1);
Amendment to the
“2025 Community
Development Block
Grant Disaster
Recovery Citizen
Participation Plan
(CDBG-DR CPP)

[535/25] Executive Director Napoli read
Resolution No. FY2025-024 (A-1);
Amendment to the “2025 Community
Development Block Grant Disaster
Recovery Citizen Participation Plan
(CDBG-DR CPP) on pages 1-12 in the
GHURA BoC September 16, 2025, meeting
packet, whichis also found on the GHURA

website, www.ghura.org.

Deputy Director Esteves stated the
following:

e Original resolution was passed in May
before submitting the action plan to
be consistent with the other policies
that allow the Executive Director to
approve amendments and report to
the board all changes.

¢ Changes made to the CPP:

o Pg.7, The Quarterly
Performance Report
Submission- Comment period
was removed to meet
timeliness.

o Pg.11-12, The Appeals
Process- “GHURA will have an
Appeals Process” was
removed. This was a
grammatical/language error.

o Pg.12- the amendment in the
box should reflect the current
resolution and should read,
FY2025-024 (A-1) to reflect
the action of the board.

[536/25]
Commissioner Rice
moved to approve
Resolution FY2025-
024 (A-1). The
Resolution approving
the 2025 Community
Development Block
Grant Disaster
Recovery Citizen
Participation Plan
(CDBG-DR CPP) with
noted corrections.
Commissioner Corpus
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 5 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION

. Resolution No. [537/25] Executive Director Napoli
FY2025-033; requested to table item #4, Resolution
Resolution No.FY2025-033; Resolution Commending

Commending Ms. Ms. Ana C. Sahagon, Interviewer Clerk, for
Ana C. Sahagon,

Interviewer Clerk her dedication and contributions to the
for her dedication | Guam Housing and Urban Renewal
and contributions Authority (GHURA) to the next board

to the Guam meeting as Ms. Sahagon was unable to
Housing and Urban | attend today’s meeting.

Renewal Authority

(GHURA)

[538/25] Acting
Chairman Sanchez the
request to table item
#4 until the next
scheduled board
meeting.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025 Page 6 of 14




that the added responsibilities are executed.

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
. Resolution FY2025- | [539/25] Executive Director Napoli read
034; Resolution Resolution FY2025-034; Resolution
approving the approving the detailed appointment
detailed extension for an additional ninety (90)
appointment days for CY2025 for Kathleen Jean
extension for an Taitingfong (CDBG-DR Program) on pg.
additional ninety 15 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners
(90) days for (BoC) September 16, 2025 board packet,
CY2025 for also found on the GHURA website,
Kathleen Jean www.ghura.org.
Taitingfong (CDBG- Deputy Director Esteves stated the
DR Program) following:

e GHURA Satellite locations have an
Administrative Assistant working
there. CDBG-DR would like to remain
consistent and in sync with GHURA.

e Ms. Taitingfong has a deep
understanding of the agency and is
fully prepared to step into this role.

e Requesting that the board support
this appointment

Chairman Rivera indicated that Ms.
Taitingfong is a great recommendation for
the continuity of operations and to ensure [540/25]

Commissioner Corpus
moved to approve
Resolution FY2025-
034; Resolution
approving the detailed
appointment extension
for an additional
ninety (90) days for
CY2025 for Kathleen
Jean Taitingfong
(CDBG-DR Program).
Commissioner Rice
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 7 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
2025-035;
Resolution
approving the detail
appointment
extension for an
additional ninety
(90) days for
CY2025 for Carlo N.
Ongklungel (CDBG-
DR)

[541/25] Executive Director Napoli read
Resolution FY2025-035; Resolution
approving the detail appointment
extension for an additional ninety (90)
days for CY2025 for Carlo N. Ongklungel
(CDBG-DR) on pg. 16 in the GHURA Board
of Commissioners (BoC) September 16,
2025 board packet, also found on the
GHURA website, www.ghura.org.

Dr. Kim Bersamin stated the following:

e Regarding CDBG-DR, Mr. Ongklungel
stepped right into the duties and
responsibilities of the higher-level
Personnel Specialist III position.

e She commended his work

e She respectfully requested that the
board approve the extension of
ninety (90) days

Deputy Director Esteves stated that the
detailed assignment aligns with the work

that they are doing and there is
commensurate pay to go with that.

Acting Chairman Sanchez thanked Dr.
Bersamin and her staff for the hard work
that they continue to do.

[542/25]
Commissioner Rice
moved to approve
Resolution No. 2025-
035; Resolution
approving the detail
appointment extension
for an additional
ninety (90) days for
CY2025 for Carlo N.
Ongklungel (CDBG-
DR). Commissioner
Corpus seconded the
motion. There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 8 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

within the compliance period

Chairman Rivera asked what date GHURA
anticipated that the policies be incorporated.
Deputy Director Esteves indicated that it
may take a year or more. He added that HUD
still needs to roll out HIP, followed by train
ups, and the transition period. He added that
the property site managers have been going
through the HOTMA changes for some time
and are aware of what to expect with the
implementation of HOTA. Deputy Director
Esteves referred to PIH Notice 2023-27,
which is additional guidance for HOTMA.

Commissioner Corpus asked where the
changes were in the ACOP. Deputy Director
Esteves indicated that the 2025 ACOP was
approved by the board and what they are
adding and appending to is the appendix
reflects changes and policies not yet
implemented.

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
. Resolution [543 /25] Executive Director Napoli read

N0.2025-036; Resolution No0.2025-036; Resolution

Resolution adopting Z(éopting the 2 ((i)i 5 Publicngusing

. missions and Continued Occupanc

the 2_025 PUb_llc_ (ACOP) that includes an appendli)x Y

Housing Admissions relating to the changes mandated by the

and Continued Housing Opportunities Through the

Occupancy (ACOP) | Modernization Act (HOTMA) of 2016 on

that includes an pgs. 17-20 in the GHURA Board of

appendixrelating to | Commissioners (BoC) September 16,

the changes 2025 board packet, also found on the

mandated by the GHURA website, www.ghura.org.

Housing

Opportunities Deputy Director Esteves stated the

Through the following:

Modernization Act e HOTMA was passed in 2016

(HOTMA) of 2016 e Guidance from HUD came outin 2023

* GHURA’s ACOP is ongoing, butis still | [544/25]

Commissioner Rice
moved to approve
Resolution No.2025-
036; Resolution
adopting the 2025
Public Housing
Admissions and
Continued Occupancy
(ACOP) that includes
an appendixrelating to
the changes mandated
by the Housing
Opportunities Through
the Modernization Act
(HOTMA) of 2016.
Commissioner Corpus
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 9 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-037;
Resolution
approving the
FY2026 Operating
Budgets for Public
Housing Asset
Management
Projects (AMP)

[545/25] Executive Director Napoli read
Resolution No0.2025-037; Resolution
approving the FY2026 Operating Budgets
for Public Housing Asset Management
Projects (AMP), pgs. 21-89 in the GHURA
Board of Commissioners (BoC)
September 16, 2025 board packet, also
found on the GHURA website,

www.ghura.org.

Acting Vice Chairman Sanchez asked which
contractor did the lawn maintenance for
AMP1. Mrs. Narcissa Ada, AMP1 manager,
indicated that GETS LLC is the contractor for
lawn maintenance. She added that there was
an increase from the previous year in the
contract.

Deputy Director Esteves indicated that it
was an agency-wide procurement.

Commissioner Corpus indicated that he did
not see painting included in the budget.
Deputy Director Esteves stated that aside
from touch ups, large scale painting would
most likely fall under the MOD projects. Mrs.
Ada added that all four AMPs may be
scheduled for a large-scale painting project.
Deputy Director Esteves also added that in
the last few years, the focus had been on
getting the interior of the units NSPIRE
ready.

Commissioner Corpus stated that mold and
the need to waterblast the exterior of units
was a concern. Deputy Director Esteves
indicated that the prep work for painting
includes the removal of the old paint as well.
Mrs. Danieli stated that the painting would
fall under the Capital Funds Program budget,
not the AMP’s budget.

Mr. Patrick Luces, MOD Program Manager,
stated that the painting is inclusive of water
blasting and the paint to be used will be
mold resistant.

[546/25]
Commissioner Rice
moved to approve
Resolution No.
FY2025-037;
Resolution approving
the FY2026 Operating
Budgets for Public
Housing Asset
Management Projects
(AMP). Commissioner
Corpus seconded the
motion. There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 10 of 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

. Resolution No.
FY2025-038;
Resolution
approving the
FY2026 Operating
and Administrative
Budget.

[547/25] Executive Director Napoli read
Resolution No0.2025-038; Resolution
approving the FY2026 Operating and
Administrative Budget, on pg. 90 in the
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC)
September 16, 2025 board packet, also
found on the GHURA website,
www.ghura.org

There were no discussions.

[548/25] Acting
Chairman Sanchez
moved to pass
Resolution No.
FY2025-038;
Resolution approving
the FY2026 Operating
and Administrative
Budget. There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 11 0f 14



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

10. Summary of Deputy
Director Board
Evaluation for
CY2025

11. Summary of
Executive Director
Board Evaluation
for CY2025

[549/25] Executive Director Napoli
requested that Dr. Bersamin present the
results of the Deputy Director’s
evaluation and table item #11 until the
next board meeting.

Dr. Bersamin stated the following:

Followed the same (13) elements
critical for the evaluation period
One year period- August 22, 2024-
August 21, 2025

Deputy Director Esteves had received
an overall rating of Outstanding
Requested that the board adopt and
approve the HR summary

Once approved, the rating will
correspond to a 2% performance
adjustment.

Based on AG’s position, the effective
date of the 2% increase will be the
date that the board approves.

[550/25]
Commissioner Corpus
moved to approve the
Summary of Deputy
Director Board
Evaluation for CY2025
with a 2%
Performance salary
increment.
Commissioner Rice
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed.

[551/25] Request to
table this item was
approved by Acting
Chairman Sanchez.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 12 of 14




V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
AGENDA ITAM DISCUSSION ACTION
1. FY2024 Audit Executive Director Napoli requested this
Report item be moved to item #1 in the board
meeting agenda.
VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
AGENDA ITAM DISCUSSION ACTION
1. Project Updates [552/25] Deputy Director Esteves [553/25] Acting

requested to table project updates until the
next scheduled board meeting. He added
that pursuant to board policies,
amendments made regarding the policies
for DR will be reported to the board. A
summary of the changes made, that were
recommended by the ICF and HUD, is ready
for board review.

Chairman Sanchez
approved the request
to table the project
updates until the next
board meeting.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 13 of 14




VIl. GENERAL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS/ADJOURNMENT:

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

1. Next proposed
scheduled Board

[554/25] Mr. Florig, Legal Counsel,
recommended that the board add to the
September 30th meeting agenda general
discussions with Mr. Malcom Stiles
regarding a letter that was sent to him on
August 15,2025. He added that it would be
proposed to the board to have Mr. Stiles
present before the first new business item .

[555/25]
Commissioner Rice
moved to adjourn the

rlf::(iil;g:s September 16, 2025,

September 30, BoC meeting.

2025 Commissioner Corpus
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed. Meeting
adjourned at 1:33PM.

SEAL

Elizabeth F. Napoli

Board Secretary/Executive Director

Date

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2025

Page 14 of 14




Page 1 of 43

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

2025 LOW INCOME
HOUSING TAX CREDIT
QUALIFIED ALLOCATION
PLAN

Approved by GHURA BOC for
Public Comment Period
(September 30, 2025)

GHURA developed this Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) which sets forth (1) the criteria to evaluate and allocate
tax credits to projects which best meet the housing needs of Guam, and (2) the procedure to monitor for
compliance with the provisions of the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 1 of 93



Page 2 of 43

Contents
L 000 0 s L1 ot o 5
A. LW INCOME HOUSING TaAX CTOAIL oeurreurreurersreesrersreeseesseesseesseesserssesssesssesssesssesssessssssesssssssesssesssassssasessss st st ssssssssssssasas 5
B. PUIPOSE ANA SCOPE .ueuueereeusiesreruseeuseesseessessesssessessseessessseesse s s s et s s s s ss s bbb s R R bbbt 5
C. Abbreviated QAP APPLICALION PTOCESS c.ucuueereerseesseesrersseessesssesssesssessesssesssssssessssessesssesssessssssssssssssesssesssssssesssssssssasssssssssssanes 5
D. The PUDIC INPUL PTOCESS .uueeueeureeureenreessesssesseessesseessesssesssesssesssesssessssssesssssssesssssssesssessse s sssessesssasssesssssssasssesssssssessssssnssses 6
E. HOUSING NEEAS ASSESSITIENL ...eurreueeureesrersresseesseesseessessseessesssesssesssessssssesssasssesssssssesssesssesssesssessasssasssasssssssesssesssesssessssssssssnes 6
IL AllOCAtION Of CreditS... . 7
FL U072 S U 0 0 U =1 o) (=P PP 7
B. ThreShold REQUITEIMENLES ... iuuiereeereeseeeetseisseesseesseesseesseessesssesssss s ssssesss e s s s s bbb s s s bbb 8
1L Y] (L0008 L) T 11
Criteria 1. (0-20 Points) Project Location and PrOXIMILY........c.cceeeuecereeseesseesserssesssessseessessssssesssessesssssssssssesssssssesssesssesasessnes 12
Criteria 2. (0-18 Points) Project Financial Feasibility /VIabiliy .........cc.seeueesreeuseesmeenserseesereeesseseesseessessseessesssesssesssesssesssesnnes 13
Criteria 3. (0-12 Points) ProjeCt CharaCteTiStICS . . eeueesseesseesrerssersserssesssesssesssessesssssssessssessesusesssesssessssssssssasssesssssssssssesssssasesanes 14
Criteria 4. (0-15 Points) The Populations Served by the PIOJECE ......cureereereeureemeeereesseessesseesessesssesseessssssessssessesssesssessesanes 15
Criteria 5. (0-12 Points) Developer/Owner, and Management Team Experience and Capacity. .......occeeeeseeseeseessersneennes 17

Criteria 6. (0-5 Points) The Community Support and Involvement for the Project and its Impact on the Neighborhood 19

Criteria 7. (2-8 Points) The Affordability of the Rents and the Length of the Affordability Period.....cocoeereeereerernneens 20
Criteria 8. (0-6 Points) Increase in the Extended Use Period / Conversion to Homeownership .........ccveeeeesseenseesreeseenes 21
Criteria 9. (0-2 Points) Local/Federal GOVEINMENt SUPPOIT ...veurevueesrersrereesseesseesseesseessesssesssesssesssessssssesssesssssssesssesssesasesanes 22
Criteria 10. (0-1 Points) Qualified Non-Profit OrganiZation .........ccueceseesseesseesseesserssersseessessssssessesssasssssssssssesssesssesssssssessesanes 23
Criteria 11. (0-2 Points) QUAlified CENSUS TIACE cvvuureuerueesrersrerseeseesseessessseessesssesssesssesssesssessssssssssssssasssesssssssesssssssssusesssesasesnnes 24
Criteria 12. (0-1 Points) Public HOUSING WaItiNg LISES....urvuureereeeeesseesreesseessessserssesssesssesssessssssessssssasssssssssssesssesssesssssssssssesanes 25
Criteria 13. (0-1 Points) Project will Receive Project-Based Rental ASSIStANCe.........ueeurerseeemesseeereessemsseessessseessersseessesssesnes 26
Criteria 14. (0-1 Points) Historic Nature of the PrOJECE. ... e reeseesseesseesseeseeseese e sesssesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssanes 27
Criteria 15. (0-7 POINES) DEVEIOPET FEE c...curieueeureeueesrernseessessesessseesseessesssssssesssessse s s st st sesssesssas s asssssasanssanes 28
IV. 2T L1 G 5 L0 0 29
\' L T, 30
VL Compliance MoNitoring Plan ... sssssssssass 31
010001 TP 31
COMPIIANCE covveeveeereesseesreessessseessesseessessseesseesseessee s s e s E e R eSS R RS SRR £ 4 AE R AR R AR R bbb 31
QUALITTING HOUSEROIAS -.vvuvreueesrerseetseeuseesseesseesseesse e esse s s s seess s s ess s s b bbb e bR bbb 33
) L2t 0 (00 (0) TP 35
N Tu 0] ) ) PP 35

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 2 of 93



Page 3 of 43

AUAIES e rvv1renseeesrees e sseessses s ses s sesseeessees s s s8R EER R8RSR RS S R RS R R R R RS R SRR 35
Rural Housing Service (RHS) and Tax-exempt Bond ISSUE PrOJECES......ccuureureeueesrerssersseessersesssesseessesssesssesssessseessesssesssesssesnnes 36
REPOTtING REGUITEIMENTS. .cuivureuresrerseessesreseesessesssesessessssssessessssssesses s sesses s se s s s e s sebsEsE R E R E R E s E e ann s 36
BB ottt RS 36
NON-COMPIANCE PENAIIES .uvveueeeeereeuseesseesseesseessessseessebsesssesssessssseessesssessssessessse s bbb bbb e bR R bbb 37
EXEENAEA USE PEIIOU ....vuueessermsiersiessesessessssess s sssesssssssssssssessssesssssss s ss s s s s s s s n s 37
BAPPEAL ettt tsees ettt et a s s R AR R RS R RS £ AEEEEAEE AR AR SRR SRR AR e AR AR 38
013 TP 38
20 01 1 o 39
INCOME AVETraging GUIAEIINES ... rieriereereireeseeseetsecsseeseessees e essse bbbt s ss s s ss s bbb 39
20 01 1 o . 40
IMIATKET STUAY -.rvueeueeneeeseeuseesseesseessesssesssesssesssessse e ssesssessesssessssessesss s xR b SRR SRR AR bbb e 40
L0 01 1 0 D 41
Administrative Procedure for LIHTC Program Appeal REVIEW..........ereenmeenseenseeseesseessessesssessesssesseenes 41

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 3 of 93



Page 4 of 43

This place is left intentionally blank.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 4 of 93



Page 5 of 43

|. Introduction

A. Low Income Housing Tax Credit
The Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program, created by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, is intended to
encourage the Construction or rehabilitation of low-income rental units. The LIHTC program provides tax
incentives to developers who build or rehabilitate affordable rental housing for low-income households. The
LIHTC program is administered by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and state housing finance agencies
(HFAs). GHURA has been designated the HFA responsible for administering the LIHTC program.

The LIHTC program is authorized under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. The QAP is authorized under
Section 42(m)(1)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code. This Section requires each state to develop a QAP that is
consistent with the LIHTC program’s overall goals and objectives.

B. Purpose and Scope
The purpose of this QAP is to establish the policies and procedures for the allocation of Low-Income Housing
Tax Credits (LIHTCs) in Guam. The QAP provides guidance to developers, investors, and other stakeholders on the
criteria and priorities that the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (the "Agency") will use to award
LIHTCs to eligible affordable housing projects.

This QAP is intended to support GHURA’s mission of promoting the development of safe, decent, and
affordable housing for low-income households in Guam. Through the LIHTC program, the Agency seeks to
incentivize the private sector to invest in the development and preservation of affordable rental housing that
serves the needs of low-income households.

The QAP establishes the eligibility requirements, scoring criteria, and other policies and procedures that the
Agency will use to allocate LIHTCs to eligible projects. The QAP also describes the public input process, the
Application process, and the compliance and monitoring procedures that the Agency will use to ensure that
LIHTC projects meet the program's requirements.

The QAP is based on the Agency's analysis of the state's housing needs, market conditions, and other relevant
factors. The QAP reflects the Agency's priorities for this year and is subject to change based on changes in housing
needs, LIHTC demand, and other factors.

The QAP is not intended to establish binding rules or regulations, but rather to provide guidance to developers,
investors, and other stakeholders on the Agency's LIHTC allocation process. The Agency may make exceptions or
modifications to the QAP on a case-by-case basis if it determines that such exceptions or modifications are
necessary to further the program's goals and objectives.

C. Abbreviated QAP Application Process

While it has been the normal practice for GHURA to conduct QAP Application processes to incorporate two
allocation cycles, GHURA has determined that there is a compelling need to conduct an abbreviated QAP
Application Process in 2025 in light of the non-award of CY2024 credits. Credits are available to allocate over
two years. The two-year timeline for CY2024 credits to be allocated is December 31, 2025. The QAP timetable
in Section II A. reflects this abbreviated QAP Application Process timeline. The Public Input Process discussed
in the following Item D is thus of particular importance to the 2025 QAP Application Process as we intend to
execute as robust an application process as is practicable.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 5 of 93



Page 6 of 43

D. The Public Input Process
The public input process for LIHTC typically involves several steps. First, GHURA will hold a public meeting or
hearing to gather input from interested parties, including developers, community Organizations, and
residents. These meetings provide an opportunity for stakeholders to share their perspectives on the states
affordable housing needs, and to offer suggestions for how LIHTC can be used to address those needs.

Once GHURA has received input from stakeholders, it will develop the QAP based on Guam’s priorities and
criteria for awarding tax credits to developers. The QAP is then made available to the public for comment which
is hosted by the agency. After the public comment hearing, GHURA will consider the feedback, finalize the QAP
and open it up for developers to submit an application.

E. Housing Needs Assessment
Guam’s current rental market is strong due to the driven presence of military personnel and the rising costs
for residential Construction. Individuals and families are finding rental units are for more desirable than
mortgages due to the high cost of living. Despite the numerous LIHTC projects throughout island, publichousing,
and housing assistance programs, there is still a high demand for affordable housing. In addition, populations
such as the disabled, elderly, veterans, and the homeless are finding a scarcity in affordable housing to meet
their special needs.

In order to alleviate the pressures or demand, Guam through this QAP should consider the following:

Studio, 1-bedoom, or 2-Bedroom units for individuals/smaller families
3- or 4-Bedroom units for larger families

Veteran Housing

Elderly Housing units

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 6 of 93



Page 7 of 43

[I.  Allocation of Credits

This QAP sets forth (1) the criteria to evaluate and allocate tax credits to projects which best meet the housing needs
of Guam, and (2) the procedure to monitor for compliance with the provisions of the LIHTC Program.

This allocation plan shall be effective for LIHTC reservations and awards of calendar year 2024 and 2025 funds
allocated to Guam by the IRS. The QAP is subject to amendment by the GHURA Board of Commissioners.

The QAP will utilize a point system to rank projects based upon the Evaluation criteria established. The ranking of
projects, along with all other relevant data, will determine the priorities to be followed by GHURA in allocating tax
credits to the projects under consideration. The scores derived from the point system will be a component of the
overall evaluation, and not the sole determining factor for the awarding of tax credits. In addition to the scores
derived, GHURA will review all relevant data required in the application. GHURA retains the option to approve or
reject applications based on GHURA’s assessment of Guam’s housing needs during the period covered by the QAP.
Projects selected under this QAP shall be evaluated as to the minimum amount of tax credits required in order to
make the project feasible.

The 2025 Guam QAP will focus on housing for smaller families, de-concentration of poverty and prevention of disparate
impact to the neighborhood and surrounding community.

GHURA provides greater emphasis on larger projects wherein 80% of the project will consists of 0-to-2-
bedroom units. There will be no cap as to how many units for the development, however, projects will be
encouraged to maximize the number of units developed using the maximum number of credits possible.

Guam's 2025 tax credit allocation available for allocation is $6,815,000, comprised of $3,360,000 (issued under Rev.
Procedure 2023-34 for CY2024 allocation) and $3,455,000 (issued under Rev. Procedure 2024-40 for CY2025 allocation).

The Board of Directors has approved the issuance of an allocation reservation of 2025 tax credits in an amount
not to exceed $1,793,120 to Flores Rosa Gardens LLC for the Flores Rosa Gardens development. This action reflects
the Board’s commitment to supporting the project and ensuring the allocated credits are reserved specifically for
this development in accordance with applicable program requirements and guidelines. A total of $5,021,880 in
credits is available for award net of this reservation.

Applicants seeking housing credit allocations in excess of the total credit allocation available for award must demonstrate
the financial capability to show that the project can be scaled to fit the available 2025 funding. Due to the abbreviated
timeline, forward commitments of future allocations will not be entertained, except in the event of a tie, as decided
and determined by the GHURA BoC at time of award(s). GHURA supports and encourages applicants to consider
the merits of mixed financing in pursuit of sustainable affordable development.

A. QAP Timetable

The QAP timeline is as follows:

e October 01, 2025 to October 13, 2025 - Public Comment Period

e October 14, 2025 - Presentation to GHURA BOC for approval

*  Qctober 15,2025 to November 19, 2025 - QAP/Application Open to the Public

* November 19, 2025 - Application Closes/Final Submissions

*  November 20, 2025 to December 01, 2025 - Evaluation Panel Review/Final Scoring
e December 02,2025 - Final Recommendation to the GHURA BOC

e December 09, 2025 - Award Decision

e December 31, 2025 - Final day Carryover Allocation Submission

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 7 of 93



Page 8 of 43

B. Threshold Requirements

There are several threshold requirements for housing developments receive tax credits both on the federal and state
level.
1. Federal Threshold Requirements

a) The project must be a residential rental property (either new Construction or rehab).

b) The property owner must commit to one of two possible low-income occupancy rules—the 20-50 rule,
which stipulates that at least 20 percent of the units must be occupied by households with incomes at or
below 50 percent of the area median income, or the 40-60 rule, which requires at least 40 percent of the
units mustbe occupied by households at or below 60 percent of the area median income.

¢) The affordable units have maximum rent levels (including utilities) set at 30 percent of gross household
income for households at the maximum income limit. For example, if a unit is restricted to households
earning 60 percent of AMI,ahousehold witha grossincome of 50 percent of AMI would have to spend more
than 30 percent of their income on rent. Some households fill that gap with other housing assistance, such
as housing vouchers.

d) Tax credits are allocated only for the Construction costs of the affordable units—so-called “qualified
Construction costs”—though the project could have a mix of affordable and market- rate units and could
include commercial and/or community space.

e) Property owners must operate under the income and rent restrictions for at least 30 years.

2. GHURA’s Threshold Requirements
a) SetAsides - Applicants will determine which set aside they will utilize for the project.

i. 9% Credits Set Aside: Applicants are advised that the agency will administer 9% LIHTC credits
only to be used for the following:

a. Construction of a New Building. The term “New Building”, as defined by Section 42 of the
IRC, is “a building the original use of which begins with the taxpayer.” Rehabilitation of
existing inventory but excluding Acquisition costs of real estate, buildings, and depreciable
assets from eligible basis (no Acquisition LIHTC).

b. Substantial Rehabilitation projects that do not have other federal funds. Federal funds include
loans and bonds with below market- rate interest. Rehabilitation is “substantial” if a
minimum amount is spent on each rent-restricted lower-income unit or 10% is spent on the
“eligible basis” (Eligible Basis = Total Development Costs - Land Acquisition) during a 24-
month period, whichever is greater.

ii. Income Averaging Set Aside
The Consolidated Appropriations of 2018 established a new income averaging set aside for LIHTC
developments. (Please refer to Appendix 1 for income average guidelines.)

b) Market Study: A comprehensive Market Study of the housing needs of low-income individuals in the area to
be served by the project by a disinterested third party must be submitted as part of this application. The
Market Study shall be completed at the Owner’s expense. Any applicant failing to submit a Market Study or
submits a Market Study with a date older than 6 months before the date of Application submission will not be
considered for an award of tax credits. (Market Study requirements are specified in Appendix 2.)

¢) Site Control:

i.  Toreceive consideration for an allocation of tax credits, the applicant must have control of the site
in a form acceptable to GHURA. Evidence of site control must be submitted with the Application.

ii.  Toreceive consideration for a reservation of tax credits, the applicant must have site control in a
form acceptable to GHURA prior to GHURA entering into an allocation with the applicant. All lease

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 8 of 93



k)

Page 9 of 43

terms must extend a minimum of five (5) years past the minimum affordability period.

iii. Atthe time of application, site control shall be substantiated by providing evidence in the form of a
fee simple deed executed land lease, or any other documentation acceptable to GHURA. For
reservation, documentation acceptable to GHURA may include an executed lease or sale option
agreement, or any other documentation acceptable to GHURA. All lease terms must extend a
minimum of five (5) years past the minimum affordability period.

Capital Needs Assessment: (For projects acquiring an existing property. All Units need to be reviewed.) To
ensure that the proposed rehabilitation of the project is adequate and that the property will have a useful life
that exceeds the compliance and additional use period (collectively the Extended Use Period). A capital needs
assessment of the property by a competent third party shall be submitted with the application. A capital needs
assessment is a qualified professional’s opinion of a property’s current physical condition. It identifies
deferred maintenance, physical needs and deficiencies, and material building code violations that affect the
property’s use, structural and mechanical integrity, and future physical and financial needs. The Capital Needs
Assessment shall identify any work that must be completed immediately to address health and safety issues,
violation of Federal or local law, violation of local code, or any work necessary to ensure that the building can
continue to operate as affordable housing.

Public Housing Waitlist/Homeless Services Programs: Applicant shall certify that all low- income units will
be made available to people on the waiting list for public housing, and/or acceptable homeless service
programs. The following shall be submitted with the application:
i. Copy of the letter submitted to the local public housing authority which administers the public
housing waiting lists that units will be available.
ii. Copy of the letter submitted to the Guam Homeless Coalition that provides services and programs to
participating homeless services providers that units will be available.

Smoke Free: All projects will be smoke free. Owners must prohibit smoking in all indoor common areas,
individual living areas (including balconies and car ports), and within 20 feet of building entries or ventilation
intakes. A non-smoking clause must be included in the lease for each household.

Phase [ Environmental Assessment
Required for all applications. For Acquisition/rehabilitation projects, the Phase I Environmental
Assessment should address lead-based paint and asbestos.

Proof of Non-Profit Status

If applying under the Federal non-profit set aside, submit the following:
i.  Articles of Incorporation

ii. Copyofacurrent501(c)(3) IRS Tax Exemption Letter

Minimum Affordability Period

i.  Applicants requesting an award of 9% LIHTC must commit to a minimum affordability period of 45 years.

ii. Acquisition /Rehabilitation of an Existing Building used for housing applicants: affordability period must
also exceed any pre-existing affordability period by no less than 30 years.

Disqualification: GHURA may disqualify an application based on substantive evidence connecting a principal to
not being in good standing with any affordable rental housing program administered by the allocating agency or
the Government of Guam.

Good Standing Policy: GHURA, in its sole discretion, through its agents, may make the determination that a

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 9 of 93



Page 10 of 43

program applicant, including, but not limited to the principal, management agent, consultant, or affiliate is
not in good standing for one or more of the following reasons:

i. Havingan outstanding and unresolved debt to GHURA;
ii. A documented record of unaddressed issues or concerns regarding property management;

ili. Program noncompliance or malfeasance with any affordable housing program administered by the
GHURA;

iv. Program noncompliance or malfeasance with any Federal grant administered by the GHURA;
v. Inclusion in the Federal Debarment list by any principal, management agent, consultant, or affiliate at
the time of Application; or

vi. Other determinations made by the agency based on a pattern of mismanagement or noncompliance as
evidenced by monitoring reviews or other information.

Determinations may be appealed to the agency Board of Commissioners. Appeals shall be submitted to the
Executive Director within 7 calendar days of the notification of the adverse determination

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 10 of 93



Page 11 of 43

lll.  Selection Criteria

Each Application will be evaluated and awarded pointsin accordance with the following criteria. Unless otherwise
indicated, all references to low-income unit(s) or low-income rental unit(s) shall mean low- income housing tax
credit unit(s).

Application must have a minimum score of 77 out of 111 points to be considered for award. Selection Criteria are as

follows:
CRITERIA POINTS
1 | Project Location and Proximity 20
2 | Project Financial Feasibility/Viability 18
3 | Project Characteristics 12
4 | Populations Served by the Project 15
5 | Developer, Owner, and Management Team Experience and Capacity 12
6 | The Community Support and Involvement for the Project and its Impact on 5
the Neighborhood

7 | The Affordability of the Rents and the Length of the Affordability Period
8 | Increase in the Extended Use Period / Conversion to Homeownership
9 | Local/Federal Government Support

10 | Qualified Non-Profit Organization

11 | Qualified Census Tract

12 | Public Housing Waiting Lists

13 | Project will Receive Project-Based Rental Assistance

14 | Historic Nature of the Project

15 | Developer Fee

N RN RN o

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 11 of 93



Criteria 1. (0-20 Points) Project Location and Proximity

Page 12 of 43

The location of the project and its proximity to amenities, services, transportation, and jobs will have an impact on
the quality of life and economic opportunities for low-income households. Please note this criterion consists of four
subcategories: (1) proximity to public transportation; (2) proximity to grocery stores; (3) proximity to health care
facilities; and (4) proximity to employment hubs. Each subcategory will be worth up to 5 points, depending on the
distance from the proposed location to the nearest amenity or service. Distance is measured by driving distance using
Google maps or a similar service. Please provide evidence through market study Points will be awarded as follows:

Subcategory Distance Points Available
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
) ) 5-10 miles 4 Points
Public Transportation
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
. 5-10 miles 4 Points
Grocery Store/Shopping
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
. 5-10miles 4 Points
Health Care Facilities
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
5-10 miles 4 Points
Employment Hubs
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 12 of 93



Page 13 of 43

Criteria 2. (0-18 Points) Project Financial Feasibility /Viability

The financial feasibility and viability of the project and its sources and uses of funds helps ensure that project is
economically sound, has sufficient funding resources, and can sustain its operations and affordability over time.
Applicants should consider including commitment letters, letters of interest or term sheets from experienced LIHTC
investors. This criterion is worth 18 points and will consists of three subcategories: (1) debt coverage ratio; (2) operating
expense ratio; and (3) sources and uses of funds. The points are awarded as follows:

Subcategory Standard or Benchmark Points Available
The ratio of net operating 6 points for a ratio 1.2
incometodebtservice . .

Debt Coverage Ratio pay.ments. A higher ratio 4 points for a ratio between 1.15 and 1.19
indicates ability to repay debt 2 points for a ratio between 1.10 and 1.14

0 points for a ratio below 1.10

The ratio of operating expensesto | 6 points for a ratio 45%
effective gross income. A lower
ratio indicates greater efficiency

in managing costs. 2 points for a ratio between 51% and 55%

4 points for a ratio between 46% and 50%
Operating Expense ratio

0 points for aratio above 55%

The amount and type of funding 6 points for percentage of equity above
sources and how they are 80%
allocated to different project

costs. A higher percentage of 4 points for percentage of equity between 70% and

Sources and uses of funds | equity indicates greater financial 80%
strength and commitment. 2 points for percentage of equity between 60% and
70%

0 points for percentage of equity below 60%

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 13 of 93



Criteria 3. (0-12 Points) Project Characteristics

Page 14 of 43

The design and quality of the project are important in providing affordable housing that is attractive, functional,
durable and comfortable for the residents and the community. The efficiency, accessibility, and sustainability features
of a project are important for reducing the environmental impact of the housing, lowering the operating costs, and
enhancing the health and well-being of the residents. Projects are encouraged to incorporate as much features as

possible.
. Points
Subcategor Description
Eory P Available
Efficient floor plans that maximize usable space, adequate
storage space in each unit, optimal natural lighting and ventilation, and
Unit Layout/Space Efficiency | innovative design solutions to optimize small spaces. 2 points
80% of the project should consist of Studio/1bd/2bd units.
Barrier-free access to units and common areas, adherence to
accessibility guidelines for doorways, hallways, and bathroom, and
Universal Design and inclusion of adaptive design features for individuals with disabilities.
Accessibility 2 points
If development is a multi-family multi-story project, ground level units
should incorporate designs for individual with disabilities.
Design that complements the existing architectural style of the
Architectural Compatibility | neighborhood; use of materials and colors that blend well with the 2 points
and Neighborhood surroundings; and engagement with community stakeholders to
Integration incorporate their feedback.
Integration of energy-efficient building envelope and insulations,
specification of high-efficiency HVAC systems and lighting, Incorporation
Energy Efficiency and of renewable energy generation systems, and use of sustainable materials| 2 points
Sustainability Design and Construction practices.
Projects are encouraged to incorporate green building certifications i.e.
energy efficiency, LEED certifications and should provide evidence.
. Provision of common areas for social interaction and communication, .
Community Spaces and . , . ) s 2 points
" inclusion of amenities such as playgrounds, gardens, or fitness facilities.
Amenities
Durability and Maintenance | Selection of high-quality Construction materials and finishes and 2 points
implementation of durable and low maintenance building systems.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 14 of 93



Criteria 4. (0-15 Points) The Populations Served by the Project

Page 15 of 43

Successful LIHTC projects service populations of variety both to address the housing needs of the community and give
opportunities for special populations to live in affordable housing. Points will be awarded to populations with special
housing needs, homeless and at-risk populations, and certain preferences. Projects are encouraged to incorporate
one or more types of populations and provide evidence to what extent of services or amenities will be available to
each in the application.

Subcategory

Description

Points
Available

Special
Needs

Physical Disabilities: preference may be given to projects that allocate a percentage
of units to individuals or households with physical disabilities, ensuring
accessibility features and accommodations.

Mental Health Conditions: projects that provide supportive housing or partner
with service providers to offer mental health services may receive additional
points.

Seniors: preference may be given to projects specifically designed for elderly
individuals or households with features that support aging in place, such as grab
bars, accessible entrances, or proximity to senior centers.

The project will set-aside at least 20% of all units for tenant populations with
special housing needs. Persons with special housing needs may include the
physically and mentally disabled. Units intended to serve the homeless must be
used as permanent supportive housing, as regulation forbids the use of LIHTC
projects as transient homeless shelters. To receive consideration for this
criterion:

A. The project must commit to provide case management or services specific
to this population or special facilities to accommodate the physically
disabled. (Please provide details of the services and/or special facilities i.e.
what ADA standards and designs will be incorporated in unit Construction
or facilities? How many units will meet ADA standards, if any?

B. The Market Study shall specifically address the housing needs for the special
needs group.

5 Points

Homeless
And At-Risk
Populations

Homelessness: projects that reserve units for individuals or households
transitioning from homelessness may receive priority.

Foster Youth or Emancipated Youth: preference may be given to projects
that allocate a portion of units specifically for foster youth aging out of the system
or supportive services for these individuals.

Domestic Violence Survivors: projects that prioritize housing for survivors of
domestic violence and offer supportive services may receive additional points.

5 Points

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 15 of 93



Page 16 of 43

Preferences

Local Residents: preference may be given to individuals or families who
currently reside in the local community or have strong ties to the area, promoting
community stability and integration.

Veterans: projects that allocate units or collaborate with veteran support
Organizations to provide housing for military veterans may receive preference.

Displaced Individuals or Families: special consideration may be given to
households that have been displaced due to natural disasters, eminent domain,

or other emergencies, ensuring they have access to affordable housing.

Individuals with Children: The Project will serve tenant populations of individuals
with children and provide evidence through the service of programs for
children.

Developer’s policies must clearly articulate the way displacement impacts to
affected individuals and families will be executed to best address the needs of
individuals seeking housing at the time of displacement due to natural
disasters, eminent domain, or other emergencies.

5 Points

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 16 of 93



Criteria 5. (0-12 Points) Developer/Owner, and Management Team Experience and Capacity.

Page 17 of 43

Description

Points
Available

Developer/Owner
Experience

Developer/Owner (or any member/staff of the development
team) has a record of successfully completing LIHTC projects.

Developer/Owner has an understanding of the LIHTC program,
Application process, and compliance requirements.

Developer/Owner has the financial stability and capacity i.e., the
ability to secure financing, managing costs, and handle any
unexpected expenses that may arise during the project.

6 points

Developer/Owner (or any member/staff of the development
team) has no record of LIHTC projects but has experience of building
affordable housing projects of similar design.

Developer/Owner has made efforts to research and understand the
LIHTC program, the Application process and compliance
requirements

Developer/Owner has the financial stability and capacity i.e, the ability
to secure financing, managing costs, and handle any unexpected
expenses that may arise during the project.

3 points

Developer who has a track record of chronic or substantive
non-compliance, returned allocations or failed projects.

Developer has no experience in LIHTC projects or the LIHTC program

0 points

Management Team

Management team has experience with LIHTC properties, a
track record of successfully meeting LIHTC compliance
requirements, understanding of income certifications and
handling the unique challenges that come with managing
affordable housing

Management team can assess the property for maintenance and
upkeep to maintain high-quality standards, addressing maintenance
issues promptly and can conduct regular inspections to ensure
property remains in good condition

Management team has the ability to provide supportive services
to low-income residents, can emphasize tenant satisfaction,
communication, and responsiveness.

6 points

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 17 of 93



Page 18 of 43

Management team has no experience in servicing LIHTC
properties but has experience in servicing projects of similar design.

Management team will be able assess the property for maintenance
and upkeep to maintain high-quality standards, addressing
maintenance issues promptly and can conduct regular inspections to

Management Team ensure property remains in good condition 3 points
(continued from previous | Management team will have the ability to provide supportive services
page) to low-income residents, can emphasize tenant satisfaction,

communication, and responsiveness.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 18 of 93



Page 19 of 43

Criteria 6. (0-5 Points) The Community Support and Involvement for the Project and its Impact on the

Neighborhood
LIHTC projects should take into consideration the following in regards to the community support and involvement:
Subcategory Description OIS
Available
Community Engagement | Project will include local stakeholders and decision-making processes. 1 Point
Strategy
Partnerships with Local Project will partner with local Organizations that provide support 1 Point
Organizations services to residents
Community Development | Project developer/management team will support community
[nitiatives development initiatives beyond the LIHTC property, such as support
for economic development or neighborhood revitalization projects. 1 Point
Community Outreach and | Project will make efforts to educate the community about the LIHTC
Education program and affordable housing options, including hosting | ;p.
informational sessions or participating in community events.
Project management team will consider mechanisms for collection
and incorporating tenant input and feedback. This could include
tenant meetings, surveys, suggestion boxes or other channels of
Tenant Input o ;
and Feedback communication. The management team that actively seeks and values | 1 pyint
tenant input demonstrates the commitment to resident
empowerment and community building for better LIHTC projects.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 19 of 93



Page 20 of 43

Criteria 7. (2-8 Points) The Affordability of the Rents and the Length of the Affordability Period

The affordability of rents are critical for the LIHTC developments. Factors such as the percentage of units set aside for
low-income tenants compared to the Area Median Gross Income (AMGI) helps ensure the commitment to maintain
affordable rentsand to keep it within the LIHTC program guidelines.

Description Points
P Available
100% of the project to households earning 60% or less of AMGI 8 Points
Affordability of Rents 60% of the project to households earning 60% or less of AMGI, or 80% of | 4 Points

the project to households earning 50% of less of AMGI.

40% of the project to households earning 60% or less of AMGI, or 60% | 2 Points
of the project to households earning 50% or less of AMGI

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 20 of 93



Page 21 of 43

Criteria 8. (0-6 Points) Increase in the Extended Use Period / Conversion to Homeownership

LIHTC developments have aminimum compliance period requirement of 15 years, but some developments may have
longer commitments. LIHTC developments may also have plans for units to be converted to homeownership for the
residents after the initial 15-year compliance period has expired.

D inti Points
escription Available
15-year compliance period plus 46 years or more 6 Points
Length of Affordability 15-year compliance period plus 30 years extended use period 4 Points
Period
15-year compliance period plus 15 years extended use period 2 Points
15-year compliance period no extended use period 0 Points
OR
Conversion to The development will be converted to homeownership for the residents | 6 Points
Homeownership after the initial fifteen (15)-year compliance period has expired.

Applicants shall submit their plan for conversion to homeownership to be evaluated for feasibility and compliance
with all regulations (Section 42, Fair Housing, and all other funding requirements).

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 21 of 93



Page 22 of 43

Criteria 9. (0-2 Points) Local/Federal Government Support

The project will receive a below market loan or grant from a federal agency or Government of Guam agency other than
GHURA which, in total amounts to 10% or more of the total development cost.

Description OIS

P Available
The project has not applied for a below market loan or grant from a federal agency
or Government of Guam agency, or if the total amount applied for is less than 10% of total 0 Points

development costs.

The project has applied for a below market loan or grant from a federal agency or
Government of Guam agency. Documentation must provide evidence that an Application for 1Point
financing has been submitted.

The project has received a commitment from a federal agency or Government of
Guam agency. A copy of a commitment letter or contractual agreement must be included in 2 Points
the application.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 22 of 93



Page 23 of 43

Criteria 10. (0-1 Points) Qualified Non-Profit Organization

The project will be owned by a qualified non-profit Organization as defined in Section 42(h)(5)(B), (C) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Points

Descripti
escription Available

If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points

If the answer to the question is YES, the Organization must be a qualified non-profit
Organization at End of Application submission. Organization must exist in and be qualified to do
business in Guam. In addition, the following must be submitted:

1. Articles of Incorporation

2. Copyofacurrent501(c)(3) IRS Tax Exemption Letter for the Qualified Non-
Profit Organization

3. Mostrecent Treasury Form 990 with all supporting documentation, as filed
withtheIRS

1 Point

The Qualified Non-Profit Organization is required to have a physical office in Guam.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 23 of 93



Page 24 of 43

Criteria 11. (0-2 Points) Qualified Census Tract

Project characteristics, including whether the project includes the use of existing housing as part of a community
revitalization plan

Project is located in a Qualified Census Tract. The project will redevelop existing housing, which contributes to a
concerted community revitalization plan as determined by GHURA.

Description Points
P Available
The project is located in a Qualified Census Tract. 1Point

The project will contribute to a community revitalization plan.

(Copy of the plan to be submitted with the completed Application for GHURA’s review to claim the 1 Point
point.)
The project is neither located in a Qualified Census Tract nor contributing to a 0 Points

community revitalization plan.

To receive consideration for this criterion, applicant must provide an explanation on how this project is in compliance
with such plan and its benefit to the overall community. The applicant must provide a letter of interest or a binding
agreement with the government agency administering the community revitalization plan.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 24 of 93



Page 25 of 43

Criteria 12. (0-1 Points) Public Housing Waiting Lists

Project must market their developments to the local PHA waiting lists including Section 8 existing waiting lists. The application
must contain a letter to the PHA.

Points Available

If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points

If the answer to the question is YES 1Point

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 25 of 93



Page 26 of 43

Criteria 13. (0-1 Points) Project will Receive Project-Based Rental Assistance

Project will be receiving project-based rental assistance subsidies which would result in eligible tenants paying
approximately 30% of their gross monthly income towards rent. Eligible programs shall include, but not be limited to, the
Rural Development 515 Loan Program and HUD Housing Choice Voucher/Section 8 Project-Based Rental Assistance

Program.
Points Available
If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points
If the answer to the question is YES 1 Point

If the whole project has a secured authorization for project-based subsidies then 1
point will be awarded.

Applicants are advised that GHURA, in its capacity as the local administering PHA, will not entertain requests for HUD
HCV/S8 PBRA Program vouchers for developments receiving an allocation or reservation of tax credits under the 2025
QAP.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 26 of 93



Page 27 of 43

Criteria 14. (0-1 Points) Historic Nature of the Project
The proposed project will preserve the historic nature of an existing building.

The proposed project involves the preservation of a building(s) on a national or state historic registry.

Points Available

If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points

If the answer to the question is YES 1Point

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 27 of 93



Criteria 15.(0-7 Points) Developer Fee

Page 28 of 43

The applicant elects to limit the total Developer Fee as a percentage of the total development cost (excluding developer
fee and reserves) as presented in the application. The Developer Fee includes total fees paid to the Developer,
including, but is not limited to, consulting fees, project management fees, developer overhead, and developer fees.

Architectural, Engineering, Accounting, and Legal fees are notincluded as the Developer Fee.

Applicants receive scores for this criterion based on the table below. Please note the different categories for New
Construction vs. Acquisition / Rehabilitation applications.

Acquisition / Rehabilitation
New Construction
Fee on Acquisition Fee on Rehabilitation

Fee Points | Fee Points | Fee Points
18% > Fee 2 16% 0 13%>Fee211% 0 18% > Fee 2 16% 0
16% > Fee > 14% 1 11% >Fee29% 1 16% > Fee > 14% 1
14% > Fee 2 12% 2 Fee <9% 3 14% > Fee 2 12% 2
12% > Fee 2 10% 3 Fee<9% 4
10% > Fee 2 8% 5

Fee <8% 7

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 28 of 93



Page 29 of 43

IV. Rights of GHURA

The awarding of tax credits rests solely with the GHURA Board of Commissioners. Further, GHURA retains its
discretionary authority to approve or disapprove any post-award modifications to the project.

GHURA reserves the right to disapprove any Applicationor project for any tax credit reservation or allocation,
regardless of ranking under the criteria and point system as contained in Sections III of this QAP. GHURA shall have the
authority to defer consideration of any Application if such deferral is deemed in the best interest of meeting housing
needs.

Tie
In the event of a tie in the scores, Applications will be ranked according to tax credits per unit favoring the
development that requires the fewest tax credits per unit.

GHURA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to do the following:
(i) Hold back a portion of the annual federal housing credit ceiling for use during later reservation cycles,

(ii) Carryover a portion of the current year's housing credit ceiling for allocation to a project which has not yet
been Placed in Service, and

(iii) Issue a reservation for the next year's housing credit ceiling.

GHURA is required under the IRC of 1986, as amended, to allocate the minimum amount of tax credits required to
make a project feasible. The determination of the amount of tax credits to be reserved or allocated to a project shall
be made solely at the discretion of GHURA. GHURA may, at the time of issuance of the IRS Form(s) 8609 for the project,
decrease the amount of tax credits allocated to a project based on the actual cost and financing of the project.

GHURA may, at its sole discretion, conduct a special round after the final scheduled round for a year for projects
(i) where the applicant’s tax counsel has attested to an itemization of how the ten percent test prescribed by Internal
Revenue Code Section 42(h)(1)(E) will be met; (ii) which have no deficient Application items; and (iii) for which all
exhibits have been submitted ("Year-End Round"). Year-End Round projects will receive a Carryover Allocation, not a
reservation of LIHTCs, which may contain certain conditions and time periods for satisfying them. The circumstances
for conducting a Year-End Round are (1) availability of LIHTCs and (2) potential loss of LIHTC credits to the National Pool.
When a Year-End Round is being conducted, applicants need to satisfy the above requirements in order to receive a
Carryover Allocation; and LIHTCs will be processed on a first-come-first-served basis and allocated to the extent
available and to the extent applications can be processed.

GHURA in no way represents or warrants to any interested party which may include, but is not limited to, any
developer, project owner, investor or lender that the project s, in fact, feasible or viable.

No GHURA member, officer, agent or employee shall be personally liable concerning any matters arising out of, or in
relation to, the reservation or allocation of Low-Income Housing Tax Credits.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 29 of 93



Page 30 of 43

V. Fees

The following fees are associated with the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit program. GHURA reserves the right to
adjust the fees due to changing circumstances annually each January 1. All fees shall be paid via Cashier’s Check and
made payable to Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority.

Application Fee

An Application Fee of $1,500 per application shall be payable at the time of submission of the application.
The fee shall be the same for all applicants.

Good Faith Deposit

A good faith deposit of ten percent (10%) of the first year’s federal tax credits reserved shall be payable at the time the
executed binding agreement is submitted to GHURA. Upon allocation and issuance of the IRS Form 8609, eighty
percent (80%) of the good faith deposit shall be retained by GHURA as an administrative fee. The remainder of the
good faith deposit may be refunded to the applicant in the sole discretion of GHURA. Failure to meet any of the elections
made in the scoring criteria, participation elements, or requests for additional credits at the time of application
or after may result in the retention of the entire good faith deposit by GHURA.

Compliance Monitoring Fee

Please refer to Section VI. Compliance Monitoring Plan for more details regarding the Compliance Monitoring Fee.
Qualified Contract Processing Fee

Qualified Contract Fee of $150 per unit for all units

Attorney'’s Fees and Costs:

In the event of a dispute or litigation regarding a QAP Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect
reasonable Attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 30 of 93



Page 31 of 43

VI. Compliance Monitoring Plan

Summary

GHURA shall monitor compliance with all applicable Federal Program requirements for the period a project is
committed to providing low-income rental units. GHURA will require that all qualified tenants of a project be
certified upon occupancy and be re-certified annually to ensure compliance. Projects shall be required to
maintain copies of the income certification for each tenant on forms approved by GHURA. Projects will also be
required to maintain records regarding number of rental units (including number of bedrooms and size of
square footage of each bedroom); percentage of total rental units that are low-income units; rent charged on each
rental unit including utility allowances; number of occupants in each low-income unit for those buildings receiving tax
credits prior to 1990; documentation regarding vacancies in the building; eligible and qualified basis of the building at
the end of the first year of the credit period, and at the end of each year until required set-asides are met; and
character and use of the nonresidential portion of the building that is included in the building's eligible basis, all
in accordance with the rules published by the Internal Revenue Service.

GHURA may perform an audit annually but at a minimum, once every three years, and shall have access to all books
and records upon notice to the project owner.

Annually, owners of low-income housing tax credit projects will be required to certify to GHURA that for the
previousyear,

* the minimum set-aside requirement was met;

= there was no change in the applicable fraction, or an explanation if there was a change; appropriate
income certifications and documentation have been received for each low- income tenant;

e eachlow-income unit was rent-restricted in accordance with the Code;

» all units were for use by the general public and used on a no transient basis (except for transitional
housing for the homeless as provided for in the Code);

» each building was suitable for occupancy, taking into account local health, safety and building codes;

= there was no change in the eligible basis in the project, or an explanation if there was a change;

= alltenant facilities included in the eligible basis were provided on a comparable basis without
charge;

e rentals of vacancies were done in accordance with the Code;

= rentals of units were done in accordance with the Code if any tenant's income increased above the limit
allowed by the Code;

* aRestrictive Covenant document was in effect for the project, for those buildings receiving credits after 1989,
all in accordance with the rules published by the Internal Revenue Service.

If GHURA becomes aware of non-compliance, the Internal Revenue Service shall be notified in accordance with the
rules published by the Internal Revenue Service.

Please consult with your tax Attorney and/or LIHTC consultant regarding Internal Revenue Code regulations.
Owners are responsible for keeping abreast of current LIHTC Program requirements.

The guidelines outlined below in sections B through K pertain to projects allocated Low Income- Housing Tax
Credits in Guam.

Compliance
Owner/Manager Training

Owners, managing agents, and on-site managers should attend or document that they have recently
attended training on management and compliance prior to leasing any units, but no later than receipt of IRS Form
2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 31 of 93



Page 32 of 43

8609, which certifies an allocation of tax credits. Training may be required following significant or repeated
noncompliance events. At minimum, such training should cover key compliance terms, qualified basis
rules, determination of rents, tenant eligibility, file documentation, next available unit procedures
and unit vacancy rules, agency Reporting requirements, record retention requirements, and site visits.

Set Aside

The project must comply with the low-income set-aside requirements of Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code
as chosen by the owner at the time of receiving the credits. The minimum requirements are either:

1. 20 percent or more of the units are occupied by tenants having a household income of 50 percent or less
of the area median gross income (the "20-50 requirement"), or

2. 40 percent or more of the units in the project are occupied by tenants having a household income of 60
percent or less of the area median gross income (the "40-60 requirement").

3. Election of income averaging for new LIHTC developments where LIHTC Qualified Units (Units) may serve
households earning up to 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI) so long as the average income limit of the
Qualified Units is 60% or less of AMI. Designated income levels for Qualified Units may be set at 10% increments
between 20% and 80% of AML. See Appendix 1 for further guidance.

Tenant income is calculated in a manner consistent with the determination of annual income under Section
8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, as directed by the Internal Revenue Code. Area median incomes
are determined annually by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) and are available
from GHURA.

Rent

Units in the project must be rent-restricted to thirty (30) percent of the imputed income limitations based
on unit size as provided in Code Section 42(g)(1). This rent restriction must be maintained throughout the
Term of the Compliance and Extended-use period. See ‘Rent Restrictions ' in this Section for further
information.

Term of Compliance

Projects receiving a LIHTC allocation after January 1, 1990, must comply with eligibility
requirements for the extended use period [initial 15-year period (compliance period), in addition to the 15 or
more years (extended use period)] determined by elections indicated in the Restrictive Covenant Document. The
Restrictive Covenant Document must be recorded before credits are allocated.

Annual Certification

These and other compliance requirements as listed in Section ‘A. Summary’ must be certified annually by the
owner through the submission of the Annual Report. The Annual Report includes the Owner's Certificate of
Continuing Program Compliance and shall be submitted by February 1 of each year throughout the
compliance/extended-use period.

Records Retention

The Annual Report and the supporting documentation verifying the information on the Annual Report must
be kept for a minimum of six (6) years after the due date (with extensions) for filing the federal income tax
return for that year. The records for the first year of the credit period,

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 32 of 93



Page 33 of 43

however, must be retained for at least 6 years beyond the due date (with extensions) for filing the federal income
tax return for the last year of the compliance period of the building, in accordance with published IRS
guidelines.

IRS Form 8609

Owner shall complete Part Il of IRS Form 8609 and submit with subsequent Annual Reports.

Qualified Basis Tracking Sheet (QBTS)

This form shall be submitted annually until the required set-asides are established. Documents will provide
information on original tenants qualifying each building for tax credits minimum set- asides, and other set-
asides.

Status Reports

This report is to be submitted annually by owners in such format as required by GHURA or its Authorized
Delegate to document and track the continuous compliance of tax credit units. The documents report data that
tenants are income eligible at move-in, that the occupants of LIHTC units are re-certified at least on an
annual basis and that the unit rents are restricted. Documentation will also indicate compliance with the
vacant unit rule and 140% rule. The tracking of tax credit units substantiates the maintenance, increase or
reduction of each BIN's qualified basis.

Qualifying Households

Applicants for low-income units should be advised early in their initial visit to the project that there are maximum
income limits which apply to these tax credit qualified units. Management should explain to the tenants that the
Anticipated income of all persons expecting to occupy the unit must be verified and included on a Tenant Income
Certification (TIC) prior to occupancy, and re-certified on an annual basis. Applicants should be informed of other
Internal Revenue Service requirements such as the Student Rule and Recertification.

Unborn Children

In accordance with the HUD Handbook 4350.3, owner shall include unborn children in determining
household size and applicable income limits. If permitted by state laws, owner shall require documentation
of pregnancy in such circumstances.

Student Households

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code, a household comprised entirely of full-time students may
notbe counted as a qualified household, unless the household meets atleast one exception. Refer to the Internal
Revenue Code for additional guidelines on the exceptions. Owner shall utilize a lease provision requiring tenants
to notify managing agent of any change in student status.

Calculating Anticipated Tenant Income

Owner shall qualify tenants by calculating household income using the gross income the household
anticipates it will receive in the 12-month period following the effective date of the

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 33 of 93



Page 34 of 43

income verification or Recertification. Anticipated income should be documented in the tenant file by third
party verification whenever possible, or by an acceptable alternate method of verification with
documentation as to why third-party verification was not available. Owner shall use current circumstances
to project income, unless verification forms or other verifiable documentation indicate that an imminent
change will occur. Owner shall refer to HUD Handbook 4350.3 for guidance on the proper calculation and
verification of income and assets per IRC regulations.

Certification

Upon acceptance of an applicant to the project, a TIC must be completed for the applicant and certified to by
the applicant and the owner. The form is a legal document which, when fully executed, qualifies the
applicants to live in the set-aside units in the project.

The TIC must be executed along with the lease prior to move-in. No one may live in a unit in the projectunless
certified and underlease.

The original copy of the executed TIC form is to be retained in the applicant's file. The TIC and the supporting
documentation verifying the TIC must be kept for a minimum of six (6) years after the due date (with extensions)
for filing the federal income tax return for that year. The records for the first year of the credit period, however,
must be retained for at least 6 years beyond the due date (with extensions) for filing the federal income tax return
for the last year of the compliance period of the building, in accordance with published IRS guidelines.

Recertification

For 100% LIHTC set-aside projects, annual recertifications are not required after January 1,2014. However, Owners
must recertify households at least once on the first anniversary of their initial tenancy.

For projects with less than 100% set-aside:

To ensure each unit is complying with the LIHTC income restrictions, GHURA requires (a) the owner to annually
recertify each tenant's income and household composition and (b) each tenant is to report certain changes in
income and household composition which occur between regularly scheduled Recertification.

If the income of the tenants in a unit who have been previously verified increases above 140 percent of the
applicable income limitation, the unit may continue to be counted as a low-income unit as long as the next
available unit of comparable or smaller size is occupied by a qualified low- income tenant, and the rent continues
to be restricted for the initial unit.

Each tenant's annual recertification is to be completed within one year of last Recertification. The request for
recertification shall be made between 60 and 90 days before the effective date, and it must clearly state that the
tenant has ten (10) calendar days in which to contact the owner to begin recertification processing. The notice
must also state the days and hours available for the interview, the information the tenant should bring to the
interview, and how and whom to contact to schedule the interview.

Upon re-verification of the tenant's income, the owner shall complete a new TIC, which shall be certified to
by the owner or owner's designee.

Past-Due Recertification

A recertification is considered past due if the TIC form for the tenant is not certified by tenant and owner within
twelve months of the last Recertification.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 34 of 93



Page 35 of 43

Rent Restrictions
Projects receiving Low-Income Housing Tax Credits after January 1, 1990 must comply with the following
procedures:

= Units in the project must be rent-restricted to 30% of the imputed income limitations for each unit, based upon
HUD area median incomes and size of units. Rents are imputed by bedroom size in the following manner:
a unit which does not have a separate bedroom - 1 individual; and a unit with 1 or more separate
bedrooms - 1.5 individuals per bedroom.

* Gross rent does not include any payment for various rental assistance programs and supportive
service assistance as outlined in Section 42 of the Code. Gross rent must include any allowance for
utilities.

HUD publishes the area median incomes for each state and territory annually. Updated income limits must be

implemented pursuant to IRS Revenue Ruling 94-57, "Taxpayers may rely on a list of income limits released by

HUD until 45 days after HUD releases a new list of income limits, or

until HUD's effective date for the new list, whichever is later." Rents may be increased accordingly as the area

median income increases.

If the income of the tenants in a unit who have been previously verified increases above 140 percent of the
applicable income limitation, the unit may continue to be counted as a low-income unit as long as the next unit
of comparable or smaller size is occupied by a qualified low-income tenant, and the rent continues to be
restricted for the initial unit.

Eviction of Tenants
Once an eligible tenant has been certified and admitted to the project, the tenant may not be displaced solely
due to an increase in the tenant's household income beyond the restricted limit.

Audits
The project may be subject to a management audit by GHURA or its Authorized Delegate annually but, at a minimum,
once every three years. Notification of an audit shall be given to the owner at least 30 days prior to such audit.
The results of the management audit and the recommendations for corrective action to protect and maintain the
project shall be transmitted to the owner within thirty (30) days following the completion of the audit.

The purpose of the audit will be to conduct a physical inspection of the building and /or project, and, for at least
20 percent of the project's low-income units, to inspect the units and review the low-income certifications,
documentation supporting the certifications, and rent records for the tenants in those units. The audit may also
consist of a review of first year tenant records, a review of the documentation supporting the Annual Report, and
any other documentation necessary for GHURA to make a determination as to whether the project is not in
compliance with the Code.

When conducting tenant file reviews, GHURA's and its Authorized Delegate's reviews shall include, but not be
limited to:

= completed rental application, including certification of assets and disposal of assets, if applicable;

* tenantincome certification completed for move-in and current year, including all required
signatures and dates;

* income verification(s) completed and documented;

» assets verified in accordance with IRC regulations;

» student eligibility documentation;

» lease and lease addendums completed at move-in;

= utility allowance on file;

= review of first year tenant records which qualified the project initially for tax credits

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 35 of 93



Page 36 of 43

The owner shall have a period of thirty (30) days in which to respond to the findings of the management
audit. GHURA shall review the owner's response to determine the extent to which the issues raised in the
management audit letter are addressed. Findings, whether corrected or not, will be reported to the IRS.

See Section ‘Non-compliance Penalties’ for information on Notification to the IRS of any non- compliance
found in the management audit.

Rural Housing Service (RHS) and Tax-exempt Bond Issue Projects
In accordance with the published IRS guidelines on compliance monitoring, an exception may be granted to
RHS projects under its Section 515 program and buildings or projects of which 50 percent or more of the
aggregate basis is financed with the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds.

The IRC regulations allow for exception of a building from the inspection requirement if the building is
financed by RHS under the Section 515 program, the RHS inspects the building [under 7 CFR part 1930(C)],
and the RHS and the allocating agency enter into a memorandum of understanding, or other similar
arrangement, under which the RHS agrees to notify the allocating agency of the inspection results. Irrespective
of the physical inspection standard selected by the allocating agency, a low-income housing project under
Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code must continue to satisfy local health, safety and building codes. A
memorandum of understanding has not been executed between GHURA and RHS.

Annual Reports, QBTS, Compliance Monitoring Status Reports and other reports are still required of RHS
projects. Although GHURA has allowed the use of the RD 1944-8, the form does not determine eligibility
for specific LIHTC requirements. Owners need to determine whether the TIC will be used or a worksheet will
be attached to RD 1944-8 to determine eligibility under the IRC. Management audits shall be conducted as
indicated herein.

An owner who for some reason is not able to make any of the required certifications stated on the Annual Report
or other requirements must inform the Agency immediately of such inability, as well as explain the reason
for said inability.

Reporting Requirements
a. The LIHTC Annual Report must be submitted annually by February 1 of each year throughout the
compliance/extended use period.

b. Part II of the IRS Form 8609 must be completed by the owner and submitted with initial Annual
Report.

C. Qualified Basis Tracking Sheets (QBTS) are submitted at a minimum annually with LIHTC Annual
Report until all set-asides are established.

d. Status Reports are submitted annually by owners with Annual Report to document and track the
continuance compliance of tax credit units throughout the compliance/extended-use period.

These forms must be sent in to GHURA or its Authorized Delegate at the address shown in Section II.

The Certification of Eligibility and LIHTC forms listed above are available from GHURA. Additionally, GHURA has
data regarding HUD area median incomes, maximum rental rates, income verification information and third-
party verification forms.

Fees
A compliance monitoring fee of up to $50 per unit for all units (for the 1st year full inspection) and
$25 per unit for all units (once every 3 years after 1st year full inspection) within each project shall be charged
annually for administrative expenses. This fee shall be submitted with the LIHTC Annual Report for each
year of the compliance/extended-use period. GHURA reserves the right to adjust fees due to changing
circumstances annually each January 1. It will be the responsibility of GHURA to inform the owner of any
changes in the annual compliance fee prior to the submission of fees. The compliance monitoring fee will

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 36 of 93



Page 37 of 43

be effective as of the Placed-in-Service date for the first building.

Non-compliance Penalties
The penalty for non-compliance with the LIHTC Program is the potential recapture of the credits awarded and
interest on the amount recaptured. The Internal Revenue Service shall determine penalties for non-
compliance.

Upon determination by GHURA of non-compliance with the LIHTC Program, the owner shall be notified and
given thirty (30) days to correct any discovered violations. In accordance with the Internal Revenue
Service's published guidelines on compliance monitoring, GHURA will be required to notify the IRS within
forty-five (45) days after the end of the thirty-day correction period, whether or not the non-compliance is
corrected. GHURA will be given the opportunity on the IRS form to indicate whether the owner has
corrected the non-compliance. GHURA may extend the correction period, up to a total of six (6) months, if
itis determined by GHURA that good cause exists for granting such an extension. In such case, the IRS will not
be notified until the end of the extended correction period.

Extended Use Period

After the initial 15-year compliance period is the Extended Use Period, GHURA is no longer required to
report instances of non-compliance to the IRS. Compliance during the Extended Use Period (EU Compliance
Policy) will concentrate on enforcing the requirements of the LIHTC program through the term of the
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for Low Income Housing Credit recorded on the property. The EU
Compliance Policy is largely based on the procedures of the initial compliance period. Unless noted below, the
policy and procedure for compliance during the initial compliance period shall continue to apply to the
extended use period.

Effective Date

The EU Compliance Policy shall be effective on the first day after the expiration of the initial 15- year
compliance period for the last building placed in service in the project. Generally, the extended use
compliance period will begin on January 1 of the year after the expiration of the initial 15-year compliance
period of the last building placed in service and be in effect until the end of the extended use period.

Income and Rent Set Aside

Owners are subject to the Section 42 occupancy and rent restrictions required in the Declaration of Land Use
Restrictive Covenants for Low-Income Housing Credits.

Student Households

As GHURA wants to ensure that properties in the extended use period are not used as dormitory housing, a
modified student eligibility requirement will be enforced. During the extended use period, a household
comprised entirely of full-time students will qualify as long as at least one member of the household is an
independent student or is a student in grades Kindergarten through 12 (including home schooled minors
studying course material within these grades). An independent student is defined as one who is not claimed as
adependent on his/her parent’s tax return (proof required).

Available Unit Rule / 140% Rule

For projects which include market rate units, the Available Unit Rule and the 140% Rule do not apply during
the extended use period. The percentage of tax credit units as specified in the Declaration of Restrictive
Covenants for Low Income Housing Credits must be maintained throughout the extended use period.

Certification and Recertification

Certification of tenants at the time of move-in shall be required during the extended use period according to
2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 37 of 93



Page 38 of 43

the same procedure as the compliance period. Recertification of tenants will not be required during the
extended use period. However, if any adults are added to the household, then the household must be
recertified.

Unit Transfers

During the extended use period, unit transfers are allowed without a new income qualification.
Documentation of all unit transfers that occur shall be submitted as part of the Reporting
Requirements.

Reporting Requirements

1. The LIHTC Annual Report must be submitted annually by February 1 of each year throughout the
extended use period.

2. Status Reports are submitted annually by owners with the Annual Report to document and track the
continuing compliance of tax credit units throughout the extended use period.

Site Audits

Commencing within three years after the expiration of the Compliance Period, site audits for projects
may be conducted at least once every five years. Projects that have substantial outstanding non-
compliance beyond the correction period based on the findings of the most recent site audit may be subject
to more frequent site audits.

Owner Inspection
Owners shall conductan annual physical inspection of each unitand common areasin the project.
Correction Period and Non-compliance Penalties

Upon determination by GHURA of non-compliance with the LIHTC Program during the extended use period,
the owner shall be notified and given thirty (30) days to correct any discovered violations. GHURA may
extend the correction period on a case-by-case basis, up to a total of six

(6) months, if it is determined by GHURA that good cause exists for granting such an extension. Owners may
request GHURA to review all outstanding non-compliance issues for a property once per calendar year after the
initial correction period. Any owner and constituent entities involved in management and ownership of a
project with an unresolved finding of non-compliance beyond the initial correction period may be deemed
to be Not in Good Standing by GHURA'’s Fiscal Department. Owners must clear all outstanding non-
compliance issues to be deemed in Good Standing with GHURA.

Appeal

All appeals shall be resolved in accordance Administrative Procedure for GHURA's Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Program Appeal Review. A copy of this Procedure is included as Appendix 3 of this QAP.

Other

High-Cost Area Designation. Newly constructed buildings located outside of designated Difficult to
Develop Areas or Qualified Census Tracts qualify as a high-cost area. The additional LIHTC available from the
“basis boost” will be used to offset the high cost of construction and land throughout the island.

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 38 of 93



Page 39 of 43

Appendix 1

Income Averaging Guidelines

GHURA Guidelines for Utilizing the Income Averaging Minimum Set-Aside for Applications under Consideration or
Already Approved

The Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2018 establishes income averaging as anew minimum set-aside Election for new
LIHTC developments. It allows LIHTC Qualified Units to serve households earning as much as 80% of Area Median Income
(AMI) so long as the average income limit of the Qualified Units is 60% or less of AMI. Designated income levels for Qualified
Units may be set at 10% increments between 20% and 80% of AMI. GHURA will accept proposals for utilizing income
averaging in application that are under consideration, have already been approved or have already initially closed,
subject to the requirements outlined below.

General Requirements for All Income Averaging Proposals:

= Utilization of income averaging requires GHURA consent

*  Proposals will not be accepted without evidence of approval by the syndicator/investor
* (Changesinthe AMIbands mustbe supported by a market study

* Proposals must maintain the requirements of any GHURA funding award

* Arevised application and associated exhibits may be required

= Ifthe use of income averaging triggers higher fees for compliance monitoring, the increase will need tobe
incorporated in the project budget

Additional Requirements for Developments that have already initially closed:

*  Proposals will only be considered for Developments that have not yet executed Form 8609

* The proposal must continue to meet the requirements of the Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code

» Set-aside elections made in the Extended Housing Commitment executed at initial closing and recorded at
the Recorder’s Office may need to be amended

2025 LIHTC QAP (Proposed)

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 39 of 93



Page 40 of 43

Appendix 2

Market Study

Section 42(m)(1)(A)(iii) of the Internal Revenue Code, GHURA requires a comprehensive Market Study of the
housing needs of low-income individuals in the area to be served by the project. The Market Study is to be conducted by
a disinterested party approved by GHURA and must be submitted as part of the application. The Market Study shall be
completed at the Owner's expense. Any applicant that fails to submit a Market Study or submits a Market Study dated
more than 6 months earlier than the date of application shall be returned to the applicant and the application will not
receive further consideration.

The Market Study shall address the following information:

= Astatement of the competence of the market analyst.
» Adescription of the proposed site.

* Demographic analysis of the number of households in the market area which are income eligible and can
afford to pay the rent. Estimate of capture rates for the market areas.

*  (Geographicdefinition and analysis of the market area.

» Identification of the project including location, unit counts, income levels and target population. Market
Study must be consistent with the proposed project.

= Analysis of household sizes and types in the market.
» Adescription of comparable developments in the market area.

»  Analysis of practically available rents, vacancy rates, operating expenses and turnover rates of comparable
properties in the market area.

»  Analysis of practically available rents, vacancy rates and turnover rates of market rate properties in the market
area. Projected operating funds and expenses, when available at the time of the study.

»  Expected market absorption of the proposed rental housing, including a description of the effect of the market
area.

* Identification and commentary of proposed projects in the market areas.
*  Analysis of market demand for tenants with special housing needs when applicable.
» Analysis of impacts of development to the area’s existing education, public safety, and utilities infrastructure.

Projects that are requesting credits from eligible basis generated from a Community Service Facility as
defined in Section 42(d)(4)(C)(iii) must provide a market study that addresses the following:

» Adescription of Services provided that improve the quality of life for community residents.
» The market area and demand for services provided.

» Theapplicability of service provided to the community.

»  The affordability of the services provided to persons of 60% AMGI or less.

2025 LIHTC QAP verl

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 40 of 93



Page 41 of 43

Appendix 3

Administrative Procedure for LIHTC Program Appeal Review

Purpose

During GHURA'’s competitive evaluation and selection processes, an Applicant may, within seven (7) calendar days
of the date of formal notice of denial by GHURA, the Applicant may request for reconsideration and submit a request
for an Appeal Review of GHURA’s decision that results in the non-selection of a proposed project. The purpose of
these guidelines is to provide procedural requirements for appeal where authorized pursuant to the Qualified
Allocation Plan (“QAP”).

Background

1. Applicants are only eligible to request an Appeal if the applicant has received a non-selection decision.

2. An Applicant’s request for appeal shall be submitted in writing to the Executive Director of GHURA
within seven (7) calendar days of the date indicated on the Non-Selection Letter. The written request for
appeal must be received at the GHURA Main Office at 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910.

3. The Appeal process shall conclude within ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of the Appeal request.

4. At the outset of the evaluations and selection process, GHURA will identify an Appeal Review panel
consisting of 3-5 individuals from outside of the Research, Planning and Evaluation Division.

5. GHURA, at the conclusion of the scoring process, identifies three 3-hour windows for Appeal Review
meetings. Any Appeal Review will take place at GHURA (117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajafia, GU 96910).

Appeal Review Committee
6. The Appeal Review Committee will consist of at least three employees appointed by the GHURA Executive

Director. The Appeal Review Committee will be appointed prior to the initial announcement of awards.
Appeal Review Committee members may include, but are not limited to, the Deputy Director, Division
Managers, and Senior Staff.

7. The Chief Planner is an advisory member of the Appeal Review Committee. The Chief Planner does not
participate in Appeal Review Committee deliberations but will attend the meetings and provide information
or answer questions regarding the QAP process, as needed by the Committee.

8. The Appeal Review Meetings will be moderated by GHURA Legal Counsel.

General Procedure
9. The burden of proof shall be on the Applicant to prove that the decision that resulted in the non-selection of

the Application was incorrect and that the Application met all QAP requirements, program requirements,
and statutory requirements.

10. The Appeal Review Committee will use a “reasonableness” or “rational basis” standard to determine
whether the Applicant submitted sufficient documentation that meets the requirements of the QAP to
receive a particular score.

2025 LIHTC QAP verl

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 41 of 93



Page 42 of 43

11. The issue in each case is whether the Applicant met the requirements of the QAP.

12. GHURA is not bound by a mistake in scoring in a previous round. The only question that will be considered
by the Appeal Review Committee is whether the submitted Application was correctly or incorrectly scored
in the current round.

13. Scoring is to be strictly based on the documents submitted by the Applicant at application submission for
the year at issue.

14. Mistakes in other Applications should not be considered unless the mistake impacted the scoring of the
Application under review.

15. Appeal Review Committee members must review the presented issues under the process and procedures
of the QAP.

16. The Appeal Review Committee should not discuss any appeal with any elected official, local government
representative, member of the Applicant team or member of the GHURA staff involved in the scoring of the
Application prior to making its decision. Likewise, once an Applicant has requested an Appeal Review,
GHURA staff involved in the scoring of the Application should not discuss the details of any appeal with any
elected official, local government representative, member of the Applicant team or Appeal Review Committee
member prior to making its decision.

Documentation
17. The Appeal Review Committee will only consider documents of record in making its final decision.

Documents of record include (1) GHURA Scoring Documentation (including GHURA verification
documentation used in the scoring of the Application), (2) the Application submitted for the applicant
funding cycle, and (3) correspondence between the Applicant and GHURA during the scoring process.
GHURA Scoring Documentation includes documentation used as part of the scoring of Applications in the
current application round including the QAP, GHURA guidance, Q&4, instructions, tracking sheets,
summaries and verification documentation. Additional documentation not specifically allowed by these
rules cannot be submitted by either party during the Appeal process.

18. Only documentation that meets the requirements of the QAP will be considered by the Appeal Review
Committee in determining whether the Application was correctly scored.

19. Applicants may not clarify (either by explanation or additional documentation) a “scoring” category in the
QAP during scoring or during the Appeal process. GHURA must rely on the documents submitted by the
Applicant in the submitted Application in making their decision.

Appeal Review Meeting Procedure
20. GHURA and the Applicant must submit a written summary of the issues to the Appeal Review Committee no

less than five days prior to the Appeal Review Meeting. The summary shall be limited to ten pages exclusive
of attachments.

21. Atthe meeting, GHURA staff will first present its argument(s) in defense of its scoring decision. After GHURA
staff's presentation, the Applicant will present its argument(s) in response to the GHURA scoring decision.
GHURA will have an opportunity to respond to the Applicant’s presentation.

22. Each initial presentation shall be limited to one hour. GHURA’s response time will be limited to 20 minutes.

23. Appeal Review Committee members are free to ask either the Applicant or GHURA staff a question that they
believe needs to be clarified. Should the Committee require an answer to a question after the Appeal Review
Committee meeting, the Committee shall present the question to the GHURA Legal Counsel who shall obtain

2025 LIHTC QAP verl

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 42 of 93



Page 43 of 43

the answer to the question and forward it to the Appeal Review Committee. Both the Applicant and the
GHURA staff shall have the opportunity to respond to the question and the response must be provided
within 48 hours of the request.

24. Discussion of the merits of either position shall take place between Appeal Review Committee members
after the Appeal Review Committee meeting and not during the meeting.

25. This is not a court proceeding. Neither the Applicant nor GHURA staff have the ability to call witnesses or
examine each other during the meeting. However, opportunity shall be afforded all parties to be represented
by legal counsel and to respond and present evidence on all issues involved, subject to the documentation
limitations above.

26. Questions by the Applicant or GHURA staff must be directed to the GHURA Legal Counsel after the meeting
is concluded.

27. The Appeal Review Committee’s final decision will be transmitted to both the Applicant and to the GHURA
Executive Director by the GHURA Legal Counsel.

2025 LIHTC QAP verl

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 43 of 93



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
ATURIDAT GINIMA YAN RINUEBAN SIUDAT

MEMORANDUM:

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Director 7

DATE: September 04, 2025

SUBJECT: Intent of Award

I[FB GHURA-25-12
Lead Abatement for AMPs 1, 2 and 4

Bid opening for the subject project was held on August 19, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. A total of 3 bidders
registered for the bid and given bid specifications of which 1 submitted a bid. Listed below are the results
of the bid submissions, which were opened and read out aloud publicly.

No: 260 Consecutive
Vendor: Bid Bond Calendar Days.
I Itech Builders dba ILMA International, Inc. b Awarded

Cashier’s Check

15% of total bid | Base Bid No. 1
amount No Bid

Base Bid No. 2

$395,000.00

Base Bid No. 3

$140,500.00

Total $535,500.00

Government Estimate | $1,771,200.00

A breakdown is required for each item description as noted below:

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 44 of 93




Itech Builders dba of ILMA International. Inc: (Awarded)

Ttem #

Item Description

Estimated
Quantity

Unit

Measure

Price

Unit Bid Price

Base Bid Item No. 1

No Bid

Base Bid Item No. 2

1. Professional Lead-related Services / By
[HP, Creation of Lead Disturbance Plan
Certified Industrial Hygienist/ EPA-Licensed
Lead Project Designer.

Training, Testing and On-Site consultation
by a CIF/ EPA-licensed Lead project
designer.

Demolition, Removal, Disposal and New
Installation / in accordance with THP and
EPA.

$395,000.00

Base Bid Item No.3/ AMP 4

1. Professional Lead-related services / By
[HP

2. Demolition, Removal, Disposal and New
Reinforced Concrete Covering (in
accordance with [HP and EPA

$140,500.00

Total Cost:

$535,500.00

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority’s (GHURA) mission is to provide affordable, decent,
safe, and sanitary housing through the maintenance of our existing units, to ensure that the facilities
owned and managed by GHURA are safe and appealing to the residents.

The Abatement of Lead-Based Paint (LBP) project is listed as one of the projects in the CFP Annual
Statement to be addressed. This project is designed to permanently eliminate existing lead-based paint
hazards. An LBP testing was completed in 2018 and it has identified at least 70 units as having Lead-
Based paint at certain locations within the units.

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

PAGE 45 of 93




In review of the bid result: ITECH Builders dba of ILMA International, Inc. provided the lowest
responsive and responsible bid. After further clarification, the committee members determined to proceed
with the award of the project to ITECH Builders dba of ILMA in the amount of $535,500.00 for Bid Item
number 2. with the project timeline of 200 consecutive calendar days, and Bid Item No. 3. with the project

timeline of 60 consecutive calendar days, with no option periods, and not to exceed the amount of
$535,500.00.

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 46 of 93



Moved by:

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-033

Seconded by:

RESOLUTION COMMENDING MS. ANA C. SAHAGON, INTERVIEWER CLERK, FOR HER
DEDICATION AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL
AUTHORITY (GHURA)

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

Ms. Ana C. Sahagon dedicated a total of 19 years and 12 days in the Government of
Guam; and

Before joining GHURA, Ms. Sahagon began her public service career at the Department
of Public Health and Social Services (DPHSS), serving as a Claims Specialist | and |l
from 1992 to 1999; and

from 2007 to 2012, she continued her service at DPHSS as a Clerk Ill and later as an
Eligibility Specialist 1; and

Ms. Sahagon returned to DPHSS from 2013 to 2014, serving as an Eligibility Specialist I;
and

she further contributed to public service by participating in the Senior Community Service
Employment Program (SCSEP) under the Department of Labor (DOL) from 2018 to 2019,
serving as a Clerical Trainee; and

on September 19, 2019, Ms. Sahagon joined the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal
Authority (GHURA) as a Clerk | (temporary position) in the Public Housing-AMP1
Division; and

she was subsequently promoted to Clerk Ill on April 1, 2021, and later to Interviewer
Clerk on April 1, 2023; and

during her tenure at GHURA, Ms. Sahagon rendered 5 years and 11 months of
committed service, contributing meaningfully to the mission and goals of the Authority;
and

her dedication and contributions to the Public Housing-AMP1 Division positively impacted
the operations of the Authority and the broader Guam community; and

the Board of Commissioners extend its recognition and gratitude to Ms. Ana C. Sahagon,
commending her on her retirement from the Authority, and best wishes on her future
endeavors; now, therefore be it

that the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners shall certify, and the Executive Director
attest the adoption hereof BOC Resolution No. FY2025-033, and that thereafter shall be
presented to Ms. Ana C. Sahagon, whereby a copy shall be placed in her official
personnel file, and a copy provided to the Governor of Guam.

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 47 of 93



IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:
| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct
copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on
September 30, 2025.

(SEAL)

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI
Board Secretary / Executive Director

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 48 of 93



T GHURA

E Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
5 Aturidat Ginima® Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
& 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EQUAL FOUS
Website: www ghuraorg QFPFORIUN

PREFACE

Pursuant to Title 5 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 43, Section 43202 — Performance Reviews of
Agency Heads. “The governing Boards for all agencies, instrumentalities, or entities shall issue
performance reviews of the Chief Executive selected for that agency six (6) months after
appointment of the said Chief Executive and every twelve (12) months thereafter that the Chief
Executive is retained by the Governing Board. Each performance review shall document the Chief
Executive’s performance, accomplishments, and the respective Governing Board’s reasons for
retaining the said Chief Executive.”

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.

Coordinator %e %ng at the above address and telephone numbers.
L)

Board Meeting of SeTE’) ember PAGE 49 of 93



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero

Govemor of Guam

Joshua F, Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

Jahn J. Rivera
Chairman

Nathanael P, Sanchez
Vice Chaimman

Anisia 8, Delia
Commissioner

Emilia F. Rice

Commissioner

Victor R. Torres
Commissioner

Karl E. Corpus
Resident Commissioner

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Diirector

Fernando B. Esteves
Deputy Directoy

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima® Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910

Phone: {6713477-9851 - Fax; (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EQUAL FOUSING
Website: www.ghura.org DFFORTONITY

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (EMPE) FOR

Elizabeth F. Napoli — Executive Director
Review Period: 07/08/2024 — 07/07/2025 (Annual)

Pursuant to SGCA §43202, the GHURA Board of Commissioners decided during
their 07/08/2019, regularly scheduled board meeting, that each board member will
evaluate both the Executive Director and Deputy Director, and for the completed
ratings to be submitted directly to the Human Resources Division for compilation.

Based on the ratings submitted, Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli eamed an overall “Highly
Satisfactory” performance evaluation rating as GHURA’s Executive Director for
the annual review period (07/08/2024 — 07/07/2025). The performance evaluation
was based on the following factors:

1. Leadership

2. Strategic Planning

3. Communicates Vision and Direction

4. Champions Innovation

5. Promotes Ethics

6. Builds Relationships

7. Decision Making

8. Leads Change

9. Inspires and Directs Action

10, Promotes Diversity

11. Accountability/Fiscal/Fiduciary Responsibility
12. Business Acumen

13. Effective Operation & Maintenance of HUD Plans and Projects

As a result of the “Highly Satisfactory” performance evaluation, the GHURA
Board of Commissioners retain Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli as the Executive Director
of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority. Pursuant to BOC Resolution
FY2022-006, there will be no salary increment for the Executive Director’s position.

Compiled by:

qu-os-z&u"‘ W{Wﬂ“/ dls |75
C.N. Ongklungel K K. Bersamin, DBA, SPHR, SHRM-SCP
Personnel Specialist I1 Personnel Services Administrator

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 50 of 93



g jo | abey £202/20/1.0 - (3dW3) vonenjea] asuewicped Jusuebeuely eannaexy

-Ajeuonoun) pue seniusie wapow yim aisidwios sieuenbpeay Ajuoyiny Buisnoy meu Jo uononasuo)

‘sausiadwliod [2A3] IS pue aBpajmouy| aSeaIoU 0} PUEIS] JO PUB UD Log Saiiunpoddo Buitiern yim yers epinosd 0y

*SB0IAISS SOUBYUS 0} ABOJOULDS) UISPOLU JO 8SN aSBAIOUI pue SaIoe) ano Jo apelbdn ‘Buiuies saa9s Jawojsno BuloB-uo apiaoid
"SWI00ISSe[D Uoheonpa jevads pue Ajioe) Bulall |euciisues) YInoA ‘saijioe)

Kousblaws Ausple ynpe ‘syueq pooy ‘SIBlUSD SUSZID JOIUSS ‘uolsinboe Juswdinbs Ajajes ‘suonels Bl ‘SWOOISSEe|D LE)S peay apnjoul
spsloid asay| -saanoalgo asay) jesw o} swelibosd Bupoddns pue sSuipping Bunonnsuos pue sisuped Jno yum spasu Aunwiwiods Buiijusp)
"SHUN JO SUCNHEAOUB] PUB ‘BINjonJiseljul

jo apesbdn apnpul 0} SHUN YHNHD 40 uojeziuepow Buob-ug  "siun Buisnoy dlgnd jo wesbord soueuajuiew jusbip e uejuep

(sennosiqQ oibajeng sy 0 pejelsy) (s}Aianoy

-saaljpafqo pue jeob s AUoyIny aUy) 19sw 0} papasu sanyoe; pue sjoo) sy Acusbie sy apiaoid of

"S8|2US12dWI0D [SA3| |IMS PUE [eSIUYDS) @aA0|dwe aoueyue 0}

‘s801A88 Juai|o Alilenb pue aasuodsal spinosd of

*SBNIUNWIIOS INO Jo Spasu ay) Buissasse ) suopezjueblo Juawuwsaoh pue oid-uou yim sdiysuone)sl o usyibuans pue asueyus of
"SIUBIR YNNHDS 10} sawioy Aejiues pue ajes ‘Juaosp apiaold o)

(Aunqisuodsal jo eale weiboud yoea sSaIppy) SaAn2iqo ueld 216aens g

JUBWIBACIALI APUNWIWIOD JO YSE) UOWILLIOD
ayy ul ajedionsed o) esudiejus areaud Jo Juswabernoous ybnosy) pue sweiboud jeuswwBAob (200] pue |elapa; sigejieae jle ybnoay ‘saliue;
aWooU| MO| Jo} Buljemp AlBjlues pue ‘Juadsp ‘ajes jo uoisiacad Ag pue juswdojeasp Ajunwiwiod jo Bujuueld Jedosd Ag ‘sanUNWIWIOD JO |emaual
pue juswdojeaapal Apapio syl Aq ‘suoiipuos Jybiig pue wnis jo uoeulws ay) Aq ojdoad s weng Jo aseyem pue Ajgjes ‘yiesy el sjowoid o]

(lJuswaelelS UOISSIA UORISOd) UWOISSIN Y

(uewmeyD) edATg T Uyor -431vy 40 JWVYN (aannoex3 Aq pejerdwo)) INIWNSSISSV-413S - 1 1uvd

enuuy] (legu) renuuy-ieg] | 520220110 ©L $Z0Z/80/L0  Woi
yoday Jo} uoseay Hoday jo popad

8c. (payisse|pun) J010221g 2ARNISXT IMO4VN "d HL3gVZIN3
*oN [ @aAopdwg B } UolEISSEL) UOIISOd aweN ssiojdwg

VEARD

(2dIN3) NOILYNTVAT 3ONVIWHOIUId LNINTDVYNVIN JAILNIDAXA
ALIMOHLNY TYMINIH NVZHN ANV ONISNOH AVNO

PAGE 51 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



9 Jo 7 abied €Z0Z{20/10 ~ (SdWIT) VoUEN|EAT SoUBULIO A, Juswabeuey sagnaaxg

"gjdoad Jno disy pue Apunwwo? Jno ssueape o} Ajunpoddo Jayjoue si suo)sajiw mau yoe -bBuluaddey sBuy) jea1b Auew os
ale ajvy| -10)0al] dAN2SXT ay) jJo diysiepes] ey} Jepun Asuabe jeaif e ag 0} snuuod o] ANjIge Sy HNHO U JUSPHUOD We |

(ueid 21Bsjens sy Ul paynusp saANYaIGo aup Bunosw o) salefal JI SB souslLiopad ||BISAC SSASSY) doUBLMOHSd Jo Alewuwng  *a

PAGE 52 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g jo ¢ abeg

spoafoig puv suvld 1 H jo 2ouvuapuippy y uonvsadg aapaffg cr

UDNDY SSIUISHY ‘7]

Gunqisuodsay Lvponpy g / 1995t / Apqoiunoddy [1

ApISI201(J SAOWOIF GF

HONOY SIDIINF puD sadndsup -

aZuvy) spoay

Suyvy uos12(q

sdiysuonvpay sppng -

SOy SOOI

wopvaouuy suorduwiny’y -

UONO24N(J PUD UOISIA SIIDITUMMLWIO)

Suruup)g oS ag -

[ ]
L]
[ ]
[ ]
L]
[ ]
[ ]
[]
[ ]
[ ]
[]
[]
[ ]

OO g ooy oy o o oy O
Ly L O Ly oy L L en Oy 2 O A O
oo oo /g . O
DA DX X X X DX X XD DX I

diysiopvay -

Aojaepsnpes jewbiew Kioyoejsneg | Aiojoejspyes Butpue)sing

=un

Abing

{yoea o} sajdde jey) Buies ay} ¥oayn)
Jospuedng Aq pejerdwiod :SIAILNDIXT 4O SNOILVLIIIXT - NI Lyvd

8zl {panssepun) J01da11(q 9ANNaXT
"ON Q| 3sfojdw3 B[}l / UONEDUISSE|D UoHISOd

IMOdVN "4 H138vZI13

awepN aakojdwg

(2dINT) NOILYNTVAT 3ONVINNOAUAd LNFWNIAODOYNYIN JAILNDIXT
ALINOHLNY TYMINIY NYGMN ANV ONISNOH VNS

PAGE 53 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g jo p abed

£ZT0ZIL0/1L0 = (SdWE) Vopen[eA] s3usuIopa JusweBEURY 3APNIIXT

-Andout s Aousde sy Surpes] pue suotjenday/Lorod 0] Sullsype 0] JUSUNIWLIOS JSEIPES)S € $SIBNSUCLUSD ZI'] 10)021K(] IANNIOXT

1A0NEIYHSNL/SHIIW O]

[]

[]

L]

X

(532 GnH jp4apad pup 1o 0} 32ua.54py) PIEPUE)S MUBULIOI ]

"Pasno0y ANUTUIWOS PUE 2LNU JUSID S1 ZI] JOI9II(] SATINSAXH
{HON YISO /ST MI0))

[

[]

[ ]

L]

X

(5n20,] 42wi0jsn)) pABPUE)S IDULMIOLII

fioyoeyspes
=un

1euiGaey

Asoyoejsiyes

Kioyoegspeg
Ay

Bugpuejsing

(tosinredng Aq pajaidiuo)) SQEVANVYLS - 11l 1YVd

8Tl

“opN ) @2Acjdwzg

{pawissejpun} 10)0a11q 8ARNISX]

epLL ; uoljealyisse|d uonisod

MOdv¥N "4 H1389vZIN3
aweN aalo|dwg

e s

VINAHD

(3dINT) NOLLYNTVAT ONVINHOH4NId LNIWIADVYNYI JAILNDIAXI
ALRIOHLINY TYMINIH NVEHN ANV ONISNOH NVND

PAGE 54 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



9jo g abey

£Z0Z/L0/L0 — (33W3) UoHEN(EAT FOURKIOLA JudLaBrURIy BANN2EXT

AANOISSTIINOQD Wapisay sndio) " e

SHANOISSTAIAOD A0 MAVOd VANHD 12quay TUEITA

SHANOISSTNINOD 4O AU VO VANHD 18quiRy "ory " eljinry

SUANOISSININOD A0 QdvVO0d VUIHD QW PeZgs] 'L Uiy

SHANOISSININOD A0 QUVOd VUIHY) UBWAIE]) 2IA Zoqoues -J [PEUEIEN

ST0C ‘§¢ dung :ayeq

AHOLOVISILVSNAL]
IVNISHYIN[]

SHANOISSININOD 40 @dVO0d YHNHD BIALR] T UYOr §

NIVL3¥ LON[] NiviIy X |

AYOLIVASILYS ATHOIH] ]

AYOLOVASILYS[ ] ONIONVY.LSLNO]

(AT T T T s1vd uo pasog unp4 jjpiza0)) 'ONIIVY TIVH3A0 —~ A Ldvd

SHANOISSININOO HO dVOd VIHD 1PqUIDA "BI3([ °§ BisiUy

PAGE 55 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



940 g obey £Z0Z/L0/10 — (AdW3A} uonEN[EA] ouBMIOND Juswabeuep sAgnoaxg

ayeq aimeubie ﬂo_ao&Em_

5] §0] b7

A .
™t hoage Dmagy e oy e St e of
0 prof of p dopsapap b guobhos ko ik o] .&g

(uvyd juawdoyaasp ; uopnipas 2oupu0fasd Suip 0334 SJUIWIILZDSIP L0 STUIUIFLZD ‘SULIIU0D ‘SUOLIDIL Aup Fpnpoul Avpy) SHudWWO,) 2Lojdury

(‘papefes sy uogdo sy i ‘AojepueL ee SjUBWILLOD 88A0IdWT) ANIUO) JOU OA—_H_

.:.onowm_

‘33A0TdA3 A9 313T1dNOD |

8z/ (paissejoun) 1030241 2AN29X] IMOdVN "4 H1L39vZIn3a
‘0N Q| 39Aojdw3 811 / uoneoyIsSe|) UoRISOd sweN 2afopdwy §

(3dW3) NOILVNTVYAT IONVIWNOIHId INTFWIADVYNVIN JALLNDIXA
ALI—MOHLNY TVMINIY NVEAN ANV ONISNOH WVYNO

PAGE 56 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g 4o | 9Bed £Z0Z/20/10 - {(3dW3) Uonen(EAT sousuuOMe ] JuewaeBeuel aapndexy
JIDSE R

‘Alifeuonouny pue seljiuswe Lispow yum ajeidwos siapenbpeay Ajuoyiny Buisnoy mau Jo LooNisuo)
‘3210U8)adW0D |oAT] |IDjS puUB aBpaMoUY 8SESIOU| O} PUBIS! JO PUB Uo Y1oq saiiunuoddo Buiuies) ypm yeys apiacid oL

o
-ganIAI9S 8ouBlUe 0) ABOjouYDe) LIepOoLW J& 8Sh 8SEaIdUl pue saioe} no jo apeibdn ‘Bujuies eonies Jewo)snd Sujob-uo epirold N
"SW00ISSED UoneInps (eveds pue Ajioe) Buiall [euciisuel) YINoA ‘selioe) .._._“
AouaBiaws Apopie Jnpe ‘Syueq poo) ‘sIsjued susziio Joluas ‘uolisinboe Juswdinbe Ajajes ‘suogels asy ‘SWOOISSEO UEYS peay spnjoul >
spooloid asay ] "saAdalqo esey) 19sw o) sweiboid Buoddns pue sBuiping Buionssuoo pue sisuped No Ym spesu Auniwod BuiAsnusp) -
“SHUN JO SUOKBACUDI PUB ‘Bunjoniseyul
jo apesBdn apnjo Ul 0} SIUN YHNHD jo uoneziwepow Buiof-u O "spun Buis noy oignd jo wesbo ud soueuejuew wabyip e uleyuey

(saagos(qQ oibejens oy 0) pareiey) (S)AIANOY

‘seAnoalqo pue [eob s Awoyiny sy 198w o) papasu sapioe) pue sjoo) ay) Aousbe syl epinoid oL

‘sapuajsdwod [aAs) IS pue [esuyos) sakojdws asueyus o}

*S80IAI19S WAl Ajenb pue eaisuodsa) epiaosd of

*SANIUNWILIOD NG JO Spaau auyj Buissasse U suogeziuebio Jualuisach pue Jyoid-uou Yum sdiysuone|as uno ueyjbualls pue sougyua o}
‘SJUBIY YHNHD 40} sewoy Aiejiues pue ejes ‘Jusosp apiaosd o)

(Anqisuodsan jo eese weiboid yoes ssauppy) saAnaelqo ueld sifiajens g

uswaA0Idw AJUNwwod JO 3SE] UCLIWOD
ay ul sedised o} esudieus s1eaud Jo Juswabeinoous ybnoay; pue sweiboid |ejuswuisacb (e90) puk [BJaps) SiqeeAe e ybnoiyy ‘saljie;
awooul mo| Jo) Buiemp Aiejues pue usosp ‘ajes Jo uoisiacid Aq pue Juswdolaasp Ajunwiwod jo buuueyd Jedosd AQ ‘ssiunwwoD Jo [eMBUR)
pue juewdojerapal Alepio ey Ag ‘suonipuoa Jybiq pue wn|s Jo uoneulwl|a ay) Aq ajdoad s wens) jo slejam pue Alajes ‘yieay ay) sjowosd o)

(Juswalelg uoISSIy UoYISOd) UoISSI Y

2SS 2 JEVIVFTIV §3LVY 40 JAVN (eagnoex3 Aq pejeidwo)) INIWSSISSV-13S - 1 Luvd

ey (1enut) jenuuy-wes| | SZ02/L0/L0 OL YZ0Z/R0/L0  woud

woday Joj uosesy Hodey jo pouad

8ZL (paiyisse|oun) 4039341Q dARNDEXT ITOdVYN "4 H139vZI13
‘0N ] o2Ao|dwg B[] | UOJEDYISSE|D UDHISOL swep esfodwz

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025

(3dN3) NOILYNTVAS SONVYINHOINAd LANIWIOVNYIN JALLNDAXI
ALROHLAY TYM3NIH NvEAN ANV ONISNOH WVNO



g Jo z eBed £202/20/10 — {3dW3) uoniENEA] soueWIOMe Juslweliuel sapndex]




g Jo ¢ ofed £202/20/10 — (3dW3) ucnEN|EAT BIUBWIOLS JUaWRBRUE SAINIEXT

spaafo4g puv suvld G H Jo aouvuspuinpy p uopvisd() aago3ffq €

UBWNOY SSauISng ‘7|

Atpqisuodsay Livonplg / (p2s3] / GipqoIun00dy “[]

ApIS4241(F SR0WOLT Q]

UONOY SPd4N( pup sandsuy

aSuny) spoay -

Sumyppy uoisaq -,

sdpysuoyvjay sppng

SOy SAIOWOLT °

uoyvaouuy suorduiny?)

UONIZ(] PUD UCISLA SHIDINUNRUIUIOT)

Suruuvjg nSawyg

dpysiappay

Lo Oy o O g Oy o O Ly ) O
L O O O D O B O o L L O O
Lo O o o o o o oy 4 gl

[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
]
]
[]

/

jewibiely | Kiojomyspeg | Aiojoejspes | Buipueysing {yoea o} seydde jey; Bunes ayj yoayn)
AyBiH Jospiedng Aq pepepdwion 1SAALLNDIXI 40 SNOLLYLIAMX3 - II Livd

(pouIsseDUN) J030811g SAIINDAXT ITOdVYN 4 H1389VvZI13
'oN @] sekojdwg )11 f UopeoJISSe|D UoIHSOd awepN sekojdwz s

ey g e iy e

VYENMND
LT ] 1]

(IdINT) NOILYNTVAS SONVYINNOH4NId LNIWIDVYNVIN SAILNDIXI
ALINOHLNY TYMINTN NYEEN ANV ONISNOH WVYND




_ 9o p 2bed

£Z0Z/20/10 - {3dW3) uonen[eal souswioue jususBeuel aAnsexg

‘MO BIPUSN{/SIUIWWO))

(582 QA(1H [P49p2.] pup A21j0d 01 2oUd.2YpY) :PABPUE)S DUBWI0JIAS

‘O EIGYSNL/SIUIWWO))

7

Fi

(sno0,f 42wosn7)) (PIAEPUE)S NUBMLIOLIDJ

Koyoegspes | [ewbiey

fioyomjspes

faoyorjspeg a..“..&s..o
AyBtH

(tosinredng Aq pejeidwor) SGUVANVLS - Il Lavd

8cL
‘oN (| esfojdws

{peyssejoun) 10p02.1q sAnNIeX3

JIjLL / UOREIYSSE) UCINSOd

NMOdVN ‘4 HL38vZI13
eweN selojdwy

LY bt ) o e

vainne

(3dINT) NOILLYNTVYAT SONVANNOZUId LNIWIODVYNVIN JAILNDIXT
ALRIOHLNY TYMINTY NVEUN ANY ONISNOH WVND




9 jo  ofied

£20Z/20/10 - {3dWI) LORENIEAT 2OUBULIOUS JuseBeuRy sARNIEXT

HANOISSIININOD 0pIsay

SHANOISSTAINOD 0 QAVOd VHNHD "1PqUISIA JUBIEA

SHANOISSTAINOD 10 MIVOd VINHD 12qUIB]y "300] "4 eIy

SYANOISSIANINOD 40 MUAVOd VINHD RPqURA "S3LIO], "y 10331A

EITI |

STANOISSINIAOD A0 UV VINHY PQUIRIA "Bl °S Bisiuy

92 L -3 9ed r\vr SYUANOISSTAINOD J0 QUVO4 VIAIHD "UBWITRY) 1A "Zo7dues *J [PEUBHIEN

T |

AHOLOVASILYSNA[]
TVNIDUYW[]

SAANOISSIANINOD 40 QAVOH VIHD "UeuLiey) "BIdAR] °f uqof

NIVL3¥ LON[ | z_<._.mmw m

AMOLOVHSILYS ATHOIH[]

A¥OLOVHSILVS[ |
(A ‘IIT "I T S1pd uo pasvq Suyvs ip4240) (ONILIVYE TIVH3A0 ~ A Livd




9o g efieg £20Z/20/10 - (AT} uolEn|eAl esuBLIIOpe JusweBeuely sAiInseXT

PAGE 62 of 93

sunjeuBig fokodwgy

Xi.\am Q\.g

§ $S2IMS e ;\Q&\C\V\@ s i
4 I u::_ d?\«_S\HP \S\QJ?\;\W
s@wﬁ@x:%& 2 RN{ ﬁ&?&i& b gl bl -

(uvyd jusudo]aasp ; uoUPNIDAS IoUDWLIOLBA ButpD3a4 SIUUDILBDSIP 4O STUIUIILSY ‘SULBIUOD ‘SUOLIIDIA Auw mﬁ&u& Aopy) :symsmmo)) qLojduy

(‘paoajes st uoydo sup 4 ‘Aiojepuew ae spuawwoo safoidwg) aNdWOY) jou cn—_H_

.:.u.—cnuN_

‘F3A0TdING A9 3131dNOI

8cl (paiisseioun) J030al1q aAnNdax3y TOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
-oN g1 9eAojdw3 8Ll j UonEdLSSE]D UOHSOd aswep eefo|dwz

Board Meeting Sepember 30, 2025

(3dN3) NOLLYNTVAI SIONVINNOHNTd LNFWIOVYNVIN JALLNIAXI
ALROHLANY TYMINIY NvadN ANV ONISNOH NVNO



90 | abey £Z0Z/20/10 — (IJND) UoNEN|eA] sduRWIIOUA JUaWsBeurl 2ANNIAXT

“Allfeucnaun pue saiuswie uRpow Yypm ajajdwod siapenbpeay Ajuoyiny Buisnoy mau Jo UONONIISUCD

‘go10ua1adLLI0d [BAS] (IS pue abpajmouy asealoul 0) puB|s! 4o pue uo Yjoq saunuoddo Buiuiel yum Jels spiaoxd o)

"$32IM95 9oue|ua 0} ABOjOUYDa] LISPOW JO BSN BSESIIUI PUE SaIIIve) INO Jo apelbdn ‘Buiuiesn 8a1a19s Jawo)sn BuioB-uo apiacid
"SWIOOISSEID uoiieonpe |eloads pue Ajljioe) Buial [BUOIISUEL YINOA ‘salll|1oe]

KousBiaws AjJap|2 JINPE ‘SyUBQ POO) ‘SIBIURD SUSZINS JojUSs ‘uonisinboe Juswdinbs Ajoies ‘suonels aJy 'SWooISSe|O UejS pesy apnjoul
syosloid esay] "saagoslqo asay) Jeaw o] sweiboid Bupoddns pue sBuipiing Buijonaisuoo pue siauned No Yum spaau Aunwwod duiAuap)
‘SHUN JO SUOIJEACUR) PUE ‘BInjonijseljul

Jo speabdn 8pn[a Wi 0} SHUN YHNHD JO uoieziuiapow Buob-u O 'shun Buis noy ognd Jo weibo Jd soueusiuiew yabyp e uejue

(saanoalqo oiBajeng ay) o) peleley) (S}ANANDY

‘'s9A09Iqo pue [eob s, Alaoyiny Sy 192w 0} papasu salilioe) pue $|c0} ay) Aouabe ay spiaoid o)

‘$219U8)adWwoD [8A] IS PUE [EIULDS]} 93h0jdws asueyus o

‘S80IAI9S Jua|2 AYjenb pue anisuodsal apiaoid o)

"SSPUNLIWIOD INO JO spaau oY) Buissasse ul suoljeziuebio JuswuianoB pue Jyoid-uou yym sdiysuone(el ino usyibuals pue aoueyus o
'SIUBIID YHNHO J0) SaLoL Alejiues pue ajes ‘Juadsp apiaoid o)

(Aupqisuodsal jo eale weibold yoes $saUppy) s3ARoalqO ueld nbajeng 'g

JusweAcsdw| AHUNWILIOS JO HSE] UOWLWOD

ay) ur syedioiued o) asudisius ajeand jo Juawabeinoous ybnoay pue swelboud |ejuawuisach |e20| pue |esopa) Siqelieae e ybnoay) ‘sayjiwe}
aWwosU mo| 104 Buljemp Atejiues pue Juaaap ‘ajes Jo uoisiaoid Ag pue Juawdoaasp Aunwwod jo Buiuue|d sadoid AQ ‘'seIUNWIWIOT JO |EMBUSI
pue juswdojeaapal A4apIo 3y} AQ ‘suonipuocd WBig pue wnjs jo uoneulwne ay Ag o/doad s,Lweng Jo aiejam pue Ajajes ‘yeay sy sjowoid o)

(luswale)S UOISSII LONISO]) UOISSIN 'V

: annoeax3 Ag psjejdwo IN3 T <
m__mﬁ_ mw_w_c< HI1lvH 40 AWYN {(any 3 Aq pejeidwo)) INIWSSISSY-413S - | 1HVd

fenuuyS ] fleu) jenuLiy-wss| | §20Z/20/20 OL YZOZ/B0/L0  woid
poday 4o} uoseay uodsay Jo pouad

8z. (pamtsse|aun) J032241Q 2ANNISXT ITOdVN "d H1L38vZI1d
‘ON Q] ashojdwg UL F UONEIYISSE|D UOISO swepn aafojdwz

st g o o B

VUNHD

(3dIN3) NOILVNTVAI FONVINNO4NId LNJNIDVYNVYIN FAILNDAXA
ALIHOHLNY TYMINIY NYG¥N ANV ONISNOH AVNDO

PAGE 63 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g Jo 7 ebeg £Z0ZIL0/L0 - (3dN3) vojIehjRAT SouRWIONad JuauisbeuRly 2ANNIBXT

‘uoissiw s,uoneziuebio

ay) Buipoddns 0} JuawUWICD JE3|S B PUB ‘UCHEIIPaP ‘WSIeuoisSsSajoid S1o(ial souewlouad 191 JUSWILOIIAUS YIOM DANRIOYE.] 0D
B $19)S0} pue ‘spiepuels pue sajolod yum soueldwos sainsud ‘sjeob [ejuswpedsp Buiraiyoe ul wes) say sepinb ays
‘Juswabeuew |euoheziuebio Buolis pue ‘Bujew-ucISiO8p punos ‘diysISpEd) sAII8YS pajeljsuowap ARjUa)sIisuod sey Jojang ayj

(ueld 9163jENS BY) UI pauuap! saARoRlqo sy} Bunasw o) sojejl ) se aoueulopad (|eJsA0 ssassy) dauewopad jo Arewwns  °q

PAGE 64 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g Jo ¢ abeg

STOZILON0 - (2dWT) vonenjeas sauewiocpdd Wawsabeuely eapnosaxg

L]

spoafosg puv suvlg q1H Jo aoupuaiuivpy ¥ uonviade acnoaffsy ¢

UAWNIY SSIUISHET *T]

Qprqisuodsay Lavionpld / [pIstd / QiqoIUnoddy I [

Ansaoarq satowog o

UONIY SI241(J puv saadsuy g

aduvy) sppay ‘g

Supyppy uois1raq

sdiysuoyvjay spung

SOOI SFIOUIOLJ

uonpaouny suorduny?)y

HONI4I( PUL UOISIA SIIDITURMUIO?)

Jwpuupig 0182mw.41§

[]
L]
[]
[]
L]
[]
[]
[]
[]
]
[ ]
]

L0 O O O ) L Oy L A O g A

Lo g o L oy Oy oy g
11 D D SN D S S S DS

OO O ch o) oy oy g 4y o) @

diysiappay

Aloyoejsnes jeuwibiew

l::

Kiojoejsnesg | Aiojomjsiyes
AyBin

Buipue)sing

{yors o) seydde jeyy Buer ey} X3oayn)
Josinedng Ag pejefdwo)d §3AILNDIAXI 40 SNOILYLOIdXT - Il Lavd

8z.
‘oN Qi @@fio|dwg

(paljisse|dun} 101234 IAIINIAIXT
aji1) f uOlJeDIJISSEID UCIHISOd

MOdV¥N "4 HL3gvZI13

awepN asko|dwg

. g e e B

vanuo

(3dW3) NOILVNTYAT 3ONVINNO4YId LNIWIOVNVYIN JAILNIAXA
ALIMOHLNY TYMIN3Y Nv8dN ANV ONISNOH WVND

PAGE 65 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g Jo ¢ abey E£ZOTILO0/L0 = (TJINT) vopenjeAs saueuliopa uawabevey eannasexy

Wbisieno pue uonejuswnoop ybnosoy) Bujuiejuiew ajiym ‘ssaulie) pue Aseinase Yum sojni saydde Ajus)sisuod syg suonenbal
ANH [e1apa4 pue saijod jeuoneziuebio yum soueldwod Buunsua u) souewsopad Buipue)sino ssjensuowap Joyalqg syl

(UOTYEMINSNL/SIUIUNUO )

_H_ D _H_ _H_ H (s82Y ANH 1p4pa puv 1jog 01 2ous42ypy) PIEPUE]S IUEBWI0JI]

‘KjaAoa)Yo passaippe ale sWaauod jey) Bunsua ‘ssauaaIsuodsal pue 'UCHESILNWILIOD JEd|d ‘WSIeuolssajoid suiejulew
ayg "oland ay) pue S[RISIIO JUBLLLISAOE YIMm SUOHOEIBIUL JBY Ul 201A8S Jawolsna Aiooejsnes Ajybiy sajensuowap 1ojoa1g ayL

THORBYNSOL/SIUIWUO))
_H_ _H_ _H_ H _H_ (sn20,] 4owwojsny)) (plepuE)§ NUEUWLIOId]

Alojoeysneg rewibiep Aoyoejsnpes | Aroyosejsiyes Buipuesing
AqBiR (Josmtedng Aq pajardwo)) SQEVYANVYLS - Il LdvVd

8¢l {payisse|oun) 40303410 SA1INISX3] ITOdVYN "d H1L3aVZIN3
‘ON Q) #akojdwg B[NL [ UoNEIYISSE|D Uohiscd awep asfojdwy

e g e e B .

VYUNHO

(3dW3) NOILYNTYAT FONYINNOZUId LNIWIDOVYNYIN JALLNIAX
ALINOHLNY TYM3NIY NVGdN ANY ONISNOH WVNO

PAGE 66 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



9 4o g abeg

£Z0Z/L0/10 = (3dWT) vonenjeAz sausuIOLa Jwawabeuey sannoaxy

AANOISSIIANINQD 119pIsay sndio)) - [1e)]

SHANOISSININOD 40 UV0d VANHD PqURJA JUBIEA

STANOISSTATAOD 40 AV0d VANHD TRqUay 950 A e

STANOISSTATACD 40 QUv0d VANHD PquSY 534401, 1011A

SUANOISSINANOD A0 MUAVOI VIANHD RquiBjy "eljaq °S BISlny

— -

SHANOISSININGD 40 MUVOd VANHD "UBWATEY ) 3I1A "ZoYdURg d [PEUCHIEN

AHOLOVASILYSNN[ ]

AYNIDNVYINL ]

STANOISSITNINOD 40 QU V04T VUNHD ustidiey) e1An] [ uqor

NIVL13y LON[] NIVL3Y [A]

AYOLOVASILYS ATHOIH[A

AHOLOVASILYS] ] ONIONVY1S.L1NO[]

(AT ‘TIT ‘IT T S1a0d uo pasvq uyod jip4240) ‘ONILYY TIVHE3IAO - A 19Vd

PAGE 67 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



v g jo g abey

YA s

ajeq

\v\m?m\% /b0

a\%%w&ﬁ !

7 s Aoy ogspesy

Al

mM.SRNQ\D P ATWBSMET) P S0 o

£20Z/20110 = {3dw3} uonen|eAl souRWIOpa Justiebe

aJmeuBig sekojdwg

uew sANdaX3 _

W RaeTr

=

et

(umid oudojaasp | uononipas 2ouvuiiofusd Suipn8ad s SOSIP 40 SJUIUIALZD ‘SUIZIU0D ‘SUOIID4 Auv spnjowt Appy)  :sHusmmo)) sdiordury

(‘poj08Ies 1 LoNdo iy} i ‘AI0JEPUBW a8 SHBLILI0D 8A0idiT) ATDUO)) JoN oQ_H_

u:u:owm_

-A3A0dINT A8

3137dW0O

{4
‘oN q| #9Aojdwg

(paljIssEI3UN) 10398l BAIINIDXT
apiL f uoyesYyiser| uolisod

IMOdV¥N "4 H138vZIN3

aweN aakojdwy

(3dINT) NOILYNTVAT IONVINNOAHId LANIWIODOVNVIN SAILNIIXIT
ALIMOHLNY TYMINIH NVaudN ANV ONISNOH WvYNO

g e e b g

_

PAGE 68 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



|._

930 | obey £202/20/10 — (3JW3) UONEN|EAT 8UBMLIOLE] Juswabeurly aApN2ax3

"Ajjeuonoun) pue SSIUSWIE LISPOW Yim s)e|dwod sispenbpesy Ajuouyiny Buisnoy mau o uolonsuo)

‘saoualadwiod [9As] (IS pue sbpamouy asealout 0] puelst JJo pue uo yjoq sspiunuoddo Buiuel; yum yejs spiaoxd o)

"SBOIAISS 9IUBLUS 0} ABOJOUYDS) LIBPOW JO 98N 2SBAIoUI pue Safioe;} Jno jo apelbdn 'Bujuiesn aaa1es Jawo)snd Bulob-uo epiroid
"SWOO0ISSED uoneanps jeads pue Ayoe) Buial JeuoiisSuEl YINOA ‘SalIoe)

Kouabiawo Alap|e JINpe ‘Syueq poo) 'SIsjuad suazpo Jowas 'uonisinboe Juswdinbe Ajojes ‘suonels Sy ‘SWOOISSE(D HE)S pesy spnjou)
spolosd asay | saAaloalqo asay} Joaw o) sweboid Burpoddns pue sBuipiing Bunonisuco pue sisuped No yum spasu Aununuocd Burinuap)
‘SJIUN JO SUOHEAOUS] pue 'ainjonJjseijul

jo speibdn apn[o ut 0} SYUN YHAHO jo uoneziwepow Buob-u ¢ siiun Buis noy dgnd jo weibo Id adueusiuliew usHIIP B LEIUIE

(sonoelqQ 21B2iels ay) o) pajejey) (s)Ananov

‘saA0alqo pue [eob s Aluoyiny Sy; 2o 0} papaau ssIIoe) pue sjo0) 3y Acuabe auy) apiaosd of

‘sapusladwo [aA9] ||IMs pue [eo1uyos) eaiojdws aoueyus o]

"S83IA19S Jualjo Ajjenb pue aaisuodsal apiacid o}

“$3NIUNLILIOD N0 JO Spaau aty) Buissasse ul suoneziuebio Juswuiaaob pue yoid-uocu Yum sdiysuone|al Ino LBYISUDIS PUB SOURBYUD O]
‘SJUBH YHNHO 104 sewoy Alejiues pue 9jes Jua0ap apinoid o

{(Aaisuodsal J0 eale Weiboid Yoed ssaUppy)  SaAoRiqO ueld 216ajenis ‘g

JuawisacIdwil ABUNUILLOY JO YSE] UOWILIOD

sy w1 sjediviped o) asudisjus ajeaud jo Juawabelnoous ybnoiy) pue sweiboid [ejuswulanob jeao| pue [esopa) ajgelieae (e ybnoy) ‘sejiwe)
BWoaul mo| Joj Buijemp Auejues pue ‘Jusoap 'ajes jo uoisiacid Ag pue juswdojaasp Alunwiued jo Buluueld sedosd AQ 'SSIUNLILIOS JO |eMBUS)
pue uawdojaaspal Aaplo syt Aq ‘suolipuod JyBlg pue wnjs jo uoeud aus Aq sidoad s,wenso) Jo 2ieyom pue Alajes ‘yjesy syl sjowoud o)

(Juswaiels UoISSI UOSOd) UOISSIN Y

(eanoaxg Aq persdwiod) INJWSSISSY-413S - | Lavd

SO0 | ._O“—O_\/”mm._.{w_ 40 JNVYN

e DGR ]| SZOZILOILO  OL bZOZ/QO/L0  uo
Hoday o) uoseay Hodey jo pouad

821 (payissejdun) J0)2211q aARNIAXT ITOd¥N "4 HL38VZI13

oN () 8aAojdwg SRIL / UDEINISSE]S UDIJISOd awep satojdwz

g iy e ok Bty .

(3dINZ) NOILVNTVAT FONVINNOINId ANIWIDOVNVIN SAILNOAXT
ALI-MOHLNY TYMINIY NVEdN ANV ONISNOH WVYNO

PAGE 69 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g jo Z abeg £202120/10 — (S4NI} uonenjeas esueuiopeg Juewebeuey aannooxg

‘Jels Joy juawdinba pue ainjuing 82140 SNOLEA JO JO JuaWaind0ld "syoafoid pue swelboid snouea 1avy} oy
spasu YHNH9 |2uuosiad Aessassu ay) apiacad 0] suonisod pue SJUBIUNCIVE Jof SJUaWNoal da)s saoqe Yum spiemlo) Buiropy

‘'spaesuoy welbouad ay) saow 0) Jueaws sapialoe pue sueld ‘saijod
snouea 8y Bundope pue Buidojaasp pue 108(0id A19A029Y Jajsesi JueiS) ¥o0|g Juswdojaas Auunwiwos) auy) uo Bupe ] “ebpng
Bunelado swabeuep 1955y HuisnoH ay) jo uondope Ajswy pue ‘weibod ssyonoa BuisnoH ay) jo uondope pue Buepdn

"S)USAD SOOIAIDG
0} podssed YIM USISSE PUB ‘NISUBI Y)IM ‘UOIIIROT SSIJSWIOH Weno) ay) ybnoyy sannue woid-uou snouea yym Buibebug

‘sy08f{oud Jepuis JeLjo pue ‘seoiales Buloyuo
plency funoses Buinol Jo ‘Bulojiuowl pue suone|[elsuUl BISWED AJLUNIas Jo Juswainoold ‘Jiedas asua) ‘Aedsl Jool ajaIouo)) ‘spun
YHNHS snouea jo sjosioid uonepjigeyss SNOINCISWINU SJ. JSY] SIUSID YHNHD J0) sawoy Alejlues pue sges ‘Juasap Buipiacid

0} spiebai ujIpA "seAalqO ue|d 216a1e0S SU) 199 JeL) SBIIAIDE SNOUBA US9SISA0 PUB PAJEIIUI SBY J0JOaII(] SAINISxg oyl

(ur|q d1BaenS 3y Ul payluapl saANa2lqo sy Bulsaw o) saiea) )l e douewIopad ||BI2A0 $$085Y) aduRULIONad Jo Alewauing (g

PAGE 70 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g jo ¢ sbey

£Z0Z/0/L0 — {IdW3) uonenjeas asuewiopad Juawabeuew sannsaxg

sprafodg puv suvid qr1H o aouvuzpuivpy y woywaado aanpoaffg ‘s

UNUNI Y SSIUHISHL "7

Gipqisuodsay davionpig / [postd / ABpquIunoddy I [

\_w.‘%hmamﬁm. SHOWOLF i f

ORIV S12241(F pup saadsuy

a8uvyy sppaF

Supopy uoistId>q

sdrysuonviay sppng -

SO1YI5] Sajouiodd -

uonvaounuf suordny)

HONI2AN(T PUD UOISIA SHDITUNNIO))

Suruuv]y 015210418

[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[
[]
[ ]
[]
[]
[ ]

L O L Oy oy o O L ) ) ) g O

L6 0O O O O D O O S O

SIS IS SIS SIS RS IS

Lo Ly O Oy Dy o oy oy o oy g

dufssapvay

Riojaejsnes [eutbiepy

Kioyaejsnes

Aoysegsneg
LyBiH

Gurpueysing

{yyoes o} seydde yerp Bures eyj 30840}
Josiuedng Aq pejeidiod :SIALLNDIXI 4O SNOILYLOALXT - 1l LH¥vd

8zL
"oN ] @9Aojdwg

(payyisse|pun) 1030311 sAINIOX]
3L / UonEIYISSE|D UDIISO

F10dV¥N "d H139vZ|13
aluep ashojdwg

(3dINT) NOILYNTVYAT IONVINNO4¥Id LNIWIADVYNVYIN JAILNDIXT
ALROHLNY TVMINIY NVEAN ANV ONISNOH NVNDO

PAGE 71 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



9 jo ¢ abieg £202/£0/10 = {IdNI) vojienjea] esueIomNe  Juswabeuey aagnaexy

"ue|d UONED0|NY PSYIEND) PRI XB | 8Wiodu] MoT ‘ssugepind pue spiepuels
weiboid Jayanop sd10y9 Buisno suy ax| suonenbal pue sprepueis ‘Asljod gnH [e19pe4 snouea jo uondope pue sejepdn Ajatul)

IUONEIJHSN £/SIUIMWO))

D _H_ _H_ H D (332y 1 1v43paA puv 4o1jod 0} aousiaypy) pIepuels IIUBULIONIY

)RS Jo 18WI0ISND [BUIS)UI 8] JO Spaau
ay) Bunsslu uo snNooy & moys suolisod (eonuD 10} Juswnios) da)s aacge pue juawdinba pue sinywing 8210 J0 JuBWaIN20d pue
SNO0J BSIMANIT “JBWOISND JUSHD By} puUe SND0) B moys Bupojuow pue seiawes AJUNoos ‘uoneljiqeys. 1oy a1 sjoefolsd snoea sy

‘uonednsSne/syuImmo )

D D _H_ H _H_ (5n00,] 42wi01S1)) 1PACPUE}S IULBULIONS ]

Aigyosejsiyeg reuibaepwy Aroyaejsiies | Aiojoejsnes Bupueysing

-un AyBIH (1osinsadng Aq pepeidiwo)) SQEVANVYLS - If 19vd

Rzl (paujisse|oun) 103931 BAIINISXT IMOdV¥N "4 HL3avZI13
oN Q] 3skojdwz 331 f UOIJEDLISSE]D) UOIISO swieN asAo|dwz

g ety ke kY e

VINHD

(2dW3) NOLLYNTVAT IONVANOA¥Id INIWIDOVNVIN JAILNDIXI
ALHOHLNY TYMINIY Nvadn ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 72 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



STOTILOL0 ~ { ) UcpenieAg sauewWioMod Juaweieuey eAnnoaxg _

W ANOISSIININOD J90pTsoy sudav)) 3 e |

SHANOTSSTAINOD 40 QU V04 VANHD PR uees §

sae( STANCISSHAINOD 40 U VOY VHIHD "RqUuUs]y 995 " Bljtwy

. 2
/ e i SYANOISSTININOD 40 QUVO4 VUIHD RQWAIY S0, 3 10PIA
_sz0z/er A T ST G WIS == T B

SHANOISSITAIAOD A0 (AVOd VIIHD "Welilel]) 3A "Zaoues *J [PPUEHEN

SHANOISSIININOD X0 QUVOd VD Weuieq) e1oAN T 9 of |

NIVLIY LON[] NIVLINY |

ANOLOVASILYSNN] ] AUOLOVASILYS ATHOINEKY

TYNIOUVYIN[ | AHOLOVASILVS] | ONIGNVY.LSLNO[ ]

(I T ‘I T Stvd uo pasng Suyws (ip4240)) ONIIVHE TIVHIAO — A L¥Vd

SHANCISSIINNOD A0 QUVO4d VHIHD “RYWIA BIR( 'S BISIUY

PAGE 73 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



$Jo g efieg £202/20/10 = (38W3T) ucpenjeas ssuruLOuSd JuswaBeuey sannosxg

amnjeublg %Vho_nEm

o parafo jsonssfnd) proyse 4%§£%?§ Nl

(upyd juawdojoasp ; uoypnpas souvwi10fiad SuippSo4 stuows30SIP 40 SJUWALED ‘SUIBIUOT ‘SUOYID2.4 Aup Ipnpout Abpy)  spudMIMEG)) 3dkojdmy

(‘pajosres s1 uogdo si) jt ‘Kiojepueiy eie sjuewwos 8afojdiw3) 1NDU0) JOU QQD

._=9=on w _ _.

-33A01dINT A8 31L3TdNOD

8zl (pamssejoun) J0)2341q 2ANNIAIXT MOdVYN "4 H13gvZI13
‘oN Jf alojdui 8(Itl j voneaNisse|) Uonisod awepN safojdw3

g praary e pr S v

(3dINT) NOILLYNTVAT IONVYINEOSUId INIJWIDVYNYIN JAILNIAXT
ALIMOHLNY TVMIANIY NYEdN ANV ONISNOH WVYNO

PAGE 74 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



—

9o | shed £Z0Z/L0/L0 — (3dWA) vonenjea] asueuwope Juewebeuely eapnoex3

‘Alijeuonouny pue sajuawie uLpow Yym a)a1dwod sispenbpeay Auoyiny Buisnoy mau Jo uogon)suod

‘$319U8)adwIoD [9A2] || pue SBpaMOoLY 9SESIOU| O} PUE|S) Jo PUE Uo |1oq saijiunyoddo Buiurel; yim yeys apiroid o

‘$831AJ9S 92uBYUS 0} ABojoUY08) UIapOoW JO 8sn 3sEaIOU| PUB SalIoe) INO Jo apeifidn ‘Bululel} 821A8s 1awW0)sND BuloB-uo epIAc.d
"SLUO0ISSE]D UoneInpa [e19ads pue Ajpoes Buial [euoiyisuel) InoA ‘'saiioey

AousbBiawe Ajsple JNpe ‘SYUEQq POO) ‘SISIUBD SUAZIND Joluas ‘uolsinboe Juswdinba Ajajes ‘SUOHEIS S1Y ‘SWOO0ISSEIO WS pesY SpNnaul
sjoaloid asay | "seApalqo essay) J@suw 0} sweiboid Buipoddns pue s6uiping Bulannsuod pue siduped NC YIM SPa3U Ajunwiwod Butkyuep)
‘SHUN JO SUSIEAOUS) PUE '8injonnsenyul

jo apesBdn spnjo W 0} SHUN YHNHO JO uoneziulapow BuloB-u O "syun Buis noy algnd jo weibo id esueusjuiew Jusbip e uiejulep

(seanoalgQ oibsieng eyl o) pelejay) (S)Ananoy

‘$3A1102[q0 pue |eob s Auoyny au) Jesal O} papaau salj(ive) pue sjoo) sy Asusbe ay) epiacid 0|

‘sapuajadwiod |19A3] IS pue |eo1UYyos) aaiojdws soueyus 0

"S90IAIRS JUBND A)jenb pue aaisuodsal apiaosd 0]

‘SBIUNWILLOD N0 JO Spasu ay) Buissasse ul suoneziuefio Juawuaaoh pue Josd-uou yum sdiysuonelsl 1no usyibuans pue ssueyus o
"SIUBI0 YHNHO Joj sewoy Alejues pue ajes ‘Jusdep apiaocid oL

(Aipaisuodsal o eaie welboid yoea ssaippy)  saanosslqo ueld nbsiens g

Jualaactdull AJUNWILLIOY JO YSE) UOWWOoD
ay} ul sjedpiped o) asudivjue ajeaud Jo Juswabeinoosus ybnoiy pue sweiboxd jeluswuianch |eoo| pue |eispa) ajqe|ieae (e ybnosy) ‘seljiwe;
aloou| Mo| 10y Buljiamp Aejues pue ‘juasap ‘ajes Jo uoisiaold Aq pue juswdo|aaap Ajunuiwo o Buiuueld 1adoid AQ ‘SBIUNWWOD JO |eMaUL
pue juawdojanapal AspIo oy} Ag ‘suompuod JyBig pue wnjs jo uofleunus sy Ag ajdoad $,Wweng jo alejjlem pue A3jes ‘Yyeay sy) sjowoid o)

(uaWIe)S UOISSII UONISOd) UOISSIN 'V

{(aannoax3 Aq pajsidwod) INIWSSISSV-4T13S - | Lyvd

301y "4 el|lwg H31vY JO JNVN

renuuy ] (1epun) fenuury-tuses| | SZ0Z/L0/L0 OL $202/80/20 Wwoid
Hoday 10 uosesy yadey jo poued

8zl (payisse|oun} 1012311 8ANI8X] ITOdYN "d HL38vZI13

‘aN g @sAcjdwiz 31 f UOEIJISSE|D UoIHSOd sweN ssiojdw3

(3dINT) NOILLYNTYAT FINVINHOAUTd LNIJWIDVNVIN JAILNITXT
ALIMOHLNY TVMINZY NVEYN ANY ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 75 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



9 jo 7 ebey £Z0Z/20/10 — (W3} Lvonenjers eauswoued Juewabeuely aagnaaxy

(uejd 91B8jRNS BY) LI paluap! saAloalgo ay) Bunasalu o) sajefel | se aouewsopad ||eJsA0 35955y} IIUBWIOMA Jo lewiwung

PAGE 76 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g jo 1 abed

£Z0T/L0/10 — (3dWI) vonenjeaz sdueunopad Juawabeuely eannaexy

L]

$p02{04J puv suvjgd qH fo aouvuopnvpy y uonvsadg sayoaffq ¢ f

HIWNO Y SSIUISHY T [

Anpqisuodsay Lavponply / [pIsty / HPGUIINOIdY [ |

qrsa2a1(q sap004 g 0F

WwonOY SpPaai(q puv sandsuy

aduny) spvay

Supyppy worsaq

sdyysuoyviay sppng

SOy Sapouodg -

uoyvaouuy suordiupy)

HOWIIN( PUD HOIS14 SAIDITURUIUIO))

Suruunlg nIawag

]
]
]
[]
]
[
[]
[ ]
[]
L]
[]
[]

O O O O O O o oy o o) U

L O O Ly ) O O O D D D L
CI S O O O O O O D U N

S L D L N B DD S N LD

drysiappay

fioyaeysiyes jeuibaep

uf

Lioyoeysneg | Kiojoegsies
AIUBIH

Guipue3sing

{yoee 0 seidde jey; Bupes ayl %08yD)
Josmiadns Ag pejeidwo) 1SAAILNDIXT 4O SNOILYLOIdX3 - Il Lvd

8zl
“oN Q| @ako|dwg

{(palyisse|oun} 1012241 3AIINIBXT
Si1L f UO|JED|}ISSELD UORISO4

IMOdVN "4 HL3gvZI13

(3dW3) NOILYNTVAI ONVINNOAHId LNFNIDVNVYIN SAILNIIXT
ALRNOHLINY TVMANIY NVEMN ANV ONISNOH WVYNO

PAGE 77 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



- g jo ¢ abey

£202/L0010 — (3dW3T) vonenjeas asuewIOpad Juawabeuey aannoexy

TUOPEIYNSNL/SIUIWWO))

($82) (IN1H 1P45pa] puw A21j0d 01 3oua.La4py) pIEpUE)S SIULWLIOLIDJ

TUOLIEIYISNL/SHUI WO

[]

]

[]

[] /]

(5n00,f 42w01sn7y) PIEPUER]S IUBULIOLIS]

Aloyoeysnes
l==

jeuiBiepw

Aiojoegsnpes

Rioyoeyspes Buipueysing
Aybry

(1osinedng Aq paysrdwos) SAYVYANVIS - I 19vd

8¢l

-oN gl eelojdwg

{pawssejoun) 1032341g 2A1IN28X3

oIlLL / UoeIYISSE| UonISOd

IMOdVN "4 H1L38vZ1N3

awepN a3kodwy

Sy g e ey g

(3dA) NOILYNTVAT FINVINYOAHAd LNIWIOVYNVIN JALLNIAXI
ALIKMOHLNY TYMINIY Nvaan ANV ONISNOH WVND

PAGE 78 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g Jo § abey

£20Z120110 - (AJING) voneneas asuewuopad Juswsbeue sannaaxgy

AANOISSTININQD 1UapIsay sudio) 7 Hey]

STANOISSININOD A0 QU V04 VUIHD Uiyl JUCIEA

SZ0zZ/LE/. eq SM% .“) §§ SHANOISSININOD 40 MUVOH VHNHD 1RQUILA "0y “f elfiury

ETT | SWANOISSININOD 0 Qav0d VU1HD Pquay $o1a0L o 10117

SHANOISSININGD JO QIVOH VHHD RQUIALA “EIa(] 'S BISiuy

STANOISSTNIANOD JO AVOd VA[IHD "UBIITEYT) 3014 "ZoYoury °d [PEUBPEN

SYANOISSTAINOD 40 (AVOY VHIHD "Uewhley) "ealy °f uyor

NIVL3y LON[ ] NIVL3y [/]

AMOLOVASILYSNNL ] AYOLOVASILYS ATHOIH[/]

AVYNIDSVYIN[ ] ANOLOVASILYS[ | ONIGNVLSLNO[ |

(Al TIT TT T 1404 o paspq Butivd [jp4240) SNILVE TIVHIAO ~ A 1¥Vd

PAGE 79 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



g jo g abeg £Z0Z/L0/10 — {3dWI) uopen|ea] saurwiopay Juswabeuey eanniexy

ajeq c‘.:a?m_w eeiojdwz

o/ 8ofbd é

N S B N o 54 ?s

F7 V™) G vl T gsﬁabnows
PPN O] g v axus%&?iéu

(ud wowdopsasp ) uOHPAIDAS 2ouvuLi0fad SBuipanFad SIUBUDIUSDSIP 40 SIMIWIIATD ‘SULPIU0D ‘SUOHIDIL AUD SPNIOUl Avyy) spuamiwio)) dLopdwuy

(‘pajosfas st uondo Sy Ji ‘AlojepuRW 8.8 SjuBWWI0d 88A0/dIWZ) INIUOT) Jou oﬁ_H_

.:5.5@@

‘IIA0T4WI A9 313TdNOD |

8z. {payisse|oun) 4032211 SARNIAXT IMOdVYN ‘4 H139vZIn3
"oN | @afo|dwy 3L ; UoneayIsse|) Uonisod alweN sadojdwig

(3dW3) NOLLYNTVAT FINVYINHOJ¥Id LNIFJWIADVNVIN JAILNDAXT
ALIHOHLNY TYMINIY NYSHN ANV ONISNOH AYNO

PAGE 80 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



YO  ° -~
[ord 1 FAF A T N Ammsmv UchEN|EA] adUBULIOLA uﬂ@E@QGEGE A INDBX ]

"Ajl[BUOIDUNY PUB S3NjlUBWE Wspow yim a)8jdwos sisuenbpesy Aloyiny Buisnoy mau Jo uononsuoD

‘serousiadwod [9As| |II4s pue sbpaimouy asealoul 0) puels] Yo pue uo Wyoq sapunuoddo Bujuies) yum yeis spiaosd o]

"S80IAI9S 9oURYUD 0} ABo|oUYIS) LISpoW JO 2SN 8SESIoUl pUB Sal|Ioe) Jno jo apelbdn ‘Bujuies soies rewoysns Bulob-uo apiaold
"SUI00JSSED uoneanpae (e1ads pue Ajjioe) Buial feuomISUERL) YINOA ‘sani|ioe)

fouabBiawo Apeple Jnpe 'Sy ueqg Poo} ‘SIBIUSd SudZID JoIuas 'uosinboe Juswdmba Ajajes ‘SUOKBIS a4l ‘SWOOISSEID LIRS PEOY Spn|jou]
speloid asay] -saaposiqo ssay) 1eaw o) swelboid Bupoddns pue sBuipiing Bunonysuos pue sisuped no ypm spasu Ajunuiiod Builgusp)
*SJIUN JO SUOBAOURI PUB ‘BINjoNnJisessul

Jo speifidn spnpp Ul 0} SjIUN YYHNHS Jo uoneziwspow Buob-u O ~spun Buis noy angnd jo welsbo 1d soueusyuiew Jusbiyp e wejuew

(seanoefqo o1bslenS By) 0} pajedy) (s)AnAnoy

‘s8AN03(qo pue (eob s AlLoyiny auy) Jeaw o) papasu saii|Ioe) pue $j00) ay) Aousbe ay apiaoud o)

'SapuUB)adod (DA IS PUB |EDIUY0d) doAojdws soueyud 0]

*$821A18S JUBID Alllenb pue aaisuodsel apiaold o)

"SBIUNLLLIOS INO Jo spasu ay) Buissasse ul suoneziuefuo Juswuisaol pue yjoid-uou ypum sdiysuoneas no usyjbusl)s pue asueyua o]
SJUBND YHNHO 10} Sawoy Alejues pue ajes ‘Juaosp apiaoid o]

(Amgisuodsai jo eale weiboid yoes ssaippy) saaloaiqo ueld oibsjens g

‘Juswisacsduwil AJUNLWILLIOD JO ¥SB) UOLUWOD

8y} ul syediviyed o) ssudisius aieaud Jo Juswabeinosug ybnoay) pue sweliboid jejusuuiaAcB [220] pue [BISpa} s|qe|eAe |[e ybnoay) ‘saipwe;
awooul mo| 1oy Buniamp Aejues pue ‘usossp ‘ejes Jo uoisiaoid AQ pue Juswdojsasp Anunwiliod Jo Buluueid sedosd AQ ‘saqunuwuied Jo |emsus:
pue juawdo|saspal Apaplo ays Ag 'suoyipuod Jybig pue wn|s Jo uoheuLle 8y} Aq ojdosd s,wenc) Jo siejam pue Ajajes ‘yjeay ay) sjowold o)

(juswayelg UoISS uoNIsOd) uolIssI Y

SNd90) ‘% vy . H3ILVH 4O FWVYN (8annoax3 Ag pajeidwo)) INIWSSISSY-413S - | 1avd

enuuv3] (1enuy) enuuy-wes| | SZ0T/LO/L0 L $Z0Z/Q0/L0  woig
woday 10§ uoseay Moday jo pouad

8tl (pauyisse|sun) 1033341 dA1ND3X] INMOdVN "4 H139vZIN3
‘ON | #ehojdwg apl] ; uoljeaisse|D uolsod awepN eofojdwg

by iy s e .

YyENnHO

(3dN3) NOILYNTVYAZ IONVYINNOINId LNIWIDOVYNVIN JALLNDAXA
ALRIOHLNY TYMINITY NVGHN ANY ONISNOH WVNO

PAGE 81 of 93

2025

ing of September 30

Board Meet



£Z0Z/20/1L0 — (IdINT) LONENIEAT BDURINIOLD JuaWaBeUEY 3ARNI8XT

(uelq 21B21enS ay) Ul paynuap! saaldslqo sy Bunssuw o) sejejal Jt SB soueWIOMad [[BIBAD SSOSSY) 8DUEBLIIONS Jo Alewiwng @

PAGE 82 of 93

2025

ing of September 30

Board Meet



™t

£Z0Z/L0/10 - (IJNT) vonenieag souewlIolad Juswabeusyy aanasxy

spaloaf puv suv)g (1 H Jo souvuapingy B uonpiadQ aadaffg ‘£

uIWNO Y Ssausng 7 [

Aqisuodsay £apponply / postd / GquIMnORIY [

Ans4241(q SR0M044 QT

uono Y spa(q pup sandsuy -

a3uny) sppaF -

Supyppy uosra(q

sduysuopvlay spyng

SO SAIOUO4T "

uonvaouuy suordwmvyy -

UONOIINT PUD HOISLA SOIVIUNMIIO) °

Sumupjg nSawng

[ ]
[]
]
]
[
L]
[
[ ]
[ ]
L]
]
L]
L]

Lo o O Oy Oy oy Oy e
L O O L O oy oy ) O 2 O g
LU L O O L g g g o 4

1

diyssapray -

Aoyoejspes jeuibaey Aojoeysiyes | Aojosejsnes W‘a_mamgo

AyBiy

(yoee 0 sandde e} Bunes aijt ooy2)
Josiniadng Ag payeidtiod SIALLNDIXT 40 SNOILYLD3AX3 - I Ldvd

8z, (potssEI2UN) 1010841 AIINDEX]

‘oN @) sedojdwz B)LL / UonesyIsse|D uonisod

IMOdVN "4 H139VvZINd

awepn safojdw]

L sy e e v

vinmMmo

(3dW3) NOLLYNTVAT IDONVINUHOAYId LNIWIADVNVIN SALLNDIXT
ALIMOHLNY TVM3NIH NVGYN ANV ONISNOH NVYNO

PAGE 83 of 93

2025

Board Meeting of September 30



 soeyped (Y T I Y Y d

£Z0Z120/00 — (IdWI) ucnenjeAn asueuliolad uswabeuew saannosaxg

K u\u..qg@\ &m Mﬂve&.;ﬂ\

"HOREIYYSUL/SIUsUITLI0)

/]

(5823 (IN1H 1p12paf puv (o110 0] 22ud.5ypY) :PICPUR)S RJUBWLIONIA]

Sacomyr Apop o 0 sprp 2y 47 \\&mxuxm o
Semptons oo 5202730 gty o ey 42yt G FL

/

r\a\%b\\“v\\ A~ u\\un.\ oy Ay F° s& x4 Dnavd G

\gﬁ\ \h:\ ¥ \%\\Vﬂ_ﬁ.\\(\“\h%
@uﬂ%

JUOYEIYNSNL/SHUIUWO,)

il

(sn20,] 42w03sn)) IplEpuUL)S IIUBWLIOLID]

Aioyorysnes
=upy

jeuibaey

Aiojoejsnes

/

ojoeysiyeg Bulpuesing
AyBiy

(tosiuedng Aq pajeidwo)) SGUVANVLS - 1l Lavd

8CL

‘opN ) @9Aojdw3

(pPaIsSsE2UN) 1039811Q 9AIINDSXT

3l}1L / UOHEIYISSELD UoNESOd

IMOdV¥N ‘4 H139VvZi13

awep sakojdwg

- g gy g by

(3dIN3) NOLLYNTVAT TINVINHOHS4Id LNIFWIADVNVIN JAILLNIAXS
ALIMOHLNY TYMINIY NVEHN ANV ONISNOH WVNO

PAGE 84 of 93

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025



£20Z/20/10 — (3dW3) vopENn|EAT dURULIDHD JuswabBauely sAyNDaxX]

el

WANOISSTIINGD 1WRpIsay sndio) q [1e3]

SYWANOISSINAOD A0 QAVOd VANHD TR IUESEA

SUANOISSIININOD A0 GaVO4 VINHD BqUIdIA 30Ty "4 ey

SUANOISSTNINOD A0 @AVOL VINHD "RQUIRIA "SI0 Y 101917

SWANOISSTATNOD A0 QU vO04d vaNHD (RN sIPq S By

SHANOISSTIAIAOD 10 Auv0d VUNHD UEWIE]) 93[A ZJUES '] [PEUEIHEN

AMOLOVASILYSNN[ ]

TVNIOYVIN[ ]

SUANOISSININOD 40 QUVO4d VUHD UeWwIey) EIRAR] T uyof

NIVL13¥ LON[ | z_<._.mwg

AYOLOVISILYS ATHOIH[ |

AHOLOVASILYS[] QZ_QZ(._.w._.:N_W _

(AT TIT ‘1T ' smod uo pasvq Sunvd jjp4340) ONILVY TIVE3IA0 ~ A Livd

PAGE 85 of 93

2025

Board Meeting of September 30



9 jo g abe ©ZOZIL0/L0 — (3dINT) uonenieas asueswIoUad usiusBeuey aAnndexy

ajeq aanjeubig mwto_aEm

\X&\w 0/ 0 . \V

w,\va&wﬂ Vo m%f@,é@é g& e, ..p\?g storie 2ol hq
}3 g#@hé uﬂrﬁﬁﬁﬁlxge_{
Py sy g vessmnss) ( Gopmpeng b o iy o o}

(-upyd 1usdoppasp / HoyDNDAS 20U WLIOLIPd SuIpADF.4 SIUPUELBUSIP 4O SJUDUDIASD ‘SUAIOUOD ‘SHORIDAL Aup spnjoul Avpy) SHULWWO)) RAopdmy

{(‘peyossas si uondo sty j *Alojepueui a.1e SJusILWeD 8aA0[UIT) INDUO.) JOU oQ_H_

.:.u.SUE

:33A0TdIANT A9 ILITdWNOD

8Z. (payissepUN) 1030841 8AIINDIXT 1TOdVYN ‘3 H13gvzIn3
‘oN | @3fojdwy 2]} ; uoneayIsse|D uousod swepN seAojduig

(3dIN3) NOLLYNTVAI 3ONVINEO4N3d LNIWIDOVNVYIN JAILNIIXT
ALIMOHLNY TYMINIY NvEdN ANV ONISNOH NVND

PAGE 86 of 93

2025

Board Meeting of September 30



URBAN &

*igp2 l}"

GHURA

o 2
4
»

aﬁ% j

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima® Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671) 4723701
Website: www.glura.org

Lourdes A, Leon Guerrero

Govemor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Govemor of Guaim

John J. Rivera
Chaiman

Nathanael P, Sanchez
Viee Chaiman

Anisia 8. Delia
Commissioner

Emilia F, Rice
Compmissioner

Victor R. Torres
Comimissioner

Karl E, Corpus
Resident Commissioner

Elizanbeth F, Napoli
Executive Director

Fernando B. Esteves
Deputy Director

August 15, 2025

Mr, Malcolm F. Stiles

Re: Lot 7, Block 9, Phase 2B-1, Tract 2025, Asan, Guam
Dear Mr. Stiles;

A thorough review of the record and circumstances surrounding the above-
referenced Asan property has been completed by our Community Development
Division (CD Division). The CD Division's research was based on your request that
the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) correct the alleged
encroachment of your adjacent lot at GHURA’s cost, due to an alleged urban
renewal error conducted in the village.

During the research of the affected property, the CD Division found that the
GHURA Board of Commissioners (GHURA BOC) on or about March 4, 2021
passed Resolution No, FY2021-006 (A), a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit “A”, approving the transfer of ownership for Lot 7, Block 9, Phase 2B-1,
Tract 2025, Asan, Guam from GHURA to the Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA).
The GWA had identified underground utility lines and drainage items running center
through the aforementioned property which serviced the Asan Springs Water Supply
Facility. As such, GWA had requested from GHURA the ownership of the property
to rehabilitate and maintain the systems for the facility in order to provide additional
water service.

However, it was further determined by the CD Division in its research, that a Grant
Deed was never effectuated to GWA since approved in 2021 by the GHURA BOC.
In order to correct this oversight, on or about November 18, 2024, GHURA made
and entered into a Grant Deed with GWA granting and conveying to GWA Lot 7,
Block 9, Phase 2B-1, Tract 2025, Asan, Guam which was subsequently recorded at
the Department of Land Management, Office of the Recorder, under Instrument
Number 1004249 on or about December 4, 2024, a copy of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit “B”.

This letter serves as formal notice that the matter is now considered closed and final
by GHURA. If you wish fo continue asserfing any claims to correct the boundary
lines affecting your Asan property, it is recommended that you contact the Guam

@ vceting of September 30, 2025

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 304 Coordinator.
The Coondinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.

PAGE 87 of 93


juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Highlight

juls
Highlight

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Typewritten Text

juls
Pencil


¥
%:% ;

s 19430

Waterworks Authority directly to do so as Lot 7, Block 9, Phase 2B-1, Tract 2025, Asan, Guam, had been
legally deeded to GWA; who are now the owners of the property. Nevertheless, our CD Division is willing to
assist you in providing information and context to GWA regarding your concerns in light of the research which
was done on the abovementioned Asan property, on your behalf, formerly owned by GHURA.

Sincerely,

Elizabeth F. Napoli

Executive Director

Ce:  CD Division
GHURA Legal Office

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 88 of 93



EXHIBIT “A”

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 89 of 93



.'i_l,:_f' :i:!

RASSED:

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 90 of 93




GOVERNMENT OF GUAM - Department of Land Management

Office of the Recorder 1 i 4249

File for Racord Is Instrument Number
On the Year 20@,_ Month \1 Day OU‘ Time \\'IBUMW
Recording Fe'; DE-OFFICIO _ Receipt No. _DE-OFFICIO

Deputy Recorder

GRANT DEED

THIS DEED, made and entered into this { e day of fEMBER. | 2024, by and between
the GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY, whose address Is 117 Bien Venida Avenue,
Sinajana, Guam 96910, hereinafter called the GRANTOR, and the GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY,
whose address Is Glorla B. Nelson-Public Service Building, 688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913, a public
corporation of the Government of Guam, hereinafter calied the GRANTEE,

The GRANTOR does hereby grant and convey to the GRANTEE, Its successors and assigns, to have
and to hold farevet, the tract or parcel of land described as follows, to wit:

Lot 7, Block 9, Phase 2B-1, Tract 2025, Asan, Guam, Urban, as sald Lot is described in that Subdivision
Survey of Lot Asan-R-3A Inland Phase 2B-1, Tract 2025, as shown on Drawing Number, DSI-5-90-03, as
L.M. Check Number 418FYS0, dated July 29, 1991 and recorded on October 1B, 1991 under Instrument
No. 461729 at Land Management,

For informational purposes only, the above referenced map indicates the property contains an area of
565¢ square meters or 6,077t square feet,

Last Certificate of Yitle Number; 28949 - Antonlo 5. Gumataotao and Susan S. Gumataotao, husband
and wife {as to Basic Lot 7, Block 9).

As a condition of this GRANT, the GRANTEE must use the praperty for public utility purposes. In
the event that the GRANTEE does not use said property for the purpose described above, the property
shall revert-back to GRANTOR.

All Government of Guam rights, title and interest in and to adjoining streets and slleyways are

excepted and excluded from this GRANT and shall remain the property of the Government of Guam,

Grantee, for Itself and its successors and assigns, hereby acknowledge and confirm that water and

electricity are immediately available on the property or within 100 feet of said property. fk.

Page 1 of 3
Grant Deed

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 91 of 93



The GOVEANMENT further specifically reserves easement and right-of-way, in perpetulty, in
under, through, over and across the above described parcel of land, for the purpose, at any time, of
constructing, placing, maintaining, repairing, and operating sewage, drainage, and utility lines of any
nature whatsoever, together with all rights and privileges, Including the rights of ingress and egress to and
from the parcel of land, inherent in the use and exercise of such easement, and rights-of-way, and
including the right to make such changes and alterations In.connection with the locations, sizes or types
of sald sewage, drainage, or utility lines as the GDVERNMENT may, from time to time, in its sole discretion,
deem appropriate. The GOVERNMENT also reserves to itself all water and mineral rights in the real

property sa conveyed.

Grantee shall not sell, convey, alienate, mortgage, or encumber thelr Interest in sald property or any part

thereof, or any interest therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this instrument the day and year first

above written.

GRANTOR:
GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

ELIZABETH . MAPOLl
Executive Director

GRANTEE:
GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY

MIGUEL C. BORGAYLO, P.E.
General Manager

Page 2ol 3
Grant Deed

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 92 of 93



GUAM, US.A. }

) ss
arvor_ SINKIANR
ON THIS RTH day of WEMBEK 2024, befare me, a Notary Public in and for Guam,
U.5.A,, personally appeared Elizab f li, Executive Director of Guam: nga

Renewal Authority and she acknowledged to me that she executed the foregoing GRANT DEED, as her
voluntary act and deed for the purposes therein set forth,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and

year flrst above written,

NOTARYPUBfic =~ 7 7
My commission expires; MAR (2 2027

GUAM, U.S.A, )

CITY OF

ON THIS J‘&.ML day of WML. 2024, befare me, a Notary Public in and for Guam,

U.5.A,, personally appeared Miguel €. Bordallp, P.E., General Manager of Gua erworks Authorit
and he acknowledged to me that he executed the foregoing GRANT DEED, as his voluntary act and deed
for the purposes therein set forth,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have heraunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year first above written,

hasst W@aﬁ.}

N rAnvpuadc [V

FRANCESS.REYES
| 31?{ gmUSA
n or
My Commission Expires: SEPT, 20,
Page3of3 P.O. Box 2977 H 8, QU 96932
Grant Deed

Board Meeting of September 30, 2025 PAGE 93 of 93



	12mos 24400: 
	Viewed virtually via: 
	BOC Commissioners Attendance: 
	Virtual: Off
	Virtual_2: Off
	Virtual_3: Off
	Virtual_4: Off
	Virtual_5: Off
	InPerson: Off
	InPerson_2: Off
	GHURA Management Staff: 
	Julie Lujan MIS Administrator: Off
	Sonny Perez AE Manager: Off
	Thalia Pablo: Off
	Narcissa Ada AMP1 Manager: Off
	Katherine Taitano RPE Chief Planner: Off
	Gina Cura AMP2 Manager: Off
	Patrick Bamba AMP3 Manager: Off
	Philomena San Nicolas AMP4 Manager: Off
	Pearly Mendiola GT Manager: Off
	Jolyn Terlaje: Off
	Miguel Fernandez: Off
	Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff: Off
	Maria Cherry Canete: Off
	Legal Counsel: 
	Eliseo M Florig Jr Legal Counsel for GHURAPublic: 
	1 Intent of AwardIFB GHURA2510 Renovations of nine 9 Public Housing Units at AMPs 1 2 and 4: 
	51325 Executive Director Napoli read the Intent of AwardIFB GHURA2510 Renovations of nine 9 Public Housing Units at AMPs 1 2 and 4 on pages 16 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg: 
	2 Intent of AwardIFB GHURA25001 CDBGDR Fleet Vehicles: 
	objections Motion passed unanimously: 
	AGENDA ITEMRow1: 
	3 Resolution No FY2025027 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Fraud Waste and Abuse Policy: 
	ACTION51725 Executive Director Napoli read the Resolution No FY2025027 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Fraud Waste and Abuse Policy on pages 1021 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Mr Florig indicated that in the caption of Resolution FY2025027 it should read Fraud comma Waste comma and Abuse Deputy Director Esteves stated the following  Series of policies regarding fiscal and financial controls as part of phase II  Action Plan is still under final review by HUD  First week of September the policies will be submitted to HUD for review  GHURA is requesting approval from the board to provide flexibility for the executive director to amend from the base policies that the board approves  Page 3 of the policy indicates that grantees must track all amendments Amended versions will be recorded and reported to the board by the executive director  Policy writing was a team effort  Team is doing well and focused on developing the policies for launch Chairman Rivera asked whether people can use the contact information provided in the policy to report complaints Deputy Director Esteves confirmed this and added that the information will also be published on the website at wwwguamcdbgdrorg: 
	AGENDA ITEMRow1_2: 
	Commissioner Torres asked if a template was used as reference to write the policies Deputy Director Esteves indicated that HUD recommended that GHURA research what other grantees had done in the past and determine what CDBGDR could put into operation: 
	4 Resolution No FY2025028 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Website Policy: 
	51925 Executive Director Napoli read the Resolution No FY2025028 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Website Policy on pages 2230 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Chairman Rivera asked whether the issue of cyber security is included in the website policy Deputy Director Esteves indicated that nothing was required in terms of cyber security He added that the website will not have portal access A separate software will be maintained on the server for any sensitive information He indicated that the website is hosted and believed that the servers are protected Deputy Director Esteves stated that the resolution still had formatting editing that needed to be done Chairman Rivera agreed and indicated that the integrity of the content is present in the document but the structure: 
	5 Resolution No FY2025029 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Duplication of Benefits Policy: 
	52125 Executive Director Napoli read the Resolution No FY2025029 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Duplication of Benefits Policy on pages 3143 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Chairman Rivera asked if there had been issues with the duplication of benefits in the past Deputy Director Esteves indicated that GHURA has not However this policy is a requirement especially when it comes to disaster recovery The various benefits may be in the areas of SBA loans various insurances or FEMA The program will have a worksheet to assist in determining or calculating and it is important that it is monitored: 
	52225 Commissioner Rice moved to approve Resolution No FY2025029 Resolution Approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Duplication of Benefits Policy Commissioner Torres seconded the motion There were no objections Motion passed unanimously: 
	6 Resolution No FY2025030 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Policy Ensuring Timely Expenditure: 
	52325 Executive Director Napoli read the Resolution No FY2025030 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Policy Ensuring Timely Expenditures on pages 4451 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Deputy Director Esteves stated the following  Section 6Board passed CDBGDR Procurement policies allowing this particular grant the ability to adopt the federal procurement standards This was one way to ensure compliance  Reprogramming of funds transparent with awardees and subrecipients HUD to monitor progress  Goal is timely expenditure of funds: 
	7 Resolution No FY2025031 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Program Income: 
	52525 Executive Director Napoli read the Resolution No FY2025031 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program Income on pages 5260 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Deputy Director Fernandez stated the following  General rule is if a loan program is given out for construction the proceeds from the loan or interest earned is considered program income  It is subject to the same rules as the regular funds  This ensures that the requirement is to spend program income before drawing down additional funds  Exceptions is a revolving loan program: 
	52625 Commissioner Rice moved to approve Resolution No FY2025031 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Program Income Commissioner Delia seconded the motion There were no objections Motion passed unanimously: 
	8 Resolution No FY2025032 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery Conflict of Interest Policy: 
	ACTION52725 Executive Director Napoli read the Resolution No FY2025032 Resolution approving the Guam Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Conflict of Interest Policy on pages 6170 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC August 26 2025 meeting packet which was also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Deputy Director Esteves stated the following  Potentially high risk  Policy will not be approved by HUD if specific things were not included in the policy  Covered Individualany person who is an employee agent consultant contractor officer or an appointed or elected official of the government of Guam or a subrecipient who o a exercises has exercised is reasonably expected to exercise any function or responsibility with respect to assisted activities o b is in a position to participate in the decision making process o c is in a position to gain insider information with regard to such activities o Immediate familywhether by blood marriage or adoption Spouse Commonlaw Parent Parent inlaw child stepchild siblings sibling inlaw step sibling grandparent grandchild of a covered individual  Covered individuals also include Governor Lt Governor delegates of: 
	AGENDA ITEMRow1_3: 
	AGENDA ITAM: 
	DISCUSSION: 
	ACTION: 
	1 Project Updates: 
	52925 Executive Director Napoli stated the following  FY2024 Audit has been completed  Ernst and Young to present to the board is scheduled for a future meeting  Copies of the Audit report have been requested for board review  Labor Day Picnic invitation to the board  Project updates scheduled for next board meeting: 
	No action taken: 
	No action taken No action taken: 
	3 Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting Tuesdays September 16 2025: 
	53125 Chairman Rivera requested that the board mark their calendars: 
	Elizabeth F Napoli: 
	Date: 
	Viewed virtually via_2: 
	BOC Commissioners Attendance_2: 
	Virtual_6: Off
	Virtual_7: Off
	Virtual_8: Off
	Virtual_9: Off
	InPerson_3: Off
	InPerson_4: Off
	InPerson_5: Off
	GHURA Management Staff_2: 
	Julie Lujan MIS Administrator_2: Off
	Sonny Perez AE Manager_2: Off
	Tyler Mortera: Off
	Antonio Camacho Procurement: Off
	Jolyn Terlaje_2: Off
	Miguel Fernandez_2: Off
	Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff_2: Off
	Maria Cherry Canete_2: Off
	Andrew Manglona: Off
	Legal Counsel_2: 
	Eliseo M Florig Jr Legal Counsel for GHURA: 
	Public: 
	Mr Uriah Aguon PDN Mr Malcom Stiles Mr Rozalito Pagnal and Ernst  Young Staff: 
	FY2024 Audit Report: 
	ACTION53325 Executive Director Napoli requested to have the Correspondence and Reports item proceed before the scheduled new business agenda items Acting Chairman Sanchez approved the request Mr Rozalito Pagnal Erst  Young partner stated the following  Presented the results of GHURAs September 30 2024 single audit issued on August 15 2025  Issued reports on GHURAs FY2024 o Financial Statements Unmodified or Clean Opinion o internal control over financial reportingNo finding o compliance for each major program  CDBGQualified or modified opinion not clean Reporting related Reconciling  Housing Voucher ClusterQualified or modified opinion not clean Reporting related Reconciling  Supportive Housing for the Elderly Unmodified or clean opinion  Section 108 Loan Guarantees: 
	AGENDA ITEMRow1_4: 
	ACTIONUnmodified or clean opinion o Report on internal control over Compliance and Report on Schedule of Expenditures for Federal Awards required by the Uniform Guidance  Management Letter Comments are matters that are not a material weakness or a significant deficiency communicated in writing for improvement  There was an improvement from 20232024  Monitoring of Capital Assets Subledger comment was a recommendation that the supporting documents and the books reconcile Deputy Director Esteves indicated that anything acquired by the agency that could be an asset is reported Mrs Frances Danieli GHURA Controller indicated that the process is a report by AE is compared to the general ledger She added that she had depreciated an asset that was not completed She stated that the process will now include a system that will record the fixed and depreciating assets to determine whether it is a construction in progress Mr Pagnal extended his appreciation to the Fiscal team He indicated that he and his team intend to work closely with GHURA to have the reports completed in a timely manner He added that the only reason for a delay on the financial statement is the release of the Pension and OPEB numbers as they are contingent with audits done outside of GHURA financials However the goal is to have the report completed as close as possible to the time that their numbers are released: 
	1 Intent of AwardIFB GHURA2512 Lead Abatement for AMPs 1 2 and 4 2 Change Order 1 for Base Bid 3 GHURA25002 Renovation of MOD 9 for AMP 1 2 and 4: 
	53325 Executive Director Napoli requested to have item 1 the Intent of AwardIFB GHURA2512 Lead Abatement for Public Housing Units at AMPs 1 2 and 4 and item 2 Change Order 1 for Base Bid 3 GHURA25002 Renovation of MOD 9 for AMP 1 2 and 4 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC September 16 2025 meeting packet tabled for the next scheduled meeting as the items were not ready for the boards review and approval This item is also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg: 
	3 Resolution No FY2025024 A1 Amendment to the 2025 ommunity Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Citizen Participation Plan CDBGDR CPP: 
	4 Resolution No FY2025033 Resolution Commending Ms Ana C Sahagon Interviewer Clerk for her dedication and contributions to the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority GHURA: 
	53725 Executive Director Napoli requested to table item 4 Resolution No FY2025033 Resolution Commending Ms Ana C Sahagon Interviewer Clerk for her dedication and contributions to the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority GHURA to the next board meeting as Ms Sahagon was unable to attend todays meeting: 
	5 Resolution FY2025 034 Resolution approving the detailed appointment extension for an additional ninety 90 days for CY2025 for Kathleen Jean Taitingfong CDBG DR Program: 
	53925 Executive Director Napoli read Resolution FY2025034 Resolution approving the detailed appointment extension for an additional ninety 90 days for CY2025 for Kathleen Jean Taitingfong CDBGDR Program on pg 15 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC September 16 2025 board packet also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Deputy Director Esteves stated the following  GHURA Satellite locations have an Administrative Assistant working there CDBGDR would like to remain consistent and in sync with GHURA  Ms Taitingfong has a deep understanding of the agency and is fully prepared to step into this role  Requesting that the board support this appointment Chairman Rivera indicated that Ms Taitingfong is a great recommendation for the continuity of operations and to ensure that the added responsibilities are executed: 
	6 Resolution No 2025035 Resolution approving the detail appointment extension for an additional ninety 90 days for CY2025 for Carlo N Ongklungel CDBG DR: 
	54125 Executive Director Napoli read Resolution FY2025035 Resolution approving the detail appointment extension for an additional ninety 90 days for CY2025 for Carlo N Ongklungel CDBGDR on pg 16 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC September 16 2025 board packet also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg Dr Kim Bersamin stated the following  Regarding CDBGDR Mr Ongklungel stepped right into the duties and responsibilities of the higherlevel Personnel Specialist III position  She commended his work  She respectfully requested that the board approve the extension of ninety 90 days Deputy Director Esteves stated that the detailed assignment aligns with the work that they are doing and there is commensurate pay to go with that Acting Chairman Sanchez thanked Dr Bersamin and her staff for the hard work that they continue to do: 
	7 Resolution No2025036 Resolution adopting the 2025 Public Housing Admissions and Continued Occupancy ACOP that includes an appendix relating to the changes mandated by the Housing Opportunities Through the Modernization Act HOTMA of 2016: 
	8 Resolution No FY2025037 Resolution approving the FY2026 Operating Budgets for Public Housing Asset Management Projects AMP: 
	9 Resolution No FY2025038 Resolution approving the FY2026 Operating and Administrative Budget: 
	54725 Executive Director Napoli read Resolution No2025038 Resolution approving the FY2026 Operating and Administrative Budget on pg 90 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners BoC September 16 2025 board packet also found on the GHURA website wwwghuraorg There were no discussions: 
	54925 Executive Director Napoli requested that Dr Bersamin present the results of the eputy irectors evaluation and table item 11 until the next board meeting Dr Bersamin stated the following  Followed the same 13 elements critical for the evaluation period  One year periodAugust 22 2024 August 21 2025  Deputy Director Esteves had received an overall rating of Outstanding  Requested that the board adopt and approve the HR summary  Once approved the rating will correspond to a 2 performance adjustment  Based on AGs position the effective date of the 2 increase will be the date that the board approves: 
	AGENDA ITAM_2: 
	DISCUSSION_2: 
	ACTION_2: 
	1 FY2024 Audit Report: 
	Executive Director Napoli requested this item be moved to item 1 in the board meeting agenda: 
	AGENDA ITAM_3: 
	DISCUSSION_3: 
	ACTION_3: 
	1 Project Updates_2: 
	55225 Deputy Director Esteves requested to table project updates until the next scheduled board meeting He added that pursuant to board policies amendments made regarding the policies for DR will be reported to the board A summary of the changes made that were recommended by the ICF and HUD is ready for board review: 
	55325 Acting Chairman Sanchez approved the request to table the project updates until the next board meeting: 
	55425 Mr Florig Legal Counsel recommended that the board add to the September 30th meeting agenda general discussions with Mr Malcom Stiles regarding a letter that was sent to him on August 15 2025 He added that it would be proposed to the board to have Mr Stiles present before the first new business item: 
	Elizabeth F Napoli_2: 
	Date_2: 
	CRITERIA: 
	POINTS: 
	Project Locat i on and Proxim i ty: 
	Pro j ect Financia l Feas i b i l i tyV i ab i l i ty: 
	i: 
	ations Served by the Project: 
	6: 
	5: 
	LocalFederal Government Support: 
	fill_10: 
	fill_11: 
	ng Lists: 
	Assistance: 
	c Nature of the Project: 
	oper Fee: 
	Subcategory: 
	Distance: 
	nts Available: 
	Publ i c Transportation: 
	es 5  10 mi l es 10  15 mi l es More than 15 mi l es: 
	nts 4 Po i nts 3 Po i nts 0 Po i nts: 
	Grocery StoreShopp i ng: 
	es 5  10 mi l es 10  15 mi l es More than 15 mi l es_2: 
	nts 4 Po i nts 3 Po i nts 0 Po i nts_2: 
	Hea l th Care Fac i l i ties: 
	es 5  10 mi l es 10  15 mi l es More than 15 mi l es_3: 
	nts 4 Po i nts 3 Po i nts 0 Po i nts_3: 
	Emp l oyment Hubs: 
	es 5  10 mi l es 10  15 mi l es More than 15 mi l es_4: 
	nts 4 Po i nts 3 Po i nts 0 Po i nts_4: 
	Subcategory_2: 
	Standard or Benchmark: 
	Po: 
	Debt Coverage Ratio: 
	income to debt serv i ce payments A higher ratio indicates ab i l i ty to repay debt: 
	fill_6: 
	fill_7: 
	Subcategory_3: 
	Description: 
	Avai l ab l e: 
	2 po i nts: 
	2 po i nts_2: 
	fill_6_2: 
	2 po i nts_3: 
	Durab i l i ty and Ma i ntenance: 
	2 po i nts_4: 
	Subcategory_4: 
	Description_2: 
	Spec i al Needs: 
	Available: 
	5 Po i nts: 
	5 Po i nts_2: 
	Description_3: 
	Deve l operOwner Experience: 
	Available_2: 
	6 po i nts: 
	ve noncomp l i ance returned al l ocat i ons or fa i led pro j ects Deve l oper has no exper i ence in LIHTC pro j ects or the LIHTC program: 
	0 po i nts: 
	Subcategory_5: 
	Description_4: 
	Available_3: 
	Strategy: 
	s ng processes: 
	1 Point: 
	Partnersh i ps with Loca l Organ i zat i ons: 
	Pro j ect w i l l partner w i th l oca l Organ i zat i ons	 that	 prov i de support serv i ces	 to residents: 
	1 Point_2: 
	Community Deve l opment In i tiatives: 
	1 Point_3: 
	Commun i ty Outreach	 and Education: 
	1 Point_4: 
	Tenant Input and Feedback: 
	1 Point_5: 
	Description_5: 
	Points Available: 
	fill_3: 
	100 of the project to households earn: 
	8 Points: 
	60 of the project to households earn i ng 60 or less of AMGI or 80 o f the pro j ect	 to househo l ds earn i ng 50 o f less of	 AMGI: 
	4 Points: 
	2 Po: 
	Description_6: 
	15year comp: 
	6 Points: 
	15year comp_2: 
	4 Points_2: 
	15year comp_3: 
	2 Points: 
	15year comp_4: 
	0 Points: 
	on	 to Homeownersh i p: 
	6 Po: 
	Description_7: 
	Available_4: 
	The pro j ect has not app l i ed for a be l ow market loan or grant from a federa l agency or Government of Guam agency or if the tota l amount app l i ed for is less than 10 of tota l deve l opment costs: 
	0 Points_2: 
	fill_5: 
	1 Po i nt: 
	tment rom a Guam agency A copy o f a comm i tment letter or contractua l agreement must be i nc l uded i n the app l i cat i on: 
	2 Points_2: 
	Description_8: 
	Available_5: 
	If the answer to the quest i on	 is NO: 
	0 Points_3: 
	1 Po i nt_2: 
	Description_9: 
	Points Available_2: 
	fill_3_2: 
	1 Point_6: 
	ng to a commun i ty rev i ta l i zat i on plan: 
	nts: 
	Po_2: 
	If the answer to the quest: 
	0 Points_4: 
	If the answer to the quest_2: 
	1 Po: 
	Po_3: 
	If the answer to the quest_3: 
	0 Points_5: 
	nt: 
	Po_4: 
	If the answer to the quest_4: 
	0 Points_6: 
	If the answer to the quest_5: 
	1 Po_2: 
	New Construction: 
	Acqu: 
	Fee on Acqu: 
	Fee on Rehab: 
	Fee: 
	Points: 
	Fee_2: 
	Points_2: 
	Fee_3: 
	Points_3: 
	fill_21: 
	0: 
	fill_23: 
	0_2: 
	fill_25: 
	0_3: 
	fill_27: 
	1: 
	fill_29: 
	1_2: 
	fill_31: 
	1_3: 
	fill_33: 
	2: 
	fill_35: 
	2_2: 
	fill_37: 
	Fee  93: 
	33: 
	fill_38: 
	Fee  9: 
	3: 
	Fee  9_2: 
	4: 
	Fee  8: 
	Fee  9_3: 
	3_2: 
	Fee  9_4: 
	4_2: 
	Text1: 
	Text2: 


